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Revenue iz 2,020 2,319 v 13% HEERER
Gross profit £ 1,023 1,107 V8%
Profit from operating activities 3& £ #% Fl 10 304 V97% Mainland China B Xk
Profit for the year attributable to;:wners BB ARG FRET 5 292 ¥ 98% Directly managed stores 163 147 216
H H = 3 0,
Basic EPS (in HK cents) SEEARZEF (L) 0.30 17.87 ¥ 98% HEEEE
Special interim dividend per share (in HK cents) S & 3R B8 (71L) 1.22 1.22 0% Franchised stores 5 39 ¥ 34
Final dividend per share (in HK cents) SIS (L) 1.22 - n/a i S A
Special final dividend per share (in HK cents) SREFBIREIRRE. (L) 0.61 1.22 ¥ 50% Sub-total 168 186 18
Payout ratio (%) JRELLE (%) 1,022% 14% 11,008% pts {EE 52 Ef
Gross margin (%) EFI% (%) 51% 48% ™ 3% pts EEHE
Operating margin (%) “iEHFE (%) 0.5% 13.1% ¥ 12.6%pts HEDE Taiwan &%
Net margin (%) JF&H=E (%) 0% 13% ¥ 13%pts AEHE Directly managed stores 63 70 7
EBITDA F3HFI8 - BIE - #7 8 R M A RF a2 356 v 88% ERERER
EBITDA margin (%) AR&HFIE - $118 - #T8E REHRTAFIE (%) 2% 15% ¥ 13%pts EHHE
Singapore AN
i : N o
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AA=+H ~A=+A 55 HRREHR S
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Inventory level (in HK$mn) &K CBEBEET) 239 260 4 8% Directly managed stores 284 280 4
Return on equity (%) Bz EHRE (%) 1% 33% ¥ 32% pts EAEDE T
Current ratio (times) &t % (%) 3.15 3.20 V2% Ll
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Our vision is to be the most preferreo
EVERYDAY WEAR BRAND

HFIRER — AT EER
B = AR Eff 5 b

Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; stock code on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“stock
code”): 592) and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Bossini”) is a renowned apparel brand owner, retailer and franchiser in
the region.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Bossini launched its first retail store in 1987. Over the past three decades, it rapidly established
an extensive international operating platform and distribution network that extended to a total of 940 stores worldwide.
Among these, the Group operated 284 directly managed stores in Hong Kong and Macau, mainland China, Taiwan and
Singapore. Furthermore, the Group also had 5 franchised stores in mainland China. As for other overseas markets, the
Group cooperated with its business partners to establish a total of 651 export franchised stores in 26 countries, spanning
from Southeast Asia, the Middle East, Europe to as far as Central America.

Renowned for its comfortable, easy to mix-and-match, colourful and energetic style, Bossini offers good value for money,
casual wear apparel products including men’s, ladies’ and kids’ wear, which are designed to fit a wide range of customer
needs.
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Dear Shareholders,

During the year under review, the global economy continued to expand, albeit fitfully, as some regions posted
healthy growth figures while others languished. Developed countries such as the United States were on the cusp
of the expansion curve, showing positive signs of sustained expansion whereas developing countries such as the
Middle East countries encountered challenges like reduction in crude oil production, lower-than-expected oil
prices and political unrest, while mainland China struggled with domestic pressures in the form of an overheated
property market and a subsequent slowdown in the planned transition from an export-led economy to one
fueled by internal demand. The vagaries of the latter market in particular weighed upon the Hong Kong and
Macau retail industry, which was buffeted by a variety of negative factors including the volatile global economy,
the maintenance of the mainland China’s “one trip per week” policy, weaker Renminbi and changes in tourist
spending patterns.

As a result, the Group’s overall revenue dipped 13%, with slip in same-store sales as well. Despite facing the
challenges in the retail business, the Group continued to develop our export franchising business, which added 23
stores net with total footprints spanning across 26 countries in the year under review. The Group recorded total
revenue of HK$2,020 million, with gross profit of HK$1,023 million and a 3% points increase in gross margin
to 51%. Constrained overall discretionary spending and continuing strong competition in all our major markets
posed an impact on the results. Profit for the year attributable to owners was HK$5 million, and basic earnings per
share amounted to HK0.30 cent. As at 30 June 2017, the Group had a strong financial position with a net cash
balance of HK$396 million, an investment fund of HK$233 million and a note receivable of HK$39 million, which
provided a healthy base for future growth and expansion. The board recommended a final dividend of HK1.22
cents per share and a special final dividend of HK0.61 cent per share.

The Group continued to heighten awareness of its “be happy” core brand value throughout the year under
review, further strengthening its extensive offerings via close cooperation with international licensing partners.
The bossini x Disney TSUM TSUM (Stack Up The Fun Together) collection showcased characters from the Disney
movie Inside Out, classics such as Mickey Mouse and Minnie Mouse, and animated movie Toy Story’s characters.
A similar collaboration with Universal Studios resulted in the bossini x Minions {Go Bananas) collection for men,
women and kids. The bossini x Disney TSUM TSUM (Just Chillin’ Out) collection of fun prints targeted modern
women who love popular Disney characters. Furthermore, a collaboration with Sony Pictures Animation resulted
in the bossini x The Smurfs {Follow the Smurfs) collection, that spotlighted Smurfs: The Lost Village movie
characters. The bossini x Disney Cars 3 (Friendship For The Win) collection for young boys similarly dazzled with
a myriad of sporty vehicles and related automotive designs and logos.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
FRBBREA M

Besides, the Group launched the “30th Anniversary — MOVE ON n’ BEYOND"” campaign with the “On-The-
Go" collection, which targets at the continuously expanding market for travelling and outdoor apparels. All
licensing programmes and the anniversary campaigns garnered enthusiastic responses from the public, and will
undoubtedly continue to boost our “be happy” core brand value.

The global economic outlook offers cause for optimism, with signs of positive growth internationally. A
confluence of positive factors including strengthening manufacturing and trading figures, low interest rates that
facilitate profitable investment and steady commodity prices should serve to help boost investor and consumer
confidence alike. The Asian region is similarly placed. The recent upward revision of growth prediction for
mainland China on the expectation of ongoing fiscal support auguring well for a continuation of the strong
growth exhibited over the past financial years. This in turn will benefit the Asia-Pacific region that is steadily
gathering economic speed. Hong Kong notched improving trend starting from the second quarter of 2016 and
appears to be emerging solidly from its recent relative economic malaise, as evidenced by burgeoning domestic
demand.

Taken together, the above offer confidence for a more buoyant and prosperous future that will inevitably benefit
the Group and its offerings. We are therefore increasingly confident about the prospects in our major markets and
taking active steps to position ourselves to maximise our opportunities in each region and target market. We will
continue to expand our global footprint in promising markets on a cautious, strategic basis and further develop
our proven licensing strategy with international partners. In terms of product, we will continue to boost our
appeal to the affluent young adult generation that is increasingly demanding functional and affordable products.
We also plan to target a wider customer segment with refined product fit and grading system while also expand
our kids’ line, which is an area where we perceive positive growth potential. Our supply chain will also benefit
from further refinement and enhancement, which together with close and constant control of costs will result in
increasing profitability going forward.

The Group could not have flourished for the past three decades without the energy, enthusiasm, and commitment
of our management and staff. | am both grateful for, and proud of, our professional team who positively display
and reflect the Group’s “be happy” core brand value and culture. We will continue to attract, develop and
nurture talented employees, helping them to maximise both their own potential and that of the Group which they
represent.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our customers, business partners, and shareholders for

making Bossini the proud and profitable organisation that it is today, and | look forward to working with you all
as we embark together on our future business.

TSIN Man Kuen Bess
Chairman

Hong Kong
20 September 2017
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Overview

The global economy is picking up steadily as the cyclical recovery continues. Global growth is estimated to
strengthen in 2017 amid a pickup in manufacturing and trading, rising market confidence, favourable global
financing conditions, and stabilising commodity prices. Much depends, however, on the United States trade
policies under President Donald Trump’s protectionist government, as well as the Federal Reserve Bank’s
implementation of its rate hike cycle, this in turn will influence economic developments in other major economies.

The Asia-Pacific region continues to deliver strong growth, in the face of widespread concerns about growing
protectionism, a rapidly aging society and slow productivity growth. The Association of Southeast Asian Nations
economies continued to jog along in the second quarter of 2017, still on track for a steady annual growth even
though a number of economies does not appear to be growing at full speed.

The Middle East countries, where we have a significant number of franchised stores, are struggling with the
reduction in crude oil production required to comply with the November 2016 deal among members and
non-members of the Organisation of the Petroleum Exporting Countries and lower-than-expected prices for oil.
This put a lid on the Middle East countries’ economic growth for the year under review together with the quickly
escalating political unrest.

Hong Kong's economy sustained the improving trend that began in the second quarter of 2016. External demand
has continued to strengthen as the global economic environment further improved. Domestic demand also held
up well, supported by favourable employment conditions and more positive business sentiment. These positive
signs notwithstanding, Hong Kong's retail industry continued to decline in the year under review — a reflection
of the volatile global economy, mainland China’s “one trip per week” policy, weaker Renminbi, and changes in
tourist spending patterns continued to affect the number of visitors from mainland China.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBTWR DN

Facing these challenges, along with continuous weak consumer sentiment and severe competition in our core
markets, the Group’s overall revenue and gross profit decreased 13% and 8% respectively, and same-store sales
and gross profit recorded an 8% decline and 5% decline respectively for the year under review.

The Group launched several licensing programmes in conjunction with its partners, all of which have received
enthusiastic responses. In addition, the Group continued to expand the export franchising business by adding 23
stores net with footprint across 26 countries.

Despite the obstacles, the Group took active measures to improve its performance by implementing operational
efficiencies, adopting various proven cost control initiatives, and prioritising the development of the promising
markets for the export franchising business, which holds promise for the future. Meanwhile, Bossini is celebrating
its 30th anniversary in 2017, a milestone that the Group is commemorating with massive campaigns and events
throughout the year, aiming to spread excitement, smiles, and happiness. The Group launched the “30th
Anniversary - MOVE ON n’ BEYOND"” campaign with “On-The-Go" collection which targets at the continuously
expanding market for travelling and outdoor apparels.

Financial Performance

During the year under review, the Group recorded revenue of HK$2,020 million (2016: HK$2,319 million), which
fell by 13%. Gross profit decreased by 8% to HK$1,023 million (2016: HK$1,107 million), with gross margin rising
3% points to 51% (2016: 48%).

Operating profit for the year under review was HK$10 million (2016: HK$304 million), with an operating margin
of 0.5% (2016: 13.1%). EBITDA was HK$42 million (2016: HK$356 million) and profit attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$5 million (2016: HK$292 million). Basic earnings per share amounted to HK0.30 cent
(2016: HK17.87 cents).
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The decrease in profit attributable to owners was primarily due to two reasons. Firstly, there was a non-recurring
gain of approximately HK$265 million on the disposal of property recognised in profit or loss of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2016. No similar item was recorded for the year under review. Besides, there was a significant
decrease in revenue by 13% from HK$2,319 million for the year ended 30 June 2016, which was attributable
to the continuous weak consumer sentiment and severe competition in several core markets where the Group
operates.

As of 30 June 2017, the Group remained in a healthy financial position, with cash and bank balances stood at
HK$396 million (2016: HK$512 million), and net cash balance was HK$396 million (2016: HK$512 million). Also,
the Group held an investment fund of HK$233 million (2016: HK$233 million) and a note receivable of HK$39
million (2016: Nil).

Operating Efficiencies

During the year under review, the Group recorded a reduction in operating profit owing to several external
uncertainties and challenges, such as the decline in the number of and length of stay of mainland China tourists
due to more diversified travel destinations. Coupled with the changes in tourist consumption pattern and the
impact of warm winter weather, these led to a lower level of in-store consumption and hence our retail sales in
Hong Kong and Macau, which accounted for over 50% of the Group's consolidated revenue.

Same-store sales in Hong Kong and Macau, mainland China, Taiwan, and Singapore declined by 9% (2016: 9%
decline), 5% (2016: 5% decline), 7% (2016: 6% decline), and 11% (2016: 6% growth) respectively. The Group’s
overall same-store sales slipped 8% (2016: 6% decline) and same-store gross profit declined by 5% (2016: 11%
decline).

Total retail floor area increased by 2% to 503,300 sq. ft. (2016: 491,400 sq. ft.) as of 30 June 2017. Sales per
sq. ft. fell 11% to HK$3,200 (2016: HK$3,600). The operating expenses for the year under review accounted for
53% (2016: 48%) of the total revenue.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The following table provides a breakdown of the operating expenses of the Group: TRARERZERHYNFAMASN
3
-8 Operating Expenses Analysis EIER Y O
)
o 1|
ﬁ#ﬁ For the year ended 30 June
S BEAA=tHLEE
5
= 2017 2016
—E—-tF —E—RF
HK$ million % of revenue HK$ million % of revenue Change (%)
BYERET HREFS BEEETT B EA D HE (%)
Revenue Uz 2,020 100% 2,319 100% -13%
Selling and distribution expenses $5 & & 7 4 5H &x 806 40% 829 36% -3%
Administrative expenses 1T & 231 1% 231 10% 0%
Other operating expenses H fib & & f 32 35 2% 41 2% -15%
Total operating expenses # & E X 1,072 53% 1,101 48% -3%
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Business Review
Distribution Network

As of 30 June 2017, the Group had a presence in 30 countries and regions around the world and operated a total
of 940 (2016: 947) stores, comprised of 284 (2016: 280) directly managed stores and 656 (2016: 667) franchised
stores.

The Group’s export franchising business added 23 stores net during the year under review, with storecount
increased to 651 compared to 628 as of 30 June 2016 as the Group continued to implement its strategy of
identifying and penetrating promising international markets.

The Hong Kong and Macau market remained the Group’s core market and major contributor to the Group's total
revenue, with 40 (2016: 42) stores strategically located throughout the cities.

Further afield, in mainland China, the Group added 16 directly managed stores to a total of 163 (2016: 147)
stores, while reducing franchised stores to 5 (2016: 39) stores. The total number of stores was 168 (2016: 186).
Non-performing stores in Taiwan and Singapore were consolidated and the portfolio reduced to 63 (2016: 70)

and 18 (2016: 21) stores respectively.

Overall, the Group had further reviewed and refined its market exposure and position to ensure it is well prepared
to identify and seize further development opportunities.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AIEJELTHHE& $F|'
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
AIEJELTHHE& $F|'

The following is a breakdown of stores by geographical location and store type:

é"’ ——4
o

BB MIE BB D 2 MBI

=
g s 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
2q —E-tEAA=TH —E-AEXA=TH
v
égﬂé Directly managed stores Franchised stores Directly managed stores Franchised stores
giﬂk EEREEEH FSRT R I BEREEEH AR R A
[aa]
Hong Kong and Macau & 7 & 2 P9 40 - 42 -
Mainland China 9 B X & 163 5 147 39
Taiwan A& 63 - 70 -
Singapore T AN 18 - 21 -
Other countries and regions H th Bl X & i [& - 651 - 628
Total # &+ 284 656 280 667
Marketing and Branding TERREEE
The Group maintained a firm focus on its “be happy” core brand value by continuing to provide quality everyday AREBDAEITABRMIGE2REE | WZLREEE BEABERIEMH

apparels and associated accessories, while simultaneously developing and organising various initiatives to share
the “be happy” brand philosophy with its customers and business partners.

The year of 2017 marks Bossini’s 30th anniversary. The Group has specially launched a series of advertising
campaigns to celebrate this major milestone.

Adopting “MOVE ON n’ BEYOND" and “Stretch Your Potential” as the main themes, the Group heads in a more
refreshing and dynamic direction giving a younger and more stylish look for meeting consumers’ on-the-go
lifestyle. To celebrate, a temporary pop-up store with the “Dear Future Me" customised T-shirt workshop was set
up in Causeway Bay in February 2017, a photo competition was held in March and a series of new TV commercial
together with online campaigns was launched as a kick off of the 30th anniversary campaign.
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Co-branded and Licensed Products

Colourful and easily identifiable co-branded and licensed products continued to be a crucial element of the
Group’s product portfolio. During the year under review, 5 new licensing programmes were launched, namely
bossini x Disney TSUM TSUM (Stack Up The Fun Together) , bossini x Minions {Go Bananas) , bossini x
Disney TSUM TSUM (Just Chillin’ Out) , bossini x The Smurfs {Follow the Smurfs) and bossini x Disney Cars 3
( Friendship for The Win) .

The bossini x Disney TSUM TSUM (Stack Up The Fun Together) collection offered numerous bold and colourful
T-shirts, dresses, shorts, and even denim dungarees dresses featuring characters ranging from Disney movie
Inside Out, classic characters such as Mickey Mouse and Minnie Mouse, and evergreen animated movie, Toy Story
characters like Buzz Lightyear and Aliens.

The Group also collaborated with Universal Studios to bring the bossini x Minions { Go Bananas) collection,
offering everything from T-shirts to sweaters and hoodies to dungarees for men, women and kids, as well as
accessories ranging from foldable tote bags to caps, all featuring brainy Kevin, carefree Stuart and adorable
Bob from the hit Minions movie. To maximise campaign awareness, a launch event was held and Minions Game
Booths were set up in Plaza Hollywood.

With the success of the initial Disney TSUM TSUM offerings, the Group launched the bossini x Disney TSUM TSUM
(Just Chillin’ Out) collection that featured fun prints on graphic tees and sweaters for modern women who love
fashion as much as popular Disney characters like Minnie Mouse, Sulley from Monsters Inc. and Toy Story’s Lotso.

The Group's another collection was bossini x The Smurfs (Follow the Smurfs) , an extensive collaboration with
Sony Pictures Animation that spotlighted Smurfs: The Lost Village movie iconic characters, including Papa Smurf,
Smurfette, and Brainy on graphic tees and tunics to dresses and shorts for everyone.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DA

mEEEREEER
EBREERESRHRANEREREREREESERERMEANEET
o WREFN  REEHRBSEFOEZEIERER - D 51% bossini x Disney
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The Smurfs (Follow the Smurfs) Kbossini x Disney Cars 3 {Friendship
for The Win) °

bossini x Disney TSUM TSUM (Stack Up The Fun Together) Z 5|2t %
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Hd B AT T ETSUM TSUMEE G /IR )+ A& Bl Hbossini x Disney
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
AIEJELTHHE& $F|'

Finally, the bossini x Disney Cars 3 {Friendship for The Win) collection showed young boys’ eternal fascination
with motor vehicles. The bright and colourful T-shirts, shorts, and caps featured a myriad of sporty vehicles and
related automotive designs and logos.

The licensing programmes received enthusiastic responses and served as not only a key product differentiator but
also an important driver to boost the “be happy” core brand value across the Group’s various markets.

Operational Performance by Market

During the year under review, the Group’s Hong Kong and Macau segment continued to be the major source of
revenue. The retail and export franchising business in Hong Kong and Macau contributed 69% (2016: 70%) of
the total revenue for the year under review. Elsewhere, mainland China accounted for 15% (2016: 14%) of the
total revenue, while Taiwan and Singapore contributed 8% (2016: 8%) and 8% (2016: 8%) respectively.

Hong Kong and Macau

The Hong Kong economy started to recover gradually. Domestic demand will continue to be driven by stable
income and favourable employment conditions. Macau, meanwhile, is expected to grow in 2017 following the
contraction in the past 3 years based on increased gambling revenues and an improving economic climate, which
leads to a direct increase in household consumption.

Nevertheless, it is questionable whether the long-slackened retail market has reached the bottom as the value of
retail sales constantly fluctuated drastically in the first half of 2017, reflecting an uncertain pace of adjustment.
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Our revenue in Hong Kong and Macau, included retail and export franchising business, was HK$1,394 million
(2016: HK$1,625 million), representing a 14% decrease. Same-store sales for directly managed stores fell 9%
(2016: 9% decline), yet same-store gross profit recorded a 4% decline (2016: 14% decline). Total retail floor area
in Hong Kong and Macau slightly declined to 153,000 sq. ft. (2016: 157,200 sq. ft.), while sales per sq. ft. slipped
10% to HK$6,500 (2016: HK$7,200). The number of directly managed stores was 40 (2016: 42). Operating profit
was HK$69 million (2016: HK$353 million, including the non-recurring gain of approximately HK$265 million on
the disposal of property), and the operating margin was 5% (2016: 22%).

During the year under review, export franchising business of the Group added 23 stores net, bringing the total
number of stores up to 651 (2016: 628) across 26 countries.

Mainland China

Mainland China’s economy expansion just reached the official target, yet it is believed to be “a blip amid a growth
deceleration”, as the growth in property development investment continued to decelerate in the first half of 2017.
The market showed signs of cooling as the government is taking actions and measures to quash potential asset
bubbles. Meanwhile, mainland Chinese consumers are not spending as fast as their wages rise, supposing many
more are financially strapped because of high property prices.

During the year under review, the revenue in mainland China saw a 6% decrease to HK$307 million (2016:
HK$326 million). Same-store sales recorded a 5% decline (2016: 5% decline) and same-store gross profit
recorded a 4% decline (2016: 10% decline). Sales per sq. ft. declined 8% to HK$1,100 (2016: HK$1,200). Total
retail floor area increased 12% to 254,000 sq. ft. (2016: 226,300 sq. ft.) following the addition of 16 directly
managed stores, boosting to a total of 163 (2016: 147) directly managed stores. Together with 5 (2016: 39)
franchised stores, there was a total of 168 (2016: 186) stores in mainland China. Operating loss was HK$31
million (2016: HK$20 million loss), and the operating margin was negative 10% (2016: negative 6%).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBTWR DN

Taiwan

The Group's operations in Taiwan recorded a 7% decline (2016: 6% decline) in same-store sales, while same-store
gross profit recorded a 5% decline (2016: 10% decline) for the year under review. Total retail floor area decreased
12% to 70,600 sq. ft. (2016: 80,000 sq. ft.) while sales per sq. ft. kept flat at HK$2,100 (2016: HK$2,100). Total
revenue declined by 8% to HK$167 million (2016: HK$182 million) as non-performing stores were divested,
reducing the number of directly managed stores to 63 (2016: 70). Operating loss was HK$16 million (2016:
HK$23 million loss), and the operating margin was negative 10% (2016: negative 13%).

Singapore

During the year under review, revenue of Singapore market slipped 19% to HK$152 million (2016: HK$187
million). Same-store sales recorded a 11% decline after a rise of 6% in last year. Same-store gross profit was 8%
decline (2016: 2% growth). Total retail floor area declined by 8% to 25,700 sq. ft. (2016: 27,900 sq. ft.). Sales
per sq. ft. decreased by 7% to HK$5,600 (2016: HK$6,000), while the number of directly managed stores was
reduced to 18 (2016: 21) as the consolidation of non-performing stores continued. Operating loss was HK$12
million (2016: HK$6 million loss) and the operating margin was negative 8% (2016: negative 3%).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As of 30 June 2017, the Group remained in a healthy financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$396
million (2016: HK$512 million) and net cash balance of HK$396 million (2016: HK$512 million). The current
ratio was 3.15 times (2016: 3.20 times), while the total liabilities to equity ratio was 29% (2016: 33%). No bank
borrowings were recorded as of 30 June 2017 (2016: Nil). The gearing ratio determined by bank borrowings
divided by total equity was nil (2016: Nil). The Group had banking facilities of HK$459 million (2016: HK$438
million) of which HK$29 million (2016: HK$35 million) had been utilised.
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The Group has investments and operations in countries that use currencies other than United States dollar and
Hong Kong dollar. As such, the Group is exposed, to a certain extent, to foreign currency risk, which it mitigates
by entering into forward currency contracts to reduce exposure to exchange rate fluctuations in material
transactions denominated in currencies other than United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar.

As of 30 June 2017, the Group'’s inventory turnover days* was 87 days, compared to 78 days in 2016. The return
on equity ratio for the year under review was 1% (2016: 33%).

# Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales times 365 days

Significant Investment

As of 30 June 2017, the Group held an investment fund in an aggregate principal amount of HK$233 million
(2016: HK$233 million). During the year under review, an interest income of HK$7 million (2016: Nil) and
a change in fair value of the investment fund of HK$0.6 million gain (2016: HK$0.4 million loss) have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income by the Group.

The performance of the investment fund before maturity may be affected by the degree of volatility in the global
economy and the return of the underlying bonds depending on the performance of the business sectors, issuers
and countries to which the underlying bonds belong to, and it will also be susceptible to other external factors
that may affect their values before maturity, while the management intends to hold the investment fund till the
date of maturity.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS §%
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Contingent Liabilities RREE
=4
.g ame 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
i
 a ZE-tFXRA=TH —ZE-RFRA=TH
v
o HK$'000 HK$'000
Z BT BHTR
@
Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility and property rental deposits K Z/KE A E RS 2 RITER 3,289 4,439
Human Capital ABEIR
The Group's key asset is its dedicated workforce, which stood at a total 2,100 (2016: 2,200) full-time equivalent BENETBRRAEBNEESE R-_ZE—+FA=+H K
employees in Hong Kong and Macau, mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore as of 30 June 2017. EEAEFBRORM - PR ARREE - &8 &FT N LIEAEER2,100%

(ZZT— R 22008)2HET -

The successful policy of developing, training, and retaining talented employees in order to provide an enjoyable BB ORER  HEMRBEFEL - AbMREEBRNIIERSE -

working environment continued, with regular training programmes such as the “7 Habits®” and the "7 Practices” BEEERHE TEHEIERRE [ EEZEe] X[ @A Ri2 -
courses.

These programmes expound the “bossini way"” that comprise the vision, mission and core values, epitomise the MM R BRME B INES  FaME0EE WESHR
corporate culture and ensure seamless integration across all levels. PEHEBAEECEUE -

Employees continued to be remunerated based on performance, including discretionary bonuses, share options, K EAE TERIRE B 2GS - SRR ER LT
and wide-ranging employee benefits such as insurance and retirement schemes to build and strengthen the IR EE  REME2EETN - BIERE KERETE - SRS LG
enthusiastic and friendly workforce. REBRSHMAE TEEK -
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Qutlook

Global economic activity is picking up with a long-awaited cyclical recovery, and the world growth is expected to
rise accordingly. Stronger activity, expectations of a more robust global demand, reduced deflationary pressures,
and optimistic financial markets are all upside developments that offer enormous opportunities, but structural
impediments to a stronger recovery and a balance of risks remain tilted to the downside.

Economic growth in mainland China is projected to hold up in 2017 and 2018 as infrastructure investment picks
up on the back of regional development initiatives. Private investment growth has bottomed out and consumption
growth will remain stable. Recovering global demand will in turn spur exports, but surging tourism imports will
limit the upside effect.

Gradual improvement in the overall Hong Kong economy has been noted since the second quarter of 2016, and
external demand continues to strengthen as the global economy recovers. While the long-term weak market
sentiment may take a certain period of time for full recovery, the slowly improving domestic demand, employment
conditions and number of visitor arrivals boost the Group’s confidence for its upcoming performance in the long
run.

The Group has accordingly developed a comprehensive plan and strategies to take maximum advantage of the
anticipated change in economic conditions. We will continue to expand and develop our share of the affluent
young adult market while developing and offering more products with a focus on functionality. The product
fit and grading system will also be further refined to target a wider customer segment. The kids’ line will be
further developed by expanding size choices in the mainland China market, which remains our core focus as the
end of one-child policy led to a surge of demand for kids’ clothing. Operational efficiency will be increased by
strengthening our supply chain management. Further promising export franchising markets will be identified,
nurtured and developed to build on the current wave of success. The Group will also continue to launch
innovative, attractive and customer-engaging co-branded and licensing programmes, further amplifying our “be
happy” core brand value. Finally, a variety of cost control initiatives such as negotiations for rental reduction,
simplifying shop renovation, furniture and fixtures will help reduce overheads, thus boosting the Group’s earnings
and profitability in the years ahead.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CORPORATE CULTURE
R

Bossini is a learning organisation that treasures knowledge sharing and life-long learning. We
encourage employees to progress and excel everyday by offering them comprehensive on-
the-job training and focused programme.

In developing a unique corporate culture, the Group launched “the bossini way” in mid 2002
to share with all staff its vision, mission and core values, cultivating proactive and positive
working attitudes. Bossini has been providing “7 Habits®” training for employees since May
2004.

We believe a corporate culture embracing “the bossini way” together with 7 Habits®” would
align the vision and thus the direction of the Group as a whole.
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“the bossini way”

] |
Vision @£
To be the most preferred
everyday wear brand

BABEEEN BT R m e

[ EFirE 2 E |

Mission &4

To create appealing, competitive and
quality everyday wear for happy living
AREEESERIE AR D -
HRMEEN B ERE

7 Practices [ B %]

Face Reality
[EIESEN

Keep it Simple

RIFIEE

Act with the Speed of Light

BR1TH

Set Stretch Goals

BEEE

Drive Quality

B ki

Create and Sustain a Learning Organisation
BB EEAEL

Keep the A's, Nurture the B’s, Discard the C's
RBA -HBEB #HRC

N OO 6O R WN =

CORPORATE CULTURE
2 3¢

Core Values &1 EE

1. Customer Oriented 4. \Work with Passion

VR VN HETE

2. Innovate to Excel 5. Live the 7 Habits
BIETRIE EHEE

3. Execute for Success
HATLUE

7 Habits® [ tEZIR®]

Be Proactive®
FEEHEC

Begin with the End in Mind®
PAER A5 ®
Put First Things First®
2250
Think Win Win®
FEsg®
Seek First to Understand, then to be Understood®
Mm@ ®

Synergize®
RAEU®

N O 6O A WODN =

Sharpen the Saw®
T E#H®
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A Recognised Quality Shop
for 15 consecutive years
(by Hong Kong Tourism Board)
HEEISFREZNBERF
(BB H IR HRIBAEEE)

Outstanding QTS Merchant -
Merit Award

Quality Tourism Services 2017
(by Hong Kong Tourism Board)
REBEBF-BRR

8 & ik 32 BR %2017
(BB RBEE)

Best Product of the Year -
Disney Consumer Products
Hong Kong 2016
(by The Walt Disney Company
(Asia Pacific) Limited)

© D =

BZEHE( i< Best Licensee Award — Best E-Commerce Logistics - Best E-Commerce
§§ @I B Merit Award Gold 2017 Design/Re-Design -
g gﬁ T\ Hong Kong Licensing Awards 2016 (by Marketing Magazine) Gold 2017

o %ﬁﬁ (by Asian Licensing Association) (by Marketing Magazine)
o

U —

BREWREDRE-EE%
ERREEX K216
(HTMTREE G EEE)
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Best E-Commerce Website -
Silver 2017
(by Marketing Magazine)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 %%

Caring Company since 2004
(by Hong Kong Council of Social Service)

BREREIZEE2004FEM%A
(BB E R EE)

Happy Company 2017
(by Promoting Happiness Index Foundation)
B/ %2017
(BB ELETHRBEIEHE D IRE)
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B HBREARE T
AN

Award for Breastfeeding Family - Friendly Employers
Support 2015 - 2016 2015 - 2016
(by Family Council) 3 (by Family Council)
X 53R 2015 - 2016 REREREI2015-2016
(BFExEAE) (BREHEHAE)

diod

Singapore Service Class 2017 Manpower Developer 1st People Developer 2017
(by SPRING Singapore) since 2010 (by SPRING Singapore)
¥ b0 3% AR 7 4% 2017 (by Employees Retraining Board) AN EREBEZEE2017
(TN AE R B AE ) A7 1stH2010F B 18 (E 37 N5 AZ 3T S A 3E)

g (Hh1E B BIEHIEHEE)
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Singapore Quality Class 2017 bizSAFE Level 3 2017
(by SPRING Singapore) (by The Workplace Safety and Health Council)

3K & E &%2017
(B9 2T INEIZHT /B AR 2 )

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEBMRERABR A A 21



= g
QEHW
gda
ScHd
o O

o ok
[ ]

S8«

22

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRE

The Group hereby presents this environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report for the year ended 30 June
2017 in accordance with the requirements set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Since Hong Kong and
Macau accounts for the largest portion of the Group's revenue and the headquarters is located in Hong Kong, this
ESG report would primarily focus on the Group's business and operations in Hong Kong and Macau. Disclosures
relating to the identified ESG aspects which are considered as material have been included in this ESG report.

The board of directors of the Company (“the Board”) is responsible for evaluating and determining the ESG
risks of the Group, and ensuring that relevant risk management and internal control systems are in place and
operate effectively. The Group is committed to making continuous improvements from the aspects of corporate
environmental protection and social responsibility and has taken measures to supervise and implement policies
to manage ESG issues for the sustainable development of the Group. In particular, the Group aims to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, minimise disposal of waste in its ordinary course of business and provide a safe
environment for its employees. Through meetings and discussions with the ESG working group, various policies
and guidelines were set to address environmental and social matters. Moreover, key performance indicators
will be identified, tracked and closely monitored with an intention to achieve continuous improvement. Work
progresses and results of key performance indicators will be regularly reported to the Board.

Stakeholder Engagement

To achieve sustainable business development, it is important to maintain effective communication with
stakeholders. Our major stakeholders in our business include customers, staff, investors, government and
regulatory authorities, suppliers, community partners and industrial associations. We cherish communication with
our stakeholders and believe that their opinions can be beneficial to the Group’s business development.

Materiality Assessment

Our Risk Management Committee has reviewed internally and prioritised the risks in environmental and social
aspects, based on the Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide, that our stakeholders and the Group considered
having material effects on our sustainable development.
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Environmental Protection

The Group supports environmental protection and is committed to using resources wisely and efficiently and
reducing waste generation within our operations. We have been progressively implementing different resource-
saving measures addressing the saving of energy, water, paper and other office supplies. The Group put enhanced
efforts to manage the potential impact of our operations on the environment. Greenhouse gas emissions are the
major causes of global warming. The Group principally engages in retail operations in Hong Kong and Macau and
its greenhouse gas emissions are mainly constituted by emissions of carbon dioxide (“CO,").

During the year under review, the Group did not note any cases of non-compliance relating to environmental laws
and regulations in its Hong Kong and Macau retail operations. In addition, no significant water and hazardous
wastes discharges were noted.

Energy Consumption

We are committed to rationalising energy consumption to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. With a diverse retail
network in Hong Kong and Macau, savings in electricity consumption will help to reduce CO, emission.

Over the past years, we have been replacing light bulbs and fluorescent lamps in both stores and offices with
energy-saving LED lighting. The electricity consumption and the related CO, emissions were both reduced as
a result. Our Hong Kong headquarters installed the “en-trak” energy system to facilitate the control of energy
consumption and to enhance the energy efficiency and productivity by leveraging real-time data available across
the premises. Moreover, employees are encouraged to keep air-conditioned room temperature at 25°C and to
turn off lighting when leaving a room unoccupied for an extended period of time. Furthermore, all our stores in
Hong Kong have participated “Earth Hour” event by switching off unnecessary lighting to shine a light on the
need for climate action.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRE

Use of Papers

The Group is proactively in the progress to reduce wastage. We have formulated a paper-saving policy with an
intention to minimise the use of papers. We encourage the use of recycled papers for printing and duplex printing
is set as the default mode of all network printers. Separate recycling bins are set up to collect used papers,
cardboard boxes, packing materials, for reuse or recycle. Internal memorandum and reports are distributed by
digital means.

Packaging

As a retailer, it is inevitable to use plastic bags as shopping bags or as wrapping material for consumer products.
Since the implementation of Environmental Levy Scheme on plastic shopping bags in Hong Kong, the purchase
of plastic bags by the Group had been reduced.

Waste Management

We pledge to produce as little waste as possible. We have set up administrative measures to govern the
applications of office and computer supplies with an end in mind to minimise wastage. Toner cartridge and other
wastes are collected separately for recycling in order to reduce environmental impact from disposal.

Business Trips
Business trips to attend exhibitions and visit manufacturers and material suppliers at various cities are unavoidable.
It is a policy for all staff to take economy class of seating for business trips.

Environment and Natural Resources

The nature of the Group's retail and distribution business does not result in any significant pollution or destruction
of the environment and natural resources. The most material environmental impact is resulting from the
consumption of electricity, water, and other office supplies. Relevant principles and polices are already disclosed
above.
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Employment and Labour Practices

The Group recognises that human resources are its valuable asset and takes measures to provide a safe and
congenial working environment for its staff. The Group also encourages career development and training, and
promotes a healthy living style with work-life balance.

Human Resources

People are Bossini’s most important asset and source of competitive advantage. Our success depends on the
strength of our talent and team work across different functions. Enhancing staff engagement and competencies
and building effective teams are our key strategies for continuous business growth. To achieve the above, we have
continued to conduct the followings:

—  Organised the following projects in the year under review for employee engagement:

(@) launched a renewed “Happy Employee Survey” in 4 core markets (including Hong Kong and Macau,
mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore) to collect the perspectives and feedbacks from employees

(b) conducted a regional-wide “Happy Employee Survey” debriefing sessions with department heads,
emphasising the importance of employee’s engagement to organisational performance and productivity

(c) fostered an encouraging working atmosphere by providing a contemporary “Engaging Leadership
Programme” for middle and senior management

(d) continued to nurture Bossini Future Leaders by providing tailor-made Leadership Development
Programmes for frontline and mid-level management

—  Encouraged continuous professional development and learning at all levels through the “Bossini Academy”,
corporate knowledge management platform and education subsidy scheme

- Rolled out a new Retail E-learning platform and developed a total of 5 E-learning courses for frontline staff
to make learning possible without time constraint and geographical barrier
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRE

— Promoted collaboration and breakthrough within and across teams through innovative team building
activities

—  Deepened our “7 Habits®” culture through regular training and sharing our “7 Habits®” best practices with
executives from other organisations

—  Continued to refine our Performance Management System and the related employee retention measures

Our efforts and commitment in human capital development has earned recognition for the last 8 consecutive
years as “Manpower Developer 1st” by the Employees Retraining Board.

Our brand value, "be happy”, captures the Group’s genuine commitment to our employees. We deeply care
about the personal well-being of our staff. We have continued to organise work-life balancing activities for
employees, implemented green projects at our own premises and carried out other activities to promote
healthy living practices. We received “Happy Company” recognition again from the Promoting Happiness Index
Foundation. In the years ahead, we will continue our commitment and investment in human capital and aim at
creating a happy and sustainable organisation for all stakeholders.

As at 30 June 2017, we had around 802 employees in Hong Kong and Macau. With a view to retaining the
talented people, we offered competitive remuneration packages and fringe benefits.

In support of our colleagues to continue breastfeeding after returning to work, we have specially designed
a private room with a comfortable environment to facilitate pumping of breast milk in our Hong Kong
headquarters.

Providing a safe working environment for our employees is our priority. We arranged seminar organised by
Occupational Safety and Health Council for warehouse staff to uplift their awareness for safety. We also provide
them with proper tools such as ladders and trolleys for safe operations. Notices are posted at the workplaces
to remind them of the safety hazards for both shop and warehouse staff. Retail managers and shop supervisors
regularly carried out spot checks to ensure the execution of the safety requirements.

In addition, the Group strictly prohibits child and forced labour. We monitor effectively in our recruitment process
to ensure proper compliance. During the year under review, the Group had no significant non-compliance cases
in Hong Kong and Macau in relation to applicable laws and regulations on employment, health and safety as well
as labour standards.
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Supply Chain Management and Product Responsibility

As a responsible member of the community and to ensure product safety and service quality, the Group’s
procurement policy is to ensure all goods and services are procured in an honest, competitive, fair and transparent
manner that delivers the best value for money. We are committed to providing our customers with the best quality
of products and seek to ensure that our suppliers’ production process meet the local environmental standard. All
our apparel are required to meet product safety standards, including but not limited to GB 18401-2010 National
General Safety Technical Code For Textile Products, before they are sold to customers. We also provide an easily
accessible and responsive customer services hotline and email and clearly state on the back of each sales memo
of the product exchange policy.

We expect all our suppliers and contractors to respect our key values and philosophy of ethical business practices.
The Group performs regular site visits and annual review to ensure that all of them abide by our requirements
that no toxic material is used for product safety; no child and forced labour is employed; no workplace is unsafe
for workers; no toxic waste is inappropriately disposed of; and no toxic gas is illegally emitted. The suppliers and
contractors are clearly informed that any violations of such requirements may result in the cancellation of orders.

There are no significant non-compliance cases of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau in relation to applicable
laws and regulations on product responsibility during the year under review.

Customer Services

The Group has earned trusted relationships with its customers through providing dedicated customer services.

During the year under review, 182 complaints were received about quality of our goods or services. The Group
made every effort to promptly and fairly investigate and resolved all disputes and complaints lodged by customers,
according to clearly written internal procedures. We are striving to minimise the number of complaints from
customers. Many customers gave their views through the hotline or email. During the year under review, 363
appreciations were received on our services. We took their sincere advices to improve our training content
accordingly. We treasure every comment from our customers. From time to time we keep reviewing our customer
service training with a view to improving our frontline services.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Data Privacy Policy

The Group places its utmost importance on protecting the privacy of its customers in the collection, processing
and use of their personal data. The Group adheres to the applicable data protection regulations and ensures
appropriate technical measures are in place to protect personal data against unauthorised use or access. The
Group also ensures that customers’ personal data is securely kept and processed only for the purposes for which
it has been collected.

Anti-corruption

Free and fair competition forms not only the basis of all commercial activities but also the core values of Hong
Kong as well. We have been stressing the importance of integrity and honesty as we conduct our business and
adopting a clean and fair business philosophy. We expect our staff to denounce and decline any monetary offers,
gift and favours from suppliers. It is therefore of utmost importance that our staff be cultivated with a strong
sense of integrity and ethicality. We enforce the compliance of the Group’s policies and practices on connected
transactions, conflict of interest, and ethical business practices.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any significant non-compliance cases in its Hong
Kong and Macau operations in relation to applicable laws and regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

Whistleblowing Channel

In addition to upholding the standard of integrity and ethical conduct, a designated email address directly to the
Chief Executive Officer is offered to all staff to file their reports or complaints where necessary as a means of
reinforcing the Group’s governance. The channel is established not just for staff to report suspected graft issues,
but also for whatever irregularities, abuses or malpractices.
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Corporate Social Responsibilities

As a caring and responsible corporate citizen, Bossini has been playing an active role to requite the communities
by undertaking a variety of corporate social responsibility programmes over the years and consequently we have
been awarded as a “Caring Company” by Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the last 13 consecutive years.

During the year under review, through the “Employee Volunteer Week”, a number of voluntary activities in our

core regions from serving the underprivileged to caring for the environment have been launched, which included:
— Visiting Yan Chai Hospital Tsin Man Kuen Elderly Home in Hong Kong

— Collaborating with Tung Wah Group of Hospitals — “MY WAY" Life Planning Educational Project for
Secondary School Students to provide work shadowing opportunity for students in Hong Kong

- Collecting items from colleagues for Blessing Club Charity Sale in Hong Kong

— Joining the programme “Add colour with love” organised by World Vision (China) to donate hand-painted
cloth shoes to poor children in mountain area in mainland China

Shoe Box Gifts” to pack
Christmas gifts in shoe box and donating to children in Yunnan remote area in Taiwan

— Joining the programme “Yunlin County Huwei Township Pinhe Elementary School —

—  Collaborating with “Willing Hearts Soup Kitchen” to prepare lunch box to needy families in Singapore

In addition to the above initiatives, we have put forth extensive efforts in delivering pre-employment seminars in
campus and sharing interviewing skills for college students which helped to equip them with adequate knowledge
about the retail industry and foster positive values among the teenagers. We received positive responses from
both students and teachers.

We believe that corporate social responsibility is an ongoing commitment. With full support from management,
we will continue to put forth our best efforts in helping people in need and work hand in hand with our staff to
contribute to the community we serve, we care and we love.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Bk - HERERRE

TEHEEE

EMESRBABRLEMARERNEERAR  NBEHF  BH2 A
TRMEEHSEEFE  RELE YR BEEET=FREFTE
HeERGHEREHARBEILE -

BEFA
TRRE -

CEMERAEEROMERBRIETETRE] - #
BREAESZHEUNERRFRED

=\
I
R
=
S

- REBEICEERESBLER

- RNEBERE=FLEEHETIMY WAYHS2EEEZRRAFE]
REBERKBSEEREROKS

- RERRNBEINEVMHEETEESRERELY

- RPERES2E Jﬁﬁ BPENVERNREREY EY - B

FeansrlEERRE

E2E[ERERFME/ N —ENREAE2RY]ED B2
%ﬂ&%@%ﬁ’é%%ﬁﬂ CYWRBETFERREMRNRE

- REMEEIBEZO-L0ESEEISEREFTERELERRE

R LR ESN - AR IR P BRAEBR R B R R E R ATEE RS
FHARD  MELEHAERTEENNZ  MABTLFHEELEN
EBES  RESERMERT -

BABEELELEEER —ERFEN AR
BMGEERSRBETEFE ) BRAE
REMAEZNLEELER

CEEEENENRFT
CBAOEPARTEAL

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEIFREEABR DA

diod

FEBRET

s3131|1q1suodsal

(o}
=
Q
=
D
v
o
@)
D

29



n

()
o
s
c g

o 11
(o)
G

30

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A stz
TEERRE

The Board is committed to maintain a solid, transparent and sensible framework of corporate governance for the
Company and its subsidiaries and will continue to review its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions (“Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) as the Corporate Governance Code
(“Code”) of the Company. The Board is committed to complying with the Code Provisions as stated in the CG
Code to the extent that the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and practical to the
Company.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code, except for
the following deviations:

—  The Chairman of the Company is not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board considers that the
continuity of the Chairman of the Company and her leadership are crucial in maintaining the stability of the
Group's business operations.

- Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, an Independent Non-executive Director, did not attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 15 November 2016 due to his other business engagement.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for
the leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business of the Group
by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the Directors should make decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the Board committees. To ensure the Board
is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly management
accounts and updates to the Directors who also have full and timely access to all relevant information and may
take independent professional advice if necessary.

The authorities reserved to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Management Committee are more particularly discussed below.
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Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 7 Directors in total, with 3 Executive Directors and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INED") whose biographical details are set out in “Directors’ profiles” section on pages 51 to 53 and
are posted on the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The Directors during the year under review and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (Chairman)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong (appointed on 20 September 2017)
Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han

Prof. SIN Yat Ming
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For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Company had 4 Board committees. The table below provides membership HE_Z—+FNA=1TBHLEFE AQAXANEESEZEE - T

information of these committees on which each Director serves. FRESEERKETELEZTESHAMEANEM -
Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee Management Committee

Name of Directors EE# & EREEY FMEES REZEY EEHEEZEEY
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess £ £#8% + - M C C
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund Z£1& & %&£ 4 - - M M
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul BR & &t 5t £ = = = M
Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond Z X &1+ M M M =
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han &2z Lt C C M -
Prof. SIN Yat Ming % B BB 3% M M M =

Notes: M EE -

C  Chairman of the relevant Board committees C KBEHEFZESHER

M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHEZZESHKE

The Directors had no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship with each other at 30 RZE—LFRA=TH ES2HATENE ¥ REXHMSE

June 2017. LA 2 R -

3 \ .

P Independent Non-executive Directors BYIEHITES

gi{ﬂﬂ During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the REEFERN BEZI&EL UBYINTES MEFHEL I

8 appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least 1 INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or BUFRNTESHABAENEEER X HEENTEERE
accounting or related financial management expertise. ¥HFBz EMRA EFERRNEAREESFEERAZENK
The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of his independence pursuant to AATICEINEBYIERTEENZAEEERE  BRAREHFE
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs are also members of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration TR AIESBMERT ML BLE - BB IFHNITEEREITIALRRD
Committee and Nomination Committee. These INEDs are high calibre executives who bring a diversified range TEREES THEE@NIEREEE@KE - EEBIUIIERNITES
of expertise and serve the crucial function of providing checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of HEAEBENTHAE MPEFHEZTENEEND  TARKEEREM
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and the Group as a whole. RANFZMEE - AEERDRRER (IR ]) RAEBHEREERZS -
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All INEDs of the Company are appointed for specific terms, their length of service with the Company is 1 year
from the dates of their appointments which will be automatically renewed unless early termination by either party
serving not less than 3 months prior written notice or upon mutual consent on short notice. They are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company (“AGM") in accordance with
the Bye-Laws of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated. Currently, Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess is the
Chairman and Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund is the Chief Executive Officer. The positions of Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are held by separate individuals in order to preserve independence and a balance of views
and judgement.

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined and set out in writing.
The Chairman is responsible for the overall direction of the Group. Supported by the other Executive Director and
senior management, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall management and strategic planning
of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference. For
appointment of a new Director, the background, experience, professional skills, availability to commit to the
affairs of the Company and, in case of INED, the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules, of the
potential appointee will be taken into consideration.

Further, Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, has informed the Board that he will not offer himself for re-election and
accordingly will retire as Director after the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM. Save for Dr. LEE Man Chun
Raymond, the other retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
s

ARBIMBBIUFATESTHEREERECFY AN RSFHEH

RS TRMES S —F RFEEA-—THETIIR=ZBANSE

FEMBAXKLETRBRFRLE  BRKEBHEM - RIEARAH

EEZB& A AR ARANBREBFAS ((RRBFARE])) LWE
RAE R BE BT -

FERITHER

TREETRERRBIL 2B - BA BERXETRIEMERS
ERTHAR - TERITRARTIA TR ALEE  UWRFBIZKE
{56 R A 62 4 7 15 DA T 7 o

ARFCHARAETIFATRAHRZTENECLCE@DSRY - TFA
BASKEZERTR  TREAREEMHTEERSMAERENR
T RBEAREEZEBERELRIRE TIE-

EENEELREE
ARREKILIRFZEZES  UEMHEHBESE - EHE—EaE
MIMEZRR  §ZEEER &R BERDOERARRZHBER
ERBUATES  AIFTARLTRAAMIESR 2B IEZF -

AN EXEBLEBANES RO BEEEE - S ER&A
RHNRRAFASZR/RRERIES - BFENEBL 2 HREE
FEERITREEEEEE-

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEIFREEABR DA

33



n

()
o
s
c g

o 11
(o)
G

34

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A stz
TEERRE

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, all newly appointed Directors shall hold office until the next AGM
and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director, save any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director, including those appointed for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their last
election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day shall be determined by lot, unless they
otherwise agree between themselves. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

The Chairman of the Company is not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board considers that the continuity
of the Chairman of the Company and her leadership is crucial in maintaining the stability of the Group’s business
operations.

The Company’s circular to be dispatched to Shareholders on or about 11 October 2017 will contain detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There
are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expense whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes and developments relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at regular Board meetings.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. All

Directors have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 30 June 2017 to the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 30 June 2017 is summarised below: SEENHE_E—+tFSA=1THULEFEMRESEI Z @R

M

Visiting senior management of Attending seminars/forums/
other companies/institutions workshops/conferences relevant

and company’s facilities Attending internal briefing sessions to the business or directors’ duties
Reading regulatory updates R HM AR BEH (including delivery of speeches) HEERXESESREN
Name of Directors EE# & MEEERENEREN BREEER D ARE HEABHERE (BHEREER) W& WE IS 8E

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess # 2184+ 4 = 4 4
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund E & & % £ / v v/ v
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B8 = 5 5% 4 v v 4 /
Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond Z X &8+ v - 4 -
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han &%+ v - v v
Prof. SIN Yat Ming & B BB ##% v = v =
Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitments EEHBEXRNI N RE
For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Board met 8 times including for considering and approving the audited HE-_Z—+tHFNA=Z=1THIFE E2ROV/T/\AE2E TE=
annual results for the year ended 30 June 2016, unaudited results for the 6 months ended 31 December 2016, F&%tt,&%zi_ T-RERNAZTRIEFENSERZ2FEE  #E
continuing connected transactions, and budget of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2018. At these board TE-RFT+ZA=T—HUERNEANAKREIZES 154 EE%L*
meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the Group’s business updates and strategies. PREBEE T N\ENA=ZTHILFEENHHEEZ NxSESE

I}
¢

Re®EL EFRMENEMRASEENEEERNEKE -

il
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration ZEENEHE - T+FERA=ZTHIFENESER EZXLE= -
Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General Meeting for the year ended 30 June 2017 is set out HMWEE® ?;E%é Eee s VRFRAFAS 2 HEREYWOT :

below:

Number of meetings attended/held
HER FBRH

Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual

Board Meeting Committee Meeting Committee Meeting Committee Meeting General Meeting

Name of Directors EE# & EXZRE3 EREEEEE FHESESE REZEE2SH BRRBFRE

Executive Directors $1{T& =

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess £ £ 18 & + 8/8 N/A 11 171 1/1
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 21& & 5t 4 8/8 N/A N/A 11 11
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul Ff 5 5 % 4 8/8 N/A N/A N/A 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors B EHITESE

Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond ZX{& 8+ 3/8 1/2 0/1 0/1 0/1
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han REH L+ 8/8 2/2 11 11 1/1
o Prof. SIN Yat Ming % B B3 #U3% 8/8 2/2 11 11 11
c
gr’!g The Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, BEEREIRE BENZECEIR FWNZRESEF REZEQEEK
o CU8  Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the Company’s external auditor attended the 2016 annual general RARINEZBREHEEE S — A NFRRABFRSOZRM -
8 meeting and were available to answer questions.

Practices and conduct of meetings gREFHR L&A
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board EERTHEENBSHAESRETAE T RAZEEFEHL -
and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. EREMESRREZEGSEHRAT Al RBRREGENFHHEREL -

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are generally sent to all Directors %%%ﬁ(#kﬁﬁﬁﬁ@% CERRAENEH -—BRRSEFERINEE
at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest SeRRTHEL=ZAAL2EESRY  BEFESETHEARN TR
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. Hm B R LF BN - BmAERE TELRE -
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The Board meets regularly at least 4 times every year. The Directors participated in person or through electronic
means of communication. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide sufficient notice
to the Directors and facilitate the maximum attendance of the Directors. The Board members are given an
opportunity to include additional matters for discussion and are supplied with relevant information by the senior
management and reports relating to the Group's operational and financial performance before the scheduled
Board meetings in a timely manner.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board and Committee meetings will be sent to all Directors or Committee
members for their comments and records respectively. The Board members can seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Group’s expense, if necessary.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction to be considered by the Board and the Board has determined
this interest to be material, the individual is required to declare his interest and to abstain from voting. At least
1 INED who has no material interest in the transaction shall be present at the full Board meeting approving such
transaction.

Board Committees

The Company currently have 4 committees, namely, the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The attendance of individual
committee members is set out hereinabove.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee plays a vital role in corporate governance of the Group. For the year ended 30 June 2017, it
comprised 3 INEDs, namely Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. Ms. Leung,
who has professional qualifications in accounting and financial management expertise, is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of external auditors and
Internal Audit Department to discharge its duties. The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
results for the year ended 30 June 2017.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. The terms
of reference for the Audit Committee are also aligned with the guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year to review the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Group with an Executive Director, senior management and the Company’s internal and external auditors. It
also discuss matters related to financial reporting, internal controls, risk management, appointment of external
auditors and corporate governance. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the interim and annual
results of the Group. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

The major works of the Audit Committee during the year were as follows:

(@) reviewed the financial results for the year ended 30 June 2016 and interim financial results for the 6 months
ended 31 December 2016;

(b) reviewed the progress report and report on internal audit results and internal controls for the year ended 30
June 2016 and 6 months ended 31 December 2016 prepared by Internal Audit Department respectively; and
(c) approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year ending 30 June 2018 of Internal Audit

Department.

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the external auditor on its independence and objectivity
as required by the HKICPA.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of reference. For the year
ended 30 June 2017, the Remuneration Committee consisted of 1 Executive Director and 3 INEDs, namely Ms.
TSIN Man Kuen Bess, Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. Ms. Leung is the
Chairman for the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set out clearly in the
terms of reference which included the duties specified in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s
website. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

No Director is involved in any decisions as to his own remuneration. The Group’s remuneration policy seeks to
provide a fair market remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate high quality staff. The Company adopted
Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting. The major works of the
Remuneration Committee during the year were as follows:

(@) recommended the proposed adjustments to the remuneration of Executive Directors and their proposed
performance bonus; and

(b) recommended the proposed changes to the remuneration packages of INEDs.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 30 June 2017 is set out
below:

Emolument bands (HK$) Number of persons A%

Below $2,000,000 4
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 1
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 1
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2,500,0017C%3,000,0007T
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

Nomination Committee

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the Nomination Committee comprised 5 members, the majority of which were
INEDs, namely Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (Chairman of the committee), Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund, Dr. LEE Man
Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. The attendance of individual committee members
is set out hereinabove.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

review the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. In identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee shall consider candidates on merit and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board;

review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and review the objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually;

assess the independence of INEDs; and

make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, taking into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the
future, together with the Board, as appropriate.
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During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, to assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and to review
the re-appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee has recommended to the Board for appointment of a new Independent Non-
executive Director, Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, who was appointed by the Board on 20 September 2017 and will
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and eligible offer himself for re-election at the annual
general meeting to be held on 14 November 2017. Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong has also been appointed as the
member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee with effect from 20
September 2017.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated to the Management Committee the authority of dealing with the operational matters
of the Group, save for those matters which are reserved for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the
written terms of reference, which includes taking in charge of major decision making in relation to the day-to-
day business operations of the Company, administering the Company’s routine resolutions and dealing with
adhoc matters, ensuring adequate funding and reporting periodically to the Board. The Management Committee
consists of 3 Executive Directors and assumes full accountability to the Board for all operation of the Group.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged
by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties with its written terms of reference
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate governance code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices and the
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the board meeting held in
September 2016.

Company Secretary

Ms. WONG Suk May joined the Group in 2004 and has been the Company Secretary of the Company since 2007.
She is an employee of a subsidiary of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. As
the Company Secretary, Ms. Wong supports the Board by ensuring board procedures and all applicable law, rules
and regulations are followed. She is responsible for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates
induction and professional development of the Directors. The appointment and dismissal of the company
secretary are subject to the Board approval in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Whilst the Company Secretary
reports to the Chief Executive Officer on the Group’s company secretarial and corporate governance matters, all
Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in the year under
review.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the material risks the Group
is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives. It ensures the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance of the following:

—  compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, policies and procedures;
—  reliability and integrity of financial reporting;

—  effectiveness and efficiency of operations; and

- prevention and detection of fraud and irregularities.

The Bossini Group Policy, which was first issued in 2004 and subject to annual review and renewal by the
designated Group Policy Committee, sets forth a set of standards to govern the operations of the Group in
corporate governance, public relationship, legal, finance, procurement and human resources spheres. It facilitates
the ongoing examination and evaluation of the Group’s compliance with relevant rules and regulations and
of the effectiveness of risk management and internal controls. Employees are required to strictly adhere to the
Bossini Group Policy and encouraged to alert senior management of potential cases of misconduct without fear
of retribution.
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The Group has established policy and procedures for handling and disseminating inside information to ensure
such information is disseminated to the public in a fair and timely manner in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. Access to inside information is strictly confined to relevant senior management and on “as needed”
basis. Relevant parties are reminded to preserve the confidentiality of the inside information until it is publicly
disclosed.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems through the
Audit Committee annually. The review covers all material financial, operational and compliance controls. The
review also covers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications, experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

The Board has delegated to the Risk Management Committee the overall responsibility for leading the
management in the establishment of the appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

Risk Management Committee

The Group formed the Risk Management Committee in 2016, comprising 2 Executive Directors. Senior
management, heads of risks and external advisors may be invited to attend the meetings as and when
appropriate. The responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee include, amongst other things, the
following:

—  determine and review the methodologies employed by management to identify, analyse, evaluate, mitigate,
monitor and report significant risks that may have a material impact on the financial performance or

condition;

— assess and review the nature and extent of the material risks the Group is willing to take in achieving its
strategic objectives;

—  determine and review the Group's risk profiles; and

- review the effectiveness of the Group's risk management functions.
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Internal Audit Function

The Internal Audit Department is an independent and objective function that reports directly to the Audit
Committee twice each year and the Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Charter was approved by the Audit Committee and adopted by the Board. Internal
Audit staff is authorised for audit purposes with unrestricted access to review any information relating to the
Group and to make enquiries to staff concerned.

Internal Audit Activities

The Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-based approach to develop the annual audit plan, which is reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department independently evaluates the Group’s
internal control systems and risk management process on an ongoing basis, which covers the major operations of
the Group. The key tasks include:

reviewing material aspects of the Group’s key activities and corresponding risk management and internal
controls with unrestricted access;

—  conducting regular audits on the work practices, procedures, risk management and internal controls
established by the business units of the Group to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems established;

—  conducting special reviews and investigations into areas of concern identified by management; and

—  conducting post-audit reviews to monitor the corrective and/or remedial actions taken against significant
control failings or weaknesses by relevant business units.

For each audit engagement, Internal Audit Department furnishes objective evaluations and recommendations in
the form of an audit report to management. The Head of Internal Audit directly reports to the Audit Committee
on major audit findings, recommendations for improvement and management responses.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control Effectiveness

Based on the reports from the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee, the Board has conducted
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, covering all
material financial, operational and compliance controls, and it has considered the Group's risk management and
internal control systems to be effective and adequate. There were no suspected material irregularities found or
significant areas of concern identified during the year that might affect shareholders.

The Audit Committee has assisted the Board to review the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and

experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and that all staff are of sufficient competence to carry out their roles and responsibilities.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Bossini Group Policy laid down a code of conduct regarding the director’s securities transactions in terms
as stringent as those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on the specific enquiry made, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Bossini Group Policy throughout the year. Employees are not
encouraged to deal in the securities of the Company within 30 days and 60 days before the interim and the annual
results announcements respectively and prohibited to make use of inside information to deal in the securities of
the Company.

Directors’ interest at 30 June 2017 in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") are set out on
pages 59 to 60.

Financial Reporting and External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Directors acknowledge the responsibility for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the financial position and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Group on a going concern basis
with the support from the Finance Department. The responsibilities of the Group’s external auditor with respect
to the financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 82.

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the Group
amounted to HK$2.54 million, of which a sum of HK$2.15 million was paid to the Group’s principal external
auditor, Ernst & Young (“EY"). The remuneration for EY in respect of audit services and non-audit services
amounted to approximately HK$2.15 million and HK$0.58 million respectively.
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Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2017. The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this annual report.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend
declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set out in, among other things, the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (“Company Act"”).

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or at the registered office of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provision of Section 74(3)
of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called can be sent to the principal place of

business of the Company as set out in the “Company Information” section of this annual report for the attention
of the Company Secretary.
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Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a resolution relating to matters in a general meeting
by following the requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.

Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the Companies Act, on the written requisition of
members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves, the Company shall give Shareholders notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under Bye-Law 102(A) of the Bye-Laws, Shareholders are entitled to elect any person to be a Director at the
annual general meeting or at any special general meeting by following the requirement set out in Bye-Law 103 of
the Bye-Laws. Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available on the Company’s
website at www.bossini.com.

Notice of general meetings and “bundling” resolutions

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3, the Company will arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days
for all other general meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors. Where bundling the resolutions cannot be avoided, the Company
shall explain the reasons and material implications in the notice of the meeting.

Voting by poll

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at general meetings are
contained in the Bye-Laws. In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put to vote at
general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll except where the chairman of the meeting, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands. Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent to Shareholders
prior to each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll. After each
general meeting, the poll results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the
manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders” Communication Policy

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information on the Group to Shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover, additional information
is also available to Shareholders through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board
also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
Shareholder’s meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.
Shareholders could also send email directly at IR@bossini.com for any enquiries.

With effect from 21 September 2016, the company revised the terms of the Shareholders’ communication policy.

Corporate Transparency and Investor Relations

The Group disseminates information on business development on a timely basis through various channels to
maintain transparency of its operation. The Company meets individually with analysts and institutional investors
from time to time to facilitate their analysis on the Group. The Company also holds group meetings with them in
which the Company’s management directly distributes relevant information and addresses to their queries.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents for the year ended 30 June 2017.
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Executive Directors

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess MH, aged 63, was appointed as the Executive Chairman of the Company in October
2010, is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Ms. Tsin joined the Group in November 2009 as the Non-executive Chairman of the Company. She
received the “Medal of Honour” (MH) from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in 2008. Ms. Tsin is currently the permanent advisor of the board of directors of Yan Chai Hospital. She was the
chairman of the board of directors of Yan Chai Hospital from 2007 to 2008, the vice-chairman of the board of
directors of Yan Chai Hospital from 2002 to 2007 and the director of Yan Chai Hospital from 1997 to 2002. She
has over 16 years' experience in serving as the school supervisor of Yan Chai Hospital Ming Tak Kindergarten. She
is responsible for the overall direction of the Group.

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund, aged 53, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group in October
2010, he is also a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Mak graduated from the University
of Windsor, Canada with two Bachelor’s Degrees in Computer Science and Commerce. He is also a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Mak joined the Group in February 2007 as the Director of Finance. He has over 27
years' experience in auditing, financial management and corporate finance in audit firm, consumer electronics
and communications products, real estate service, food retail chain and internet service industries. Mr. Mak is
responsible for the overall management and strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul, aged 46, was appointed as the Executive Director and the Director of Finance of
the Group in August 2010. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada and the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration. He is also a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 23 years’ experience in auditing and financial management with audit firm and
various listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall financial management, legal,
internal audit, investor relation, project, visual merchandising and warehouse management of the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, aged 61, was appointed in September 2017, is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheong is
currently the General Manager and an executive director of Television Broadcasts Limited, a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 511). Mr. Cheong has extensive
experience in the advertising and marketing industry and contributes actively to the professional development
of marketing in Hong Kong through leading marketing industry bodies. He is a Fellow and Executive Committee
Member of the Hong Kong Management Association as well as a Fellow and Hong Kong Regional Board President
of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.

Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond $8s, /p, aged 46, was appointed in September 2004, is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Lee is the
chairman as well as founder of Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2314). Dr. Lee is also an independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Water Group
Limited (stock code: 371) listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Lee was conferred the Honorary Degree of Doctor of
Laws in 2014 and holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Applied Science from the University of British Columbia, Canada.
Dr. Lee is currently involved in a number of public engagements. Dr. Lee has been awarded honorary citizenship
of Dongguan and reputational citizenship of Changshu. Dr. Lee was awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards of
Hong Kong 2002 and the “2003 Hong Kong Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection Awardees”. In addition,
Dr. Lee received the “Silver Bauhinia Star” (SBS) and the “Bronze Bauhinia Star” (BBS) from the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2016 and 2005 respectively, and was also appointed non-official
Justice of the Peace (JP) in 2007. Dr. Lee was also appointed to the CPPCC National Committee in 2008. In 2011,
Dr. Lee was appointed as Vice President of China Paper Association. He is appointed as Seventh President (January
to December 2016) of Centum Charitas Foundation.

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, aged 59, was appointed in September 2004, is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee and a member of Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Leung holds
a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from the University of Queensland, Australia and is a fellow member of CPA
Australia. She has over 32 years’ experience in accounting, securities, corporate finance and related areas. Ms.
Leung is currently an independent non-executive director of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited (stock code:
374) listed on the Stock Exchange. She was an independent non-executive director of Yue Da Mining Holdings
Limited (stock code: 629) from January 2007 to May 2015 and also an executive director of AMCO United Holding
Limited (stock code: 630) from January 2012 to November 2015, both are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. SIN Yat Ming, aged 62, was appointed in October 2005, is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Prof. Sin holds a Doctor of Philosophy
in Business Administration from the University of British Columbia, Canada, a Master of Business Administration
from the University of Texas at Arlington and a Bachelor of Business Administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong (“CUHK"). Prof. Sin had been a member of the Faculty of Business Administration of CUHK for over
31 years. He had also been a professor of Department of Marketing of CUHK and an associate director of CUHK's
Center for Hospitality and Real Estate Research until July 2016 on his retirement. He is serving as the advisor for
the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. He is an independent non-executive director of Hung Fook Tong Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1446) listed on the Stock Exchange.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Business review

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017, including the discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, material events that have occurred and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business are provided in the Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders, the
Management Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate Governance Report on pages 3 to 4, pages 5 to 17
and pages 30 to 50 of this annual report respectively. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year
ended 30 June 2017 by key financial indicators is set out under section headed “Financial and operational
highlights” on the inside front cover. These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Group’s environmental protection, compliance with laws and regulations and relationships with
key stakeholders are discussed below:

Environmental protection

The Group is committed to long term environmental sustainability. We strive to encourage higher
environmental protection awareness at our headquarters, retail stores and warehouse by saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of materials. Energy saving lighting system has been installing in our stores and
headquarters to conserve energy usage. We shall review our environmental practices from time to time and
consider implementing further eco-friendly measures, sustainability targets and practices in the business
operation of the Group to embrace the principles of reduce, recycle and reuse. The Group’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Report is set out on pages 20 to 29 of this annual report.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 %%

vy

EERBEUREARAMAEEHE T —+FRA=ZTHILFEZE
ERBEEREERRAMB]ME

FEER
ARBZEBEBRREER - EXEMB AR 2 T BXBFHBRIIN
RAMBHRRME - AREZEIEXBHERAFELEERET -

¥KEEE

AEEHE-Z—+FANAZTHLEFEEEH QA FRIES BN ARF
MEBEIEFAEMERBRBRR LM - F5ER17EMEREFHED T KE30
FS0EMMEERRE ST EENHASEMASNEZER L TH
ARZE  EANBEEEERAEENRRERERER - AEEEHE
TEHFRNACTHEFEMNRBUEENBERIELN S TAER
HEANBMEREERE] —f ZETmBRAEERREENDD

{/'\ °

AN REBESFBRREIEB RRBRER G M B HRRME3S

BRASEORRRE  WPEORER SRR BN E HBROF
BRI -

RIERE

AEBEIRERBUFEN - BMRE TESHEREEBAHN
AELBERKDE  BORSRAREH - ASBMN/ERHRAIE LR
EigE RS R ARV BEIRE A - PG TR RREHE - UERER
EENEBEETERE PHEERRTER  JHEFERER N
BEEH - B RBAMRA - N EBZRE - e RERAREHN AR
FHEFE20E29H -



Business review (continued)

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the operations of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Relationships with key stakeholders

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

Employees

The Group believes that employees are essential to the success of its business. The Group is passionately
committed to developing and training the staff and provides the employees with rewarding career paths
and people-friendly working environments. The Group has continued to offer regular and substantial
training programmes, such as the “7 Habits®” and "7 Practices” courses. These programmes not only
crystallise the “bossini way” and exemplify the Group’s investment in the talent, but also motivate the
Group's employees as well.

Customers

We strive to achieve corporate sustainability in providing quality products and services to our customers.
To ensure continuous improvement of the quality of products and services, the Group regularly conduct
internal and external market surveys to gain market insights and feedback.

Suppliers

We understand the importance to work closely with our suppliers to ensure the sustainability of our
business. The Group has established long standing relationships with a number of suppliers and to ensure
they share our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group has established an internal anti-bribery policy
of which our suppliers are also aware.

Shareholders and Investors

We believe effective communication and accurate and timely information disclosure facilitates the
flow of constructive feedback and ideas that are beneficial for investor relations and future corporate
development.
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Results and dividends
The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2017 and the Group's financial position at 30 June 2017 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 191.

A special interim dividend of HK1.22 cents per ordinary share was paid by the Company on 5 April 2017. The
directors recommend the payments of a final dividend of HK1.22 cents per ordinary share and a special final
dividend of HK0.61 cent per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders whose names appear on
the principal or branch register of members of the Company in Bermuda or Hong Kong respectively on 22
November 2017.

Summary of financial information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 30 June 2013,
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017, as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial statements, is set
out on page 75. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Share capital and share options
There was no movement in the Company'’s authorised share capital during the year.

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share options during the year are set out in
notes 28 and 29, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Distributable reserves

At 30 June 2017, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$187,656,000, of which HK$19,980,000 and
HK$9,990,000 have been proposed as a final dividend and a special final dividend for the year, respectively.
Under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$28,223,000, may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Major customers and suppliers FEEFREER

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s largest customer and 5 largest customers accounted for 12% REBER HETASBSEARELATP Z8ES MG RN FEEH
and 27% of the total sales for the year, respectively. BEEE12%M27% ©

Purchases from the Group'’s largest supplier and 5 largest suppliers accounted for 8% and 30% of the total MAEESFAREAAEEERE BB MG AFEAEETHI% X
purchases for the year, respectively. 30% ©

Save as disclosed in note 35(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements, none of the directors of the Company BRI GRE BTSRRI FE35@) ()T R E N BIEA N R E N FE S 2B
or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than BALTHEABRESARMNE S BIBS%AD R D EITRA Z KRR

5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's 5 largest suppliers. EBERAHERTRHEEANERER -
Directors =}

The directors of the Company during the year were: REFE - ARAIZEFWT

Executive directors: HITESE:

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess EE|/RT

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund BEESLE

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul BRE Sk T

Independent non-executive directors: BYEHITES :

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong (appointed on 20 September 2017) HEREE(R_E—LFNA-THEZE)
Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond FXEEL

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han REWZ LT

Prof. SIN Yat Ming A=L:EE €5
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul and Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond,
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond will not offer
himself for re-election, and that Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, who was appointed on 20 September
2017, will hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms.
LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming, and considers them to be independent.

Directors’ biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on pages 51 to 53 of the annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ remuneration
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group has been set up by the board of directors or executive
directors on the basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments payable to the directors of the Company will be decided by the board of directors on the

recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares

At 30 June 2017, the interests of the directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ”Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FREE - SORERMEE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERBEE

EERRORERRKRG 2ERE

R-F—EFERNA=1TH  EERARFNEBEEE (ABEEF LGS
0] ([582 R AERH]) EXVERFIRE T 208 3%) 2 IRA RARRERR (-
BEEARNAERES RPEGRDIEI2GTE 2 BLMACE s Ea
HRBE LT RRERFETESFRXZNEETR (BETR ) BAMNGEAR
AIREBEEMEZGAARRE (BT 2 EmNT -

0 =7 s 37 [JIL PN
RARG]EBRZ LB

Directly Percentage of
beneficially the Company’s
Note owned Total issued shares
DT
Name of director hE=s BEEERES & EBRITROEIL EEHE
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (a) 1,093,091,098 1,093,091,098 66.74 e/t

(A)]
(©]
<
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares (continued)
Long positions in share options of the Company

Number of share options
directly beneficially owned

EERROREBRE 2 ()
AL FIBIREZ A B

Name of directors BEEERHEEZEREHE EENR

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 8,750,000 [ =3 =R gum

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 23,178,000 BEENAE

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 7,760,000 CCE las
39,688,000

Note: 5T

(@)  Such interests arose by attribution through her spouse, Mr. LAW Ka Sing, whose interests have been mentioned in the
section headed “Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, none of the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section
“Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Share option scheme ERESE
The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and RARFRERERT B ([ZEHELD %E‘Eﬁ’*&ﬁﬁbﬁ$ﬁl¥ﬁf’ﬁﬂjﬁ
Bl EERBEE - ZtE 2 HBREE M MRM 2905 E -

rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Further details of the

Scheme are disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

Number of share options

TRBEEFARRR] HAITERREZ ZE)

BREHE
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of price of
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period share options
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-RE RZE—t#F REBRERD BREGTEE
SEATHEHER tA-H FRRE ERTHR FREK ARA=TA (Pit3ta) BRETES (BizEb)
HK$
per share
BRBET
Directors %
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 800,000 - - - 800,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780
BERLL “Z-TE+ATCH I Y Hi_7_7¢+ﬂ+ &
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780
—“T-TE+ATCH T CHTATZHEZZ-TETATH
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“T-TF+A+ZH T-RETATZRE-ZTETAT-H
2,500,000 - - (750,000) 1,750,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570
—T-=%+-AZH GESO)
- 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495
—T-RF+ANA “E-NF+ANHEZE-E-~FEt+A=H
6,500,000 3,000,000 - (750,000) 8,750,000
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Share option scheme (continued) ERERTE (&)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

TEREBFARRBHRTERREZZS : ()

BREZR
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of price of
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period share options
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-RF RZB-t#% RBRERS BRETEE
SEATHEGER tA-H FRR FRITHR FREB  KSA=TH (Ktzta) BRETES (Bztb)
HKS
per share
BRBET
Directors £

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 678,000 - - - 678,000 5July 2010 (note (i) 0.503

EEERE “Z-TE+ARA (P &Ec(i))
2,800,000 - - - 2,800,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780

“T-TE+ATCH “T——%t+A+TZHE 777¢+H+ B
4,200,000 - - - 4,200,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780

“Z-TFTAtZH R TATZREETFTATA
7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780

“E-TFTATZA —RETATZAZ-Z_ZETA+—H
5,000,000 - - (1,500,000) 3,500,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570

“E-=%+-AZH GES0)
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495

—T-RFTANA “Z-NFTARBE-Z-~%1+A=H

19,678,000 5,000,000 - (1,500,0000 23,178,000
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Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:
(continued)

Number of share options

BREHR
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of price of
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period share options
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-RF RZB-t# REBRERD BRETREE
SEATHEZER tA-H FRRE ERfTE FREB  KSA=TH (Fit3ta) BRETES (Wi%
HK
per share
BB
Directors %
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 240,000 - (240,000) - - 19 November 2007 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 0.370
S “ETHFT-AtNR “EENET-ATNREZZ2—t45+-AT/NA
360,000 - (360,000) - - 19 November 2007 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 0.370
“ZTHFT-ATNE “EENE+—ATHABRE=Z—tF+-A+/NR
600,000 - (600,000) - - 19 November 2007 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 0.370
“ZZHFT-ATAE E-ZET-ATAREZZ—tFT-ATNH
210,000 - - - 210,000 5 July 2010 (note c(i)) 0.503
“T-TELARA (P &Ec(i))
560,000 - - - 560,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780
—T-TFETA+ZH —E——ftATZ Hi_7_7¢+ﬂ+ =]
840,000 - - - 840,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“E2-TF+A+TZH T =51+ATZAE-Z-TETA+-
1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“T-ZTF+A+ZH ZE-RAFTATZREZSEET AT
2,500,000 - - (750,000) 1,750,000 2 December 2013 (noye d(i)) 0.570
—Z-=%+-A=H (B £Ed())
- 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495
—T-RFt+ANA —E-NFETAMBE-ZE-RETA=H
6,710,000 3,000,000 (1,200,000) (750,000) 7,760,000
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Share option scheme (continued) ERERTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREEFARRABARITEEREZZS : (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHA
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of price of
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period share options
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-RF RZB-t#% REBRERD BRETEE
SEATHEGER tA-H FRR FRITHR FREB  KSA=TH (Ktzta) BRETES (Bztb)
HKS
per share
BB
Other employees £ 1t1{E S
In aggregate 600,000 - - - 600,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530
& —ZEHE L AMA —ZE\FtANAZE-F—+tFtA=H
900,000 - - - 900,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—ZTZHEANA “E-ZFE+tANAZE-T—+tFtA=H
3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530
“ETEE L ANA E-—Ft+tAMAZE-E—t+tFtA=H
240,000 - - - 240,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 0.370
“EEEET—-ATHA ZEEN\F+-ATNABEZZ—+F+—ATN\B
360,000 - - - 360,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 0.370
“ZRHF+-ATNE “EENFt-ATHhBEE=Z2—t&+-A+/NR
600,000 - - - 600,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 0.370

“EZLF+-ATAR —E-EF+-AtNAREZ—tF+—-At/NR
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Share option scheme (continued) ERERE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREEFALRRABARITEEREZZS) : (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHA
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of price of
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period share options
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-RF RZB—t# REBRERH BRECTEE
SHEATHESER tA-H FRRE ERITHR EREB  KSA=TH (Mita) BRETES <rrra£b%
HK
per share
BRRAB®ET
Other employees EitiES
In aggregate 600,000 - - - 600,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 0.160
A _77/\¢+H +—A ZEENETA=T-AEZZ-/\FTA=TH
900,000 - - - 900,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 0.160
“ET\ETA=+-H ZE——F+A=t-HEZT-\FTA=1AH
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 31 October 2008 1 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 0.160
“EE\FTA=+—A :%——ﬁﬁ-ﬂ T—RZE-Z-/\§+A=1H
480,000 - - - 480,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 0.456
—T-T£_AMA “T—F5ZAMAZE-Z-TEC-A=
720,000 - - - 720,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 0.456
—“T-TF_AWA T _AMAZE-TCTEC
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 0.456
—Z-ZF_AMA T CE_ANAE-_TTEC
2,608,000 - - (240,000 2,368,000 5 July 2010 (note c(i)) 0.503
“T-TF+LARA (B &Ec(i))
992,000 - - - 992,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“E-TE+ATZA T Ei—§—7¢+ﬂ+ =
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Share option scheme (continued) ERERTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREEFARRABARITEEREZZS : (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHA
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of price of
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period share options
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-RF RZB-t#% REBRERD BRETREE
SEATHEGER tA-H FRRE ERTE FREB  KSA=TH (Ktzta) BRETES (W%%
HK
per share
BB
Other employees £ftiES
In aggregate 648,000 - - - 648,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 0.780
et “T-TF+A+ZH T CHTATZHEZZ-TETATH
1,920,000 - - - 1,920,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“T-TE+A+CH =T ATZHEZZ-TETATH
1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780
—T-TFETA+ZH E-AFETAT-RE-Z-24+A+—A
82,000 - - - 82,000 3 January 2011 (note clii) 0.922
—E——F—-A=H (P 3Ec(i)
54,000 - - - 54,000 4 July 2011 (note c(iii)) 0.880
—T——%+tAmA (W (i)
32,000 - - (32,000) - 3 January 2012 (note c(iv) 0.590
—T—_%-A=H (FisEciv)
240,000 - - - 240,000 3 July 2012 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2022 0.490
"%t A=RH “E-=HtA=-RE-S-_4+tACH
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Share option scheme (continued) ERERE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREEFALRRABARITEEREZZS) : (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHA
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of price of
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period share options
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-RF RZB-—t#% REBRERD BRETEE
SEATHEZER tA-H FRRi FRITR FREB  KSA=TH (Fit3ta) BRETES (Bztb)
HK
per share
BRRB®ET
Other employees £ftiES
In aggregate 360,000 - - - 360,000 3 July 2012 3 July 2014 to 2 July 2022 0.490
e “T--45tA=H “T-WEAZAE-T5+AZH
600,000 - - - 600,000 3 July 2012 3 July 2015 to 2 July 2022 0.490
“E--%+A=H “Z-AFtA-AZE-E--FtA=H
90,000 - - - 90,000 3 July 2012 (note c(v)) 0.490
—Z-—#F+A=H (B Ecv)
240,000 - - - 240,000 2 January 2013 2 January 2014 to 1 January 2023 0.425
~“T-=%-A-H —E-MF-AZAZEZZ-=4—-f—H
360,000 - - - 360,000 2 January 2013 2 January 2015 to 1 January 2023 0.425
—“T-=F-A-H “E-LF-AZRE_T_=%-f-H
600,000 - - - 600,000 2 January 2013 2 January 2016 to 1 January 2023 0.425
—Z-=%-AZH T AF-AZRE-T-=§—-A—H
38,440,000 - - (16,054,000) 22,386,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570
—T-=%+-A=H GELO)
492,000 - - (244,000) 248,000 2 January 2014 (note d(ii)) 0.570
“T-mFE-A-AH (P (i)

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEIFREEABR DA 67



il
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS §%

EERHEE ”4,{&
Share option scheme (continued) ERERTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREEFARRABARITEEREZZS : (B)

(continued)

Number of share options

BREHE
Date of Exercise
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At grant of price of
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June share options Exercise period share options
of participants 2016 the year the year the year 2017 (note a) of share options (note b)
RZB-RF RZB-—t#F REBRERS BRECTEE
SEATHESER tA-H FRRE ERT FrRlk  KSA=tH (Pita) BRETES (&Ha?bj);
HK
per share
BRAE®T
Other employees £ftiES
In aggregate 122,000 - - (122,000) - 3 March 2014 (note d(iii) 0.714
B “E-ME=H=H (B i)
568,000 - - (170,000) 398,000 2 July 2015 (note d(iv)) 0.740
—T-hE+AZH (P EEd(iv))
v 276,000 - - (248,000) 28,000 4 January 2016 (note d(v)) 0.590
= T "E—AWNA (P Ed(v))
c?
% - 22,000 - - 22,000 3 October 2016 (note d(vi) 0.496
O “T-R"ETA=R (P &Ed(vi))
- 45,100,000 - (620,000) 44,480,000 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495
—T-~F+AEA “Z-NF+ANRE-Z-AF+HAZA
- 620,000 - - 620,000 1 June 2017 28 November 2019 to 31 May 2027 0.460

“E—+F B E-NAFt-A-t+N\HE-Z-tF#HA=1—H

61,724,000 45,742,000

(17,730,000) 89,736,000

94,612,000 56,742,000 (1,200,0000  (20,730,000) 129,424,000

68 ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 %%



b
&

=

Share option scheme (continued)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

(a)

(b)

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees
and the achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2013,
including but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance
targets. The share options or any portion thereof shall be forfeited if the relevant 3-year corporate goals
cannot be achieved.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:

(i) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020.

(i) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021.

(iii) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021.

(iv) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2022.

(v) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 July 2022.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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B HERT 8 ()
FARRITERBRES KM T

(a)

(b)

BRESBEHREREDAEAEETERHEMABAL -

FERAE 2 T EE AR B AR S B ITALAR
HEWTIAHE -

AR B RA Z E AR L

BRENEBXENARANKREBE_T—=FXA=1H
IF=F8/ AEEEIN ="FEEE R (BRETRRVEREKRE
B PHBEREERRABR) FHEMHRR - WA ERBHE=-F&HE
B1% - HERRE S B O S &g W e

BT EHIT

() BHBAEEHE "T—=FA=1THILFEZEERFE
EENMBREENEERARGTE E-F_FFLAWA -

(i) ATIEAEEHEEZ_F
E- PN

—ZHERA=ZTHLFEZREREA
MR ERNEEARGTE E-F-_—F—-H-H-

(i) BHBEAEEHE "T—=FA=THILFEZKERFE
RENMREENEERAMGTE E-FT_—FELH=H-

vy BHIBEAEEHE " T—=F A=1THILFEZEERFE
RENMREENEERAMGTE E-F_—_F—-H_-H-

(v BHAEBAEEHZE —T-—=FA=1THILFEZEERGE
RENMREENEEAMGTE E-F-__FEH-H-

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEIFREEABR DA

69



n

()
o
s
c g

o 11
(o)
G

70

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESRBREE

Share option scheme (continued)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year: (continued)

(d) Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees
and the achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2016,
including but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance
targets. The share options or any portion thereof shall be forfeited if the relevant 3-year corporate goals
cannot be achieved.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:

(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023.

(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 January 2024.

(iii) From 1 November 2016 to 2 March 2024.

(iv) From 1 November 2016 to 1 July 2025.

(v) From 1 November 2016 to 3 January 2026.

(vi) From 1 November 2016 to 2 October 2026.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 27 August 2017, 76,000, 442,000 and 780,000 share
options granted to an employee on 5 July 2010, 2 December 2013 and 4 October 2016, respectively, were
forfeited with exercise prices of HK$0.503 per share, HK$0.570 per share and HK$0.495 per share, respectively,
and exercise periods from the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020, from 1 November 2016 to 1
December 2023 and from 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026, respectively. The price of the Company’s shares

at the date of forfeiture was HK$0.435 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading
day immediately prior to the date of forfeiture of the options.
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Tﬁ CMBREERRBR) FHRERR - MAREXNEHE=FEE
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EREITERDT

() AZE—RFt+—A—HEEZE-ZTE-_=F+-_H—H-

(i) AZE—RFt+—A—HEZ2-_ZT_WNF—HF—H-

(i) B-ZT—XF+—A—B#E2_T_WMF=A_H-

vy BZE—RF+—A—HEBEZ-_ZE_AFtHA—H-

vy A-ZE—R"Et+—A—BRE-Z-F—H=R-

Vi) HZZE—AR"F+—F—BREE_ZTE-_F+HA-H-
RBEMKE R-E—+FNA-++H DR - —ZF+A
AR —E—=F+_A-BAER-_ZE—RE+tANBET—LEEZ
76,00017 i i 4 - 442,00017 i A #E 12 780,00017 i i B 4 )8 UK + 7713
F“ﬂﬁth%%ﬁ%m TR 0.5707 R &I B £0.4957T  171F

DR AETIBAEBREE_T— :EAH7+E¢¢FZW$ﬁﬁé
%F“%éiﬁmM%Hﬁ%'ﬁ_%_7¢tﬂma T —NF
+—A—BRE_ZT_=F+= ﬂfE&m_T*ﬂ¢+ﬂ@H£§

TECARETAZR - ARAKRORKW A HZ BB RERER0.435
T AEEBRER KBS AEBZ A2 WmE -



Share option scheme (continued)

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the exercise date of the share options was
HK$0.475 per share. The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates on which
the options were granted on 3 October 2016, 4 October 2016 and 1 June 2017 were HK$0.490 per share,
HK$0.490 per share and HK$0.460 per share, respectively.

The directors have estimated the values of the share options granted during the year, calculated using the
trinomial option pricing model as at the date of grant of the options:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERBEE

BT E (]

ARNAIEHRBEEERETE BB 2 W EAESIREK0.4755T - A
NERHREEEREE-_ZT—<F+AZA —T—XF+AMNAR
—E—EFXA-ABRE BB ZWTES B AEREE.4907T
1% 8 #0.4907T & & I% B #0.4607T °

EERACEARETERXAHFAEREERENE LB ZE
B :

Number of share Theoretical
options granted value of
during the year share options
FRERUBREZE BREZERER
HK$°000
Grantees BET T ARA
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 3,000,000 440 BEBLt
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 5,000,000 734 Py A=y
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 3,000,000 440 fRE A
Other employees 45,742,000 6,709 HiEE
56,742,000 8,323

The trinomial model is a generally accepted method of valuing options, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the
values of the share options were the risk-free interest rate, expected life of options, expected volatility and
expected dividend. The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The measurement dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the trinomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations,
due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the expected future
performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the
variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

ZHEABATNEBRRAZBREGEE  ErfEBRETEETRHEE
iz ERGHEGEE - RAEBREEESMERAZEARRAE
[R\Ba A% - BEEETRET S H] - FRAUK B R IBHIRL S, o BRI Z TRET F 1]
DIRBEBETFZELBEET  ROERRAELIR 2 BRETE
B - FEER B HIRIBESLRB EHBEARRBY  SORMBEEBTERMN
RebEMERZFERSRBRERLBH -

(A)]
(©]
<
)
=
=]
Q
>
(a)
o

N=BA RN E 2 EREEEZEEEDNRFINE TRE  EF 8%
RIARRRRMENZERRISE M2 TBRABRAFERE - UK
AHEREARAERS

BREEEERMETIBRE TRERMES - SHEK LA
BB LR AT EEENEARE -
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Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which any of the
Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Permitted indemnity provision

The Bye-Laws provides that each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has
maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the
Directors.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares

At 30 June 2017, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital and share options of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:

Long positions

: " \é’/

:},3;;;_.';‘_;_ .

EERRE  ZFREGHNP 2
AEEREEFAEE I HERBEARREANBARASTMYAR

SEXBEEAFEZEARS RHHAANTEXLRREREENE
BERFRERX

RAARAMRE  ARARBEF R MR AR B BB BRENNITRE
RSBl M A RE IR B BUZ FRE BAARETS - A RRNEET RS
FE - W ARFCHEETERNBBEIRTHRBEANEERD
FEE B ENRR -

FERRRRO REERKREG 2 #S

RIB—LFRA=1TH AR EREFMAGKIE6KRFEZ
BEBRMET  THALRARFCBEITRARBRERHEF5%K
DA e

R

Number of Percentage of

ordinary Number of share the Company’s

Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held options held issued shares

EARABBHT

"E S RESEMEE FFEEREE B RER B RHBE DL
Mr. LAW Ka Sing Directly beneficially owned

BRESLLE ERERER 1,093,091,098 - 66.74
Family interest

ENY i - 8,750,000 0.53
Total

4z 1,093,091,098 8,750,000 67.27
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, no person, other than the directors of the Company, whose
interests are also set out in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of public float
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of the Company
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the transactions are included in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Purchase of garments

On 5 May 2015, the Group renewed the Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Laws
International Group Limited (“Laws International”), for purchases of garments for the period from 1 July 2015
to 30 June 2018. Laws International is wholly owned by a trustee of a discretionary trust set up by a relative of
Mr. LAW Ka Sing (“Mr. Law") of which such relative and his family members are eligible discretionary objects
of the trust. Mr. Law is a substantial shareholder of the Company and the spouse of Ms. TSIN Man Kuen
Bess, a director of the Company. According to the Purchase Agreement, the annual values of the purchases
of garments from Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the years ended 30 June 2016 and
30 June 2017 and the year ending 30 June 2018 will not exceed HK$217,500,000, HK$261,000,000 and
HK$313,000,000, respectively. The prices of the products are to be determined by reference to the prevailing
market prices.
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ESRBREE

Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions (continued)

Purchase of garments (continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in relation to the purchases of garments set out above and have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant Purchase Agreement and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company have further confirmed that the values of purchases of
garments from Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2017 did not
exceed HK$261,000,000.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young has issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Auditor
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

TSIN Man Kuen Bess
Chairman

Hong Kong
20 September 2017
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TENERE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 30 June 2013, 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017, as extracted from the
published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out below.

UTAAEREEZ - — = "A=1tH —ZT—NFA=1TH —T—RHFRA=1TH T FR"EXNA=ZTHE - Z—+HFRAA=1THIHAAFEZEZE BEENBERE - I
trE B TIBKEEZGRA M ERE -

Results ¥#4&
Year ended 30 June

BERA=THLEFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tF —E—REF —ET—hF —E—OF —E-=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T IT BT T BT T T IT
REVENUE Yz 2,019,890 2,319,265 2,523,369 2,548,040 2,517,167
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & & %3557 9,764 304,306 132,437 154,994 46,132
Finance costs @i & Ak X - - - - (81)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX K% A15%Fl 9,764 304,306 132,437 154,994 46,051
Income tax expense FT{S i =2 (4,878) (12,185) (17,078) (27,898) (23,842)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
RATEEAEGEERNER 4,886 292,121 115,359 127,096 22,209
Assets and Liabilities EER & &
At 30 June
RAAB=+H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—+tF —E—RF —E—RF —E—OF =4 -
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 g'
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT IT =
s —.
=)
TOTAL ASSETS BEE#AE 1,232,745 1,323,912 1,149,108 1,154,253 1,084,347 5] g
S
TOTAL LIABILITIES & &4 & (277,377) (332,174) (346,892) (352,004) (355,743) %3
Q
~+
955,368 991,738 802,216 802,249 728,604 ©
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To the shareholders of Bossini International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bossini International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 191, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 30 June 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Key audit matters

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit

addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

financial statements.

Key audit matter
Inventory provision

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had inventories
of HK$238,587,000, which represented 19% of
the Group's total assets. The Group is principally
engaged in retailing, distribution and wholesaling of
garments. The apparel industry is highly correlated to
seasonal factors, economic environments, customers’
preferences and competitor actions which affect
the amount of inventory provision to be provided.
The Group has an inventory provision policy and
such provision is made for obsolete, damaged, slow-
moving, excess and other inventory items whose
costs may not be fully recoverable. Such inventory
provision is estimated by management through the
application of subjective judgement and assumptions
with reference to data such as historical sales pattern
and expected subsequent sales based on internal
budget and certain market factors.

The accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures of the amount of inventory provision
are included in notes 3 and 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures over identifying and valuing obsolete,
damaged, slow-moving, excess and other inventory
items whose costs may not be fully recoverable included
the performance of physical counts on inventories
and reviewing the inventories aging report. We also
evaluated the Group’s inventory policy and the inputs
and assumptions used by the Group in calculating the
impairment by comparing management's calculations
for consistency against those used in the prior year and
assessing the percentage used for provision by comparing
to the historical consumption. Also, we assessed the
amount of the impairment recorded by reviewing sales
record throughout the year as well as sales after the year
end and comparing the subsequent sales pattern with
historical sales record.
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Key audit matters (continued)
Key audit matter

Property, plant and equipment impairment
assessment

At 30 June 2017, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of HK$52,026,000 which represented
approximately 4% of the Group's total assets.
Impairment assessment was conducted for property,
plant and equipment of each individual cash-
generating unit which generates independent cash
flows. The Group determines impairment provision
based on the cashflow forecast of each cash-
generating unit. The evaluation process is inherently
subjective, and dependent on a number of estimates,
which include, among others, estimated future store
performance, economic environment, sales growth
rate and discount rate applied.

The accounting judgements and estimates and the
disclosure about impairment of property, plant and
equipment are included in the notes 3 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management's impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment included,
among others, evaluation of the bases and key assumptions
adopted in estimating the value in use of the cash-
generating units. We assessed the assumptions about sales
growth rate, discount rate, overall market and economic
conditions and the respective effect to each cash-
generating unit by comparing the recent historical financial
performance with the cash flow forecasts, discussing
business plans with senior management and comparing
the sales growth rate and discount rate with economic
data and our industry knowledge. Also, we checked the
reasonableness and relevancy of the input data used.

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZBER S

Other information included in the Annual Report (continued)
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZBER S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)
— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ki Wing Yee, Winnie.
Ernst &Young

Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central

Hong Kong

20 September 2017
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L] LSTATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeBEH H@iﬁﬂ&éi’%

Year ended 30 June 2017 BHE-T—+FA=THILFE

Notes 2017 2016
in HK$ thousand M —Z—tF —E—RF BT
REVENUE 5 2,019,890 2,319,265 W&
Cost of sales (996,471) (1,212,364) THER A
GROSS PROFIT 1,023,419 1,106,901 ER
Other income and gains 5 57,918 297,974 ﬁﬁﬁuﬁz)\&uﬁz
Selling and distribution expenses (805,883) (828,234) HE LD #HAX
Administrative expenses (230,735) (230,999) TEA ﬁ
Other operating expenses (34,955) (41,336) Hith & BRI
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 9,764 304,306 BEXBER
Finance costs - - AR
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 9,764 304,306 R %4 A 35
Income tax expense 10 (4,878) (12,185) FrigFif X
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS ARAERAEE
OF THE COMPANY 4,886 292,121 FREF
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Htr2mBas/ (BR)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be reclassified to RERBESERIBEERZ
profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hib2mas, (BE) :
Change in fair value of an available-for-sale investment 16 609 (427) AHHERE 2 AT EED
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign operation FRIEEM BN RH
deregistered during the year 129 (889) BEHNBAE
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (4,365) (14,316) HEINETE 7 H IR EER
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS TO BE RERHESEFR 2 EEEGE L
RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT Ht2HEFER
PERIODS (3,627) (15,632)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ARAREAREER =
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 1,259 276,489 2HKRHAE %
sm Q.
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ARABERERFRA ﬁn_J
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 12 EhEEREF ;]; =
w=L
Basic HK0.30 cent &1l HK17.87 cents /&1l BN i%
Diluted HK0.30 cent Ll HK17.80 cents 1l 5 %«
S
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) > CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
..

O
——

= = N Z7 :
%— FEBRR R g i ¢
30June 2017 —E—+t&~A=1H i ' \
i
I |
Notes 2017 2016
in HK$ thousand Mz —E—tF ZE-RF BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment 13 52,026 76,118 ME - BERSE
Investment property 14 22,079 23,847 wEYE
Trademark 15 1,164 1,164 EmiE
Available-for-sale investment 16 233,177 232,568 AEHERE
Note receivable 17 38,775 - 874 )
Deferred tax assets 27 10,571 9,638 EERBEEE
Deposits paid 20 78,035 74,212 BEffR&
Total non-current assets 435,827 417,547 RBEELE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 18 238,587 259,803 BE
Debtors 19 58,956 51,680 FE MR K
Bills receivable 31,031 12,351 EWEE
Deposits paid 20 28,532 34,475 BEffRE
Tax recoverable 6,189 4,016 BEEEE
Prepayments and other receivables 21 37,389 32,434 TEA FRIE I EoAth JE U AR 1R
Derivative financial instruments 25 - 18 TEEMTA
Pledged bank deposit 22 770 722 EEARTER
Cash and cash equivalents 22 395,464 510,866 RekBReEEER
Total current assets 796,918 906,365 mEEELE
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Deferred gain 9 23,333 23,333 EIEW S \
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 23 190,611 212,945 FENERR - HMENRIBERETEREE
Bills payable 25,878 30,755 FNES
Tax payable 7,287 8,222 R IB
Due to related companies 24 2,311 7,865 JE 1T B8 N B FUE
Derivative financial instruments 25 3,294 151 TEemMIA
Total current liabilities 252,714 283,271 mBEEEE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 544,204 623,094 FEEETRE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 980,031 1,040,641 BRABEEREEHAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PR
@

/’)J h@% nVT = /\jﬁ%;’jﬁ ‘R'%%
30June 2017 —Z—+tFXxA=+H
|
Notes 2017 2016
in HK$ thousand Mz —E—tF ZE-RF BETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBaE
Deferred gain 9 20,888 44,221 B
Deferred tax liabilities 27 1,403 2,374 ELHBEAE
Other payables 23 2,372 2,308 Hib e F0A
Total non-current liabilities 24,663 48,903 RBBEEAE
Net assets 955,368 991,738 BEFE
EQUITY gy
Issued capital 28 163,774 163,654 BEITRA
Reserves 30 791,594 828,084 f@iE
Total equity 955,368 991,738 EmiaE
i
-]
Q
a
o
]
oS
73
oy
MAK Tak Cheong Edmund & & CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B =5 g'
Director 2% Director &
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GEERSEBRR

Year ended 30 June 2017 BE-T—+FA=THILFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Available-
Share Share Capital Contributed for-sale Asset  Exchange Reserve
Issued  premium option reserve surplus investment revaluation fluctuation funds  Retained Total
Notes capital  account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve reserve (note ¢) profits equity
in HK$ thousand BB i) BRE BXR{E SARS  THEHE BB NER® REES
BT i3 R HER 513 GED) (fisth) RERME EHEE 513 (et REBF  EREE
At 1 July 2016
RZZ—-"F+H—H 163,654 27,688 23,095 (3,292) 90,258 (427) 9,395 3,075 1,810 676,482 991,738
Profit for the year
REREH - - - - - - - - - 4,886 4,886
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year:
AEEEMEAEKE/ (B1B)
Change in fair value of an available-for-sale
investment
HHEREZ A TFEED - - - - - 609 - - - - 609
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign
operation deregistered during the year
FAIATTENES 2
BEHNRAE - - - - - - - 129 - - 129
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations
BEBIEB I HAER - - - - - - - (4.365) - - (4,365)
Total comprehensive income for the year
FREERSRE - - - - - 609 - (4.236) - 4,886 1,259
Special final 2016 dividend declared
EER-F-AFHHIRBES 1 - - - - - - - - - (19.966)  (19,966)
Special interim 2017 dividend
R FRARHRE n - - - - - - - - - (19.980)  (19,980)
Exercise of share options
TTER R 28 120 535 (211) - - - - - - - 444
Equity-settled share option arrangements
BEaEERRELH 29 - - 1,873 - - - - - - - 1,873
At 30 June 2017
RZZ—tF A=1H 163,774 28,223* 24,757* (3,292)* 90,258* 182* 9,395* (1,161)* 1,810*  641,422* 955,368
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

sl () — DR
“hy HAEEZBRE
™ I Year ended 30 June 2017 BHE-T—+FA=THILFE
|
Available-
Share Share Capital  Contributed for-sale Asset  Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus  investment  revaluation  fluctuation funds Retained Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve reserve (note ¢ profits equity
in HK$ thousand BT R BhiE BXRBE S.B% THDE BE  ER HEES
BETT (i A i B f# (Ftzta) (Wzxb) RERE EREE &t (W) REEN BE5eE
At 1 July 2015
R_ZE-HE+LA—H 162,960 22,770 24,048 (3,292) 90,258 - 9,395 18,280 1,810 475,987 802,216
Profit for the year
REREM - - - - - - - - - 292,121 292,121
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
AEFEMPAEFE
Change in fair value of an available-for-sale
investment
AHEREC ATEES - - - - - (427) - - - - (427)

Reclassification adjustment for a foreign

operation deregistered during the year
FRIUEMENEB

ENHERE - - - - - - - (889) - - (889)
Exchange differences on translation

of foreign operations

BEBNEB A BEE - - - - - - - (14,316) - - (14,316)
Total comprehensive income for the year
FREERRER - - - - - (427) - (15,205) - 292,121 276,489
Final 2015 dividend declared
EER-_Z-LFRAKE - - - - - - - - - (71,664)  (71,664)
Special interim 2016 dividend -
ZE-RERRIFEBERE " - - - - - - - - - (19,962) (19,962) =3
Exercise of share options 3
1TiE AR E 28 694 4,918 (2,119) - - - - - - - 3,493 =g
Equity-settled share option arrangements 50 g
EREERREL 29 - - 1,166 - - - - - - - 1,166 I S

%3

At 30 June 2016 =
RZE—-—R"E~A=+H 163,654 27,688* 23,095* (3,292)* 90,258* 427)* 9,395* 3,075% 1,810* 676,482* 991,738 g

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEIFREEABR DA




: <l
> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY \\%
o BOREBDER 2

thS s
Year ended 30 June 2017 HE-T—tHFA=1HILFE S
'
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$791,594,000 (2016: HK$828,084,000) in the * WEREREELSYRGREVBMRRKRAZERE FEHEB’ET791,594,0007T (=
consolidated statement of financial position. T —X4F 1 B 1828,084,0007T) °
Notes: T
(@) The capital reserve of the Group represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years. () AEBZEAREBEABATFTFERENBARIFMEEZEE -

(b) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued (b) AEEZHABRBRABEARFCETRACZHERARARMR—AN=

by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and the share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired FLIMAREEREAMKEZHBRARZBRARRKRN mERAE
pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993. EFE o

(c) In accordance with the financial regulations applicable in mainland China, a portion of the profit of a subsidiary in () RIBEANFBIAREE BRG] - FBIKfE—FEM B AR 2 55 % F
mainland China has been transferred to the reserve funds which are restricted as to use. BREARVAEHEES -

c
19
+—
@
S
fu
O
“
S
©
1%}
C
@
=S
L

88 ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 %%



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HVT iﬁ:ﬁ/ﬂbi%

Year ended 30 June 2017 BHE-T—+FA=THILFE

Notes 2017 2016
in HK$ thousand MisE —ZE-tF —E—RF BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEXRZRERE
Profit before tax 9,764 304,306 BR 5 A& A
Adjustments for: B
Interest income 5 (11,822) (5,973) FBUA
Amortisation of deferred gain 5 (23,333) (2,446) BN IRIE W s
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories 6 8,080 (2,229) TFEEE/ (BEED)
Loss/(gain) on disposalAwrite-off of items of property, HEMEE - BE REE
plant and equipment, net 6 93 (264,803) HE 2 FEBE (W)
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment 6 224 17,259 M- BERSHEEE ZRE
Fair value losses/(gains), net on derivative financial TESBIEZATEZFER (W)
instruments — transactions not qualifying as hedges 6 3,424 (2,555) —PHAEEREMEENT S
Depreciation 6 43,608 57,373 e
Equity-settled share option expense 6 1,873 1,166 R EERERY
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of debtors 6 (251) 2 FEMBRR 2 BB, CREEE)
31,660 102,100
Decrease in inventories 9,594 30,472 FERD
Decrease/(increase) in debtors (9,391) 3,653 FEWBEZOR L/ (4E40)
Decrease/(increase) in bills receivable (18,680) 17,273 EWEERE D ()
Decrease in deposits paid 1,263 2,182 [BANEED
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and other receivables (5,615) 18,266 FERTFIE R H A FEWEBEIE R (3E4n0)
Decrease in trade creditors, other payables and accruals 31 (20,546) (57,263) FERTBR R « E fb FE A 30BN FEET BR 18R
Decrease in bills payable (4,866) (5,608) ENEERD
Decrease in amounts due to related companies (5,554) (8,808) FERT A B SIER A
Movements in derivative financial instruments (263) 1,956 TTESRIAZES
-
-]
Cash generated from/(used in) operations (22,398) 104,223 CEEBRME,/ () 28e §
Hong Kong profits tax paid (7,884) (23,126) ERAEEFEH 2y
Overseas taxes paid (2,006) (6,412) BR8N ¥
wg
=
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (32,288) 74,685 BEEBCHG/ (R ALREFHE mg
o
35
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SN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS §%
GABEHER i
Year ended 30 June 2017 HE-T—tFNA=Z+HIFE i '
Notes 2017 2016
in HK$ thousand Mz —E—+F —E-RF BET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBZRERE
Interest received 11,822 5,973 BUFH B
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 31 (15,978) (54,582) Hﬁﬁ»@% BEREEEER
Purchase of an available-for-sale investment - (232,995) BEHHERE
Purchase of a note receivable 17 (38,775) - BEEE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant HEWE - BFEREHBER
and equipment 1 346,096 FTiS 3R
Decrease/(increase) in a pledged bank deposit with original mE Hﬂ?i?ﬂ HEBB=EAZ
maturity of more than three months when acquired (48) 227 BEIETEIORD (1)
Increase in non-pledged bank deposits with original DENREINHABER=HAZ
maturity of more than three months when acquired (119,035) - EHARRITERIEM
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (162,013) 64,719 WEEEZHE/ () ReRERH
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETEHzHERE
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of RITEBREmEITRG 2
share options 28(b) 444 3,493 PS5 E
Dividends paid (39,946) (91,626) 2% 2
Net cash flows used in financing activities (39,502) (88,133) MEEH EREREFHE
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReREEEEERZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS (233,803) 51,271 FEMm (RD)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 510,866 474,928 FzRekReEHEEE
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (634) (15,333) INERBERBE) 2 FE  FHE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 276,429 510,866 FERZEESNRESEEEE
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH ReRkEELEEER
EQUIVALENTS EEROM
Cash and bank balances 22 185,763 450,713 Re MBS
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity REHEREINHAIR=EAZ
of less than three months when acquired 22 90,666 60,153 il fﬁfﬂ_m
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated RERERERMTLZ
statement of cash flows 276,429 510,866 BeMREEEER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. tEREEER

Bossini International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered EMERREBEERARNNRERETMA L2 BERAR - ARF
office of the Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. Its shares 2 s S EE A7 Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Bermuda ° RAFIRMNETBHERFMAERAE (BT £ -
During the year, the Group was principally engaged in investment holding and the retailing, distribution REBRFAETENRSREERMKKEE - miH LB EER -

and wholesaling of garments.

Information about the subsidiaries EEMEBEARZEHR
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RATIZ X EMBARZFBAOT ¢
Place of incorporation/ Issued share capital/ Percentage of equity
Name of subsidiaries registration and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
o) PNCIE=E R/ ZMkESKEE BRTRAEMELR AAREEREESL TEEK
Direct Hi& Indirect R
Active Link Limited (note a) Hong Kong HK$/&%5,000,0007T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
SLEBEBR AR (Misa) E8 R EE KR iH
Bossini Clothing Limited Hong Kong HK$E® 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
B R EE &5 8H
Bossini Distribution Limited Hong Kong HK$EE 17T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
EBRMESHARLQA i R EE KR iH
Bossini Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$E® 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
ERMECERARAA & AR EE R 8H -
e
Bossini Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$EE 27T - 100 Distribution of garments §
S . W sm 2.
&b CEOE I = o
3 5
. - g — S
Bossini Idea Limited Hong Kong HK$ B 17T - 100 Dormant %3
Eit P
s
>

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEIFREEABR DA 91



4> NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS S
= meNBmREKE £

30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. tE¥EREBER (E)
Information about the subsidiaries (continued) EENMB AR ZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) AARZXEMBRARZFHBHOT « (5)

92

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

Issued share capital/
registered capital

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

Principal activities

MEARERE R/ 2R ERIEE BERITRAE EMEE AAREERET DL FEEK
Direct H# Indirect RiZ
Bossini Investment Limited (note c) British Virgin Islands US$11,928% 7T 100 - Investment holding

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 %%

(P 3EC) EEER RS wEERK
Bossini Onmay International Limited Hong Kong HK$&® 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
B L EEEAERAR BB BRREE R iH
Bossini Retail Limited Hong Kong HK$B# 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
B RREE R H
Bright Star Fashion Limited (note ¢) Macau MOP$25,000;2F 7T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
B2 REBR AT () BT KRREERDH
Burling Limited British Virgin Islands US$1003E7T - 100 Licensing of trademarks
REEBRES EEsAsES
EMNTmEMEEEGRAT People’s Republic of China  RMBA E#1,010,0007T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
(notes b and ¢) (“PRC")/mainland China MEKEE &5
S (Bt 3EbRc) hEE AR A
= (T E]) P EAKRE
S
qg J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Ltd. (note c) Singapore  SG$2,000,000%7/M3% 7T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
'T‘U (9] #hnsg ERREE RS H
'O
E J & R Bossini Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$&® 27T - 100 Investment holding
= ERMEEEARAA BB KEER



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. BEREEER ()
Information about the subsidiaries (continued) EENRB AR ZER (&)
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) RRATRZEEZWMBRARZFFIBWT : (&)
Place of incorporation/ Issued share capital/ Percentage of equity
Name of subsidiaries registration and business registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ME AR SR B/ Sk ESEE BRTRA EMESR AAREEREFESL TEEK
Direct BH## Indirect &%
Kacono Trading Limited (note ¢) British Virgin Islands HK$&#2,0007T - 100 Investment holding
(M3Ec) REBEBRES REEI
Key Value Trading Limited (note c) British Virgin Islands US$100%E7T - 100 Investment holding
(M3Ec) REBRBARES REER
Land Challenger Limited Hong Kong HK$ &% 27T - 100 Investment holding
BAEAR A B REE
Lead Commence Limited Hong Kong HK$ & 27T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
YRR EBR A E ) R EE KR i#H
Rapid City Limited Hong Kong HK$ B 27T - 100 Property holding and letting
EAHMBER DA & MERBRLEE
Sun View Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$ & 27T - 100 Dormant
HREXERAA ) BEX

.y
>
[}
>
sm 0.
I)'.m
o
H‘)i’:
I
B g
%3
Q
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o
S
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRM T

30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about the subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(@) The branch of this subsidiary in Taiwan was not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of
the Ernst & Young global network.

(b) EMNTERMEZTEAR LA is a limited liability enterprise established in the PRC, which obtained its business
registration certificate on 14 July 1993.

(c) These subsidiaries were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments and the available-for-sale investment which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2017. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.1

&\\Q
=
=

Z

f-%‘J'h\
l

TEREEER (F)

FHENBLARZER (&)
ERENLEER/UARBEFAREE IR EIBNAEEF
EESEAMHZMBAR EERREHEMMEBRR ZFITET
R - BIEFERITE -

G

(@ ZMBRRNRAEDRRZKRE AFMBEBLKGHIMETAAR
KRR EB M 2 RIRBRER -

(b)) BEMNTERAEEXARIAAS—HRTERIZ2EREFRE  ERX
“HA=FEATHARESEENRE -

© WEMNBARZKRE  LHFMBBLRKEAMEEMK L KGAE
BRI BEE -

mEEERETHER

ZEVBRRDEREB GG ((BEEHMAG ) B 2E
B ERER ([FEMBERED ) (BIEME BB FERE
Al BAEAEA(EBGT L] k) BEEBERMAZE
ARAIRFERBMEDIZ RBEREMRE - WIHRBELKAER
R ETEERTARAIEKEREARFEFE - ZEWH

HEBT (BT 318 - RERIBINSN - FrEEESOREEE
FrstH
GARAEE

FAEVBRREBBEARALENBAR (AR AKEDEBE_F
—tEFARA=ZTHLEFEZHBHRR - WBRARRARRERKH
BEEHNER (BEERER) EXAKERERARESH2EN
WIRENR 2 BB ORARERLREERRITEEENATER
Bl ¥R (BER A #E A A E B s R E AR EREE 286 0)
i BB ARSI -



2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements.
HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendments

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
Amendments

HKAS 27 (2011) Amendments

HKAS 28 (2011), HKFRS 10 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 11 Amendments

HKFRS 14

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Preparation of Financial Statements —
Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 — Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 — Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011) — Separate Financial Statements —
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to HKAS 28 (2011), HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 —
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements — Accounting for
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKAS 1 Amendments, HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendments and certain amendments included in the Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle, the
adoption of the above new and revised standards has had no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKAS 1 Amendments include narrow-focus improvements in respect of the presentation and disclosure in
financial statements. The amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS T,

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss and the statement of financial position may
be disaggregated;

(iii) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to consolidated financial
statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are presented
in the statement of financial position and the statement of profit or loss. The amendments have had no
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Amendments clarify the principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in
very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group as the Group has
not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. Details of the amendments are as follows:

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: clarifies that changes to a plan of
sale or a plan of distribution to owners should not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is
a continuation of the original plan. Accordingly, there is no change in the application of the requirements
in HKFRS 5. The amendments also clarify that changing the disposal method does not change the date
of classification of the non-current assets or disposal group held for sale. The amendments are applied
prospectively. The amendments have had no impact on the Group as the Group did not have any change
in the plan of sale or disposal method in respect of the disposal group held for sale during the year.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.
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— Disclosure Initiative
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- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture *

Amendments to HKAS 40 — Investment Property
— Transfers of Investment Property?
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKAS 7 Amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will result in additional disclosure to be provided in the
financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 July 2017.

HKAS 12 Amendments were issued with the purpose of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets
for unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at fair value, although they also have a broader
application for other situations. The amendments clarify that an entity, when assessing whether taxable
profits will be available against which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs to consider
whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the
reversal of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how
an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may
include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 July 2017.

HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 Amendments address an inconsistency between the requirements in HKAS
28 (2011) and in HKFRS 10 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 Amendments was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for application now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:
(continued)

The HKICPA issued HKFRS 2 Amendments in August 2016 that address three main areas: the effects
of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-based payment; and
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction
changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used to account for vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies
to cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based
payment transaction with net share settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
July 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 July 2018. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
standard upon adoption and expects that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the classification
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:
(continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of
total revenue, information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued HKFRS 15 Amendments
to address the implementation issues on identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the
cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 July 2018 and
is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition
of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on
the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will
also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 July 2019 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon
adoption.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERR M

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

23 EEMEERER 2 ERMBERER ()

EHREANAEE 22 EREMFERERN 2 E — S ERHI 0
™ (&

HEMBEREINFE 1SR ERFTREIRN  UAEREEFPEH
FYER o IRBEE M TS ERERF 155 - W el < SR /REERR
ERFEHATFPEEDMAMBMARENOKE - BEMFER
ZERIE1SSEMN R AR E R A8 MR WS ITE o ZEATRS
ANBEZHEEREERBERTE  BREADWREHE BRETEE
ZEH ZHRZANEERBEREEREPARTEHEH R
it o BRI MR BT BMIFERER R TR WEHEARE
R-F—RERA  BAEGEEIAGBME S ERERFE 155
(R1EF]) MR MZER Z RBEEEAHIENRERE - BIEEE
MEME  TEABRREAZERAMERT AR EAES - A
FARMZER 2 BEH - ZFEFT R EREBNRAET LY
765 B ¥ 2E I 551 55% S B 58 00 — B B PR B A ZE ) I P (X B PR B A 2
A2 A REREN - REBBEHER _F—N\FLHA - HARBEE
BT IE MAERISEN55R - WA BB IFERERF 155N

iSh-Z X

BEEUBIERENE IR BB ST ERF17TREE - T8 (K
BOKERREZEY) REFINECLTHELEEHE  &F
(REREZES) RERISHALLHE-ERLEE (FERE
ZEG)-RRBE2INARSRHUELZZEAXZHAE %2R
R 2 2VERFERAEZRA  TESRERARKZE
HERREENBE ZESREATAEAMBHEHERRIA R —
EEEEEHERCHEE NEERKB AL AHEASERNE
EHEEEENRAAE (MEEARE) RRRANRHEERFEHIEH
BEZENAEE(AFREEE) KRIEFTAREEFNEGBEZS
ERFLOFRE R BEWMEZTE - GAERAEEERERIEKAR R
WeERARREBEFEZ HEaEHESRRBEEEEF B
EmMEREEMSRmMELD - ABABESFEREE&E 2T B
S REREEREZINERY - ABEABNERE TEHRER SN
rEEAE MmN EEREFARETZSNRz —HEIE
HH L ESEMIIBRRAENRESE - FBEA—REEHTEM
EBBCEERRAATHEEEZAE - BBV HERERE 165
KB EEEBHENEI17HRANEBAAZEGHERSR - HEAAG
HEFEREEESERNE17RER 2 BREMEREETY
B o HAKEHEMMENE - AEEBEHR-_ZE—NLFtA—H
RNE BT EERELNF 165 - B Al EHEFME B I5ERER)
FIRZTE -

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEIFREEABR DA

.y
>
[}
>
sm 0.
I)‘.m
o
H‘)i’:
I
B g
%3
Q
=,
o
S

101



c
19
+—
@
S
fu
O
“
S
©
1%}
C
@
=S
L

102

= BAMBRRNE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 June.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and available-for-sale investment at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment property), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
or
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

B EN

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment is realised and
transferred directly to retained profits on a systematic basis, when the corresponding asset is used by the
Group. The amount realised is the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover an impairment loss, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations may be transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:
Land and buildings 2% to 5% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

9% to 25%
15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles 15% 10 33%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least
at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment property
Investment property is interest in land and buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. The Group has adopted the cost model under
HKAS 40 to account for its investment property and such property is stated at cost less depreciation and
any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of investment property to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rate used for this purpose is 3%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss
in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Sale and leaseback transaction

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an asset and the leasing back of the same asset. The
lease payment and the sale price are usually interdependent because they are negotiated as a package.
The accounting treatment of a sale and leaseback transaction depends upon the type of lease involved.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying
amount is deferred and amortised over the lease term. If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an
operating lease, and it is clear that the transaction is established at fair value, any profit or loss is recognised
immediately. If the sale price is below fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately except that, if
the loss is compensated for by future lease payments at below market price, it is deferred and amortised
in proportion to the lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to be used. If the sale
price is above fair value, the excess over fair value is deferred and amortised over the period for which the
asset is expected to be used.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, available-for-sale investment, and loans and receivables, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include
any interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and
in other operating expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale investment

Available-for-sale investment is a non-derivative financial asset in an investment fund. The investment fund is
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale investment is subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale investment
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment reserve to profit or loss. Investment income earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale investment is reported as investment income, and is recognised in profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-for-sale investment in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade this financial asset due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify this financial asset if management has the ability and
intention to hold the asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

— therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

— the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account and
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale investment
For available-for-sale investment, the Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that the investment is impaired.

If an available-for-sale investment is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost
(net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment previously
recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

Objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment on that investment previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss. Such impairment is not reversed through
profit or loss. Increase in its fair value after impairment is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment
is less than its cost.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S R R M i

30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade creditors, bills and other payables, certain accruals, amounts
due to related companies and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30June 2017 ZE—tHFA=1+H
| |
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBEME (H)
Financial liabilities (continued) e s (E)
Loans and borrowings EAREER
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised RUIZHERE  HERITERRIEEH BT BRF S E R 8 KA
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in 8 WA HEBWAER - EUIER T ARSI AR o 42 1
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are REBLRBAERREAEEBEPEEZ WS BEN B E
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process. RBo
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees STHBHRAR S E BUBAE £ 2 EMIEUGE - TFEEEK
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is BERFEAA R 2 o 2 BRASAR - BERFIREHET ABRP -
included in profit or loss.
Financial quarantee contracts TRERS A
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made AEEMBEHZSMERGHAARBEEEBARELRESIAEZ
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due IEFA B BAR S R MASXNREAFEERREE AFTEERBLKZ
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as AR SRIERGVVIZZENTERRAEBE  UHBLZEE
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the REBEEBGEZRSERELHAE -RUTHRE  AEEBEUTH
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the E/BRRENESRMERELY () FERSHR 2 RAEEMER
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at X2 EEMETRE  Ri) VTP EAR R (0EA) Ret#E -

the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities KiIEZemAE

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or TRABERZBEZE TRFRIEUE I E MR LR -

expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different EREeRMEERS " EABHEREEAKEETRAKRZ /A 95-:1

terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is BEAEBR IMBABZHERBRERERR  ZEBHETHR .-

treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference REIBRARKEE THAR-EFARERE MERAEZE ﬂi

between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss. BEREBERAER - Eg
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S R R M i

30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and includes all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBEME (H)

Income tax (continued) FrE% (&)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting MRBERREERBEHERB SR BRGNS 2 REEM

period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting ZHBEREERE  DUBEERBEETIEERS -

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: REHEBENIHM ARG RIEZRWRALR - KRIE-

—  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a — REREEEDEVARRAAESETIEFRAH 2ZHZ
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the BAEXABEMES BN Eg M ERB S FIs S
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 54

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the — BERMBARKREEBIERANERMEEZEMS - WERMT
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the ZR B EIR R R TIEH RE R Z A RN & 1 AT R R
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. [@ o

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused BEHBEEEDRMENIINEREESE LB RPAVEEE

tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable AR IEEE T AR « FriER 2 BT I & 2= AR B8

that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward WABERT AN ASBAI MBI EREEZRE  AEZRABATIEE
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except: ENABAREBEAR @ FR3E:

-~ when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial — BEBEEEDERNETHESREH IR G2KNFTERRS
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time ZEESBEMESZAMBREREESE  BETEESET
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and Sk FE R F Sk B e ¢ &

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax — BERMBARRERMAIMBREREZEMmE  BEHIEA
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse B E(E R PT REAE A R SR B (B O e 1 2 RE I 7 A AR B A
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences IAB) BRI ZRERE - 7 TR o

can be utilised.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S R R M i

30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(d) royalty income, on a time proportion basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements; and

(e) claims received, when the right to receive the payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’s memorandum,
articles of association and Bye-Laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair values are determined using
appropriate option pricing models, further details of which are given in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the fair
value of awards at the grant date, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the fair value at the grant date. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the reporting
period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong, namely the Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the ""ORSO Scheme"’), for all of its employees in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income with a maximum monthly
contribution of HK$1,500 per employee, are made by each of the employer and the employees. The
employer contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries are made by the employer
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the ORSO Scheme.
The rates of contributions made by the employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary of each employee
at the discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interest in
the Group's employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be
reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The assets of the MPF and ORSO Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Company'’s subsidiaries which operate in mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident Fund Scheme, which is a
contribution plan established by the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore.

The Group operates two pension schemes in Taiwan under the Labour Standards Law (the "’Old Scheme'’)
and under the Labour Pension Act which became effective on 1 July 2005 (the "New Scheme’). Under
the Old Scheme, the Taiwan Branch of one of the Company’s subsidiaries makes regular contributions to
the Old Scheme to meet its employees’ retirement and termination benefits. Currently, the contributions
have been approved to be made at 2% of the employees’ total salaries. The fund is administered by a
committee and is deposited in the committee’s name with a government approved financial institution,
Bank of Taiwan, which acts as the trustee. Under the New Scheme, the Taiwan Branch contributes each
month 6% of the salaries of the employees who choose to participate in the New Scheme, and deposit
these amounts into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loyalty programmes
The Group operates loyalty programmes which allow customers to accumulate points when they purchase
products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points being equal to their fair value. Fair value is determined by applying
statistical techniques.

The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the points are redeemed.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ganggENE 3

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

24 TR BERME (H)

BHRBEE
AEERYEHERTE BEPFRAKSEBEERKRERD

PRl R BRI EERMAELDBEIE  MAERESFSH

FREREDE A TET MR - W IAS D MEEmF R AR -

S

ZEHFEPVBERRABTER  IARRZEEER - AEEAZ
ERSARTHENEEY  SERZMBBRRABBUMITNEE
B -AEERNZERBER INERXZVIRIHARERELZ
BB ERERREAR - UIMERFTEEN BB EERE
B REMYNEEERNBERRZEXRBHRE - FHENLNEKIR
BfELAZ ZRBABRREE -

RESLRATIR NSt EZIFERIAR - KAV X5 AHZ
EXBE - I AFEIE  RIMNEFEBZIFERIER - RAFER
FEAHZEERRE - HRRATEFEZFERAEBEE 2 WE
KERIRERREE A FEZES WS BER R T AEE (B
AP ERGEHBEENEMEAREREERTPRAZZIEE N RE
BAD BN A 2 EK S SRR R HER) -

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEIFREEABR DA

.y
>
[}
>
sm 0.
I)‘.m
o
H‘)i’:
I
B g
%3
Q
=,
o
S

125



c
19
+—
©
S
fu
O
“
S
©
1%}
C
@
=S
L

126

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRM T

30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than Hong Kong dollar. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollar at exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for inventories

Management reviews the aged analysis of inventories of the Group at the end of each reporting period,
and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for sale. The assessment of the provision amount involves management judgements and estimates by
considering historical sales pattern and expected subsequent sales based on internal budget and certain
market factors. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original estimate,
such differences will have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and provision charge/write-
back of provision in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition, physical counts on
all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether provision needs to be
made in respect of any obsolete inventories identified. Management reassesses the estimation at the end
of each reporting period and is satisfied that sufficient provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories
has been made in the consolidated financial statements. The carrying amount of the Group's inventories
as at 30 June 2017 was HK$238,587,000 (2016: HK$259,803,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and investment property

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use and fair value less cost to sell of the asset. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the asset using key assumptions such
as estimated future store performance, economic environment and sales growth rate and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The fair value less cost to
sell is estimated based on current prices in an active market and by reference to external valuation reports.
The carrying amounts of the Group's property, plant and equipment and investment property as at 30
June 2017 were HK$52,026,000 (2016: HK$76,118,000) and HK$22,079,000 (2016: HK$23,847,000),
respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The amount of
unrecognised tax losses as at 30 June 2017 was HK$406,800,000 (2016: HK$399,215,000). Further details
are contained in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of debtors and other receivables

The Group conducts impairment reviews of financial assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with the relevant accounting
standards. Determining whether an asset is impaired requires an estimation of the future cash flows and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis of making the allowance and its future
results would be affected. As at 30 June 2017, provisions for impairment of debtors of HK$366,000
(2016: HK$1,642,000) were made and the carrying amount of debtors was HK$58,956,000 (2016:
HK$51,680,000). As at 30 June 2017, the carrying amount of other receivables was HK$22,466,000
(2016: HK$19,525,000).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Share option valuation

The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the values of the share options are the risk-free
interest rate, expected life of options, expected volatility and expected dividend. The expected life of the
options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. The measurement dates
used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the trinomial model are subject to certain fundamental
limitations, due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the
expected future performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the
variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units that offer products to customers
located in different geographical areas and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Hong Kong and Macau
(b) Mainland China

(c) Taiwan
(d) Singapore

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted
profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income is excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and tax recoverable as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities and tax payable as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
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|
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REZFEHR (F)
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to ok Fa Ziﬁ%)}ﬁﬁ%ﬂ RERTSEREE TE=Z S 2HEEM
third parties at the then prevailing market prices. HITRG
Geographical segments b 39 9 4
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset, liability and expenditure information TRENAEERE_ZE—+FRZZE-RFAA=ZTHILEFER
for the Group’s geographical segments for the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016. i sE W (BB RETEE ABREYER -
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Taiwan Singapore Consolidated
EBRAM HE AR =) ] 03K oy
in HK$ thousand 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
BT —E—tF ZTREF —E—t5 ZT-RF —E—tF ZTREF —E—tF ZERF —E—tF —TRF
Segment revenue:
DEWE
Sales to external customers
HE TR 1,394,517 1,625,354 306,999 325,567 166,763 181,791 151,611 186,553 2,019,890 2,319,265
Other income and gains
H A R fess 41,947 288,300 2,015 1,476 917 698 1,217 1,527 46,096 292,001
Total
HBEt 1,436,464 1,913,654 309,014 327,043 167,680 182,489 152,828 188,080 2,065,986 2,611,266
Segment results
DEEE 58,065 349,979 (31,772) (22,970) (16,197) (23,062) (12,154) (5,614) (2,058) 298,333
Interest income
FBMA 11,822 5,973
Profit from operating activities
SEEBRM 9,764 304,306
Financ~e costs
BAERKA - -
C
-8 Profit before tax
g BRER A A 9,764 304,306
5 Income tax expense
= SRR (4,878) (12,185)
© Profit for the year
2 FRRA 4,886 292,121
£
- The revenue information above is based on the locations in which the sales originated. L ER DIRIBHEEEMEE S -
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RETBEHR (E)
Geographical segments (continued) 35 5 8 ()
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Taiwan Singapore Consolidated
BBREM Bl KR =) ] b5y e
in HK$ thousand 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
BT T —E—tF —E—REF —E—+tF ZTREF —E—tF —T—RE —E—+tF AN = —TREF

Segment assets
PEEE 932,656 991,386 174,442 203,530 56,191 55,046 52,696 60,296 1,215,985 1,310,258

Unallocated assets
ROWEE 16,760 13,654

Total assets
BEE 1,232,745 1,323,912

Segment liabilities
PEEE 212,768 270,952 32,267 28,873 14,437 13,299 9,215 8,454 268,687 321,578

Unallocated liabilities
Ko aE 8,690 10,596

Total liabilities
wmaE 277,377 332,174
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£ |
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REZTHER (B
Geographical segments (continued) 35 5 ()
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Taiwan Singapore Consolidated
EHBRAEM AR K B 703 we
in HK$ thousand 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
BT T —EB—+tF ZE-RF —E—+tF ZERF —E—+tF ZE-RF —E—+tF —E—RF —E—+F ZE—RF
Other segment information:
HihpE|ER !
Capital expenditure*
AR 10,997 46,856 3,852 3,346 1,193 4,536 1,095 1,408 17,137 56,146
Depreciation
e 32,288 45,441 5,532 6,422 3,357 3,055 2,431 2,455 43,608 57,373

Impairment of items of property,

plant and equipment
M - BB ERERE 2RE - 16,659 - - - - 224 600 224 17,259
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off

of items of property,

plant and equipment, net
HE MEME - B LR

HE 2 FERE () 35 (265,148) 18 2 1) 125 a1 218 93 (264,803)
Provision/(write-back of

provision) for inventories
FERE (BEREE) 2,087 (4,268) 4,487 3,642 2,141 376 (635) (1,979) 8,080 (2,229)
Impairment/(write-back of

impairment) of debtors

c

2 FENBR TR 2 RE, CRERE) 3 1 (254) 1 - - - - (251) 2
g Non-current assets**

S IFRmBEE 341,423 321,971 693 2,810 3,211 4,933 1,894 3,983 347,221 333,697
c

.‘_g *  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment. * BRI BERNEWE  BERSRE -

c

_E **  The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of assets and excludes deferred tax assets and > FARERBEEC AN NBRBAEMEMEE  TRERERE
- the non-current portion of deposits paid. BERD MRS ZIFRNEIR G
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$247,979,000 (2016: HK$333,735,000) was derived from sales by the Hong

Kong and Macau segment to a single customer.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and

trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EE 5 AR ()
FR—EXEREFZEH

e &5 #4978 % 247,979,0007T (= F — 75 4F « 7B #333,735,0007T) T35k

BEBRRMSER-—RE-FPZHE -

Wam - HAWA K W
Wa MR ERE ARt R ERREHEFE -

W ARz A mT

2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+tF ZERF BETT
Revenue: Wiz
Retailing and distribution of garments 2,019,890 2,319,265 KEKEERSHE
Other income and gains: E A A R a
Interest income 11,822 5,973 FEUA
Claims received 58 134 B =EFIE
Royalty income 8,089 6,937 HHBRA
Gross rental income 8,188 7,579 MW AERE
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net - 264,803 HEWME  BELREEE 2 FhE
Amortisation of deferred gain (note 9) 23,333 2,446 SR T Y es (B9 FE9)
Others 6,428 10,102 E
57,918 297,974
2,077,808 2,617,239
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

=k

%W

6. PFRBLAIER
AEBBRBADEFE MG, (GTA) THIEE :

2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+F —E—RF BET T
Cost of sales: THE KA -
Cost of inventories sold 988,391 1,214,593 EEFEZHKA
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories 8,080 (2,229) FERE(BERRD)
996,471 1,212,364
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration — note 7): BTIHA(BIEERIE —KE7)
Salaries and wages 337,817 339,934 HFeNIE
Equity-settled share option expense 1,873 1,166 BEnEEERERS
Pension scheme contributions (note a) 27,887 29,315 RIRE 2R (M 5Fa)
367,577 370,415
Depreciation (notes 13 and 14) 43,608 57,373 e (MsE13%14)
Minimum lease payments under operating leases: KERETHREBEERNK
Land and buildings (note b) 384,106 386,014 T R F (T FED)
Contingent rents of retail shops 93,437 92,778 TEEH S ATHE
Plant and machinery 868 743 B T
478,411 479,535
Auditor’s remuneration 2,678 2,975 ZERT BN &
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of items of property, e MEmE - BE REEER
c plant and equipment, net 93 (264,803) ZREE, (W)
2 Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment (note ¢) 224 17,259 Y BEEEREEEB ZRE (Ko
e Impairment/(write-back of impairment) of debtors (note 19) (251) 2 FEURBR 2 RME, CRERE) (FFE19)
5 Foreign exchange differences, net (17,221) (22,139) AN 5 MR ZEEE 0 JRE
€ Net rental income (8,160) (7,552) e WA F5E
'T_U Fair value losses/(gains), net on derivative financial instruments PESB T A AT EFEE, (W)
S — transactions not qualifying as hedges (note d) 3,424 (2,555) — THEEAEPEHNR S (HiEd)
£
[N,
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 30 June 2017, forfeited contributions available to the Group to reduce its contributions to the ORSO Scheme
in future years amounted to HK$53,000 (2016: HK$110,000).

The minimum lease payments of land and buildings under operating leases include the management fee of a shop.

Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment is included in “other operating expenses” on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The fair value losses/(gains), net on derivative financial instruments - transactions not qualifying as hedges are
included in “other operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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BRBE AT ()
GEE

(a)

(b)

(d)

REZTE—tFARNA=1T8 - RE®MAAERIERF B 2R KB H3R
28 W R A EE53,000T (ZF — 78 F 7B #110,0007T) ©

KEMETIHREBFZREAENABE—REHIERER -

ME BEERREBREZAECEEEFAEaEMEEERRZ
[Eib=@ER<] -

PTESMTAZAFEFER, (WE) - THEEREMEDNRS
CEREFARaRAtE2ERERZ [HM2EMRX] -
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 7. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and BRI ETAR B R EBRQREHIZE383(1)a) * (b) ~ (QRMOIER AT (H
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about BEEMNRER) ROIE2HEE  NEENSEEMEUT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+F —E—RF BT T
Executive directors: WITES
Fees - - e
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,405 8,021 Fe  EREREYRE
Performance related bonuses - 1,427 HAZRIR AR 2 FEAL
Equity-settled share option expense 602 436 R 4E B B ARER 2
Pension scheme contributions 54 54 RIKEET B
9,061 9,938
Independent non-executive directors: BN IFHITES
Fees 749 728 we
9,810 10,666
In the prior year, the total remuneration included performance bonuses payable to the executive directors REF W BBERERNNITES ZERLAE1,427,0007T °

of HK$1,427,000.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7. EEM= (B
Share options were granted to the directors in respect of their services to the Group under the share RARMEFRARNEBIRERSE M MESERERAFERETET
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 29 to the consolidated ZHERE - SR EN AV MEM 29 - BREEREZ X TETY
financial statements. The fair value of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over RIEHBHET  VEREBHEEERER  RAFEFTALZE
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the consolidated MBMEZSEEHALMZFTHE 2 HER -

financial statements for the current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BAFHITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as follows: RERNBEZNTBEIFNTEST RSN T
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+F —E—RF BT
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 289 280 REMLZ L
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 230 224 A=K E €
Dr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 230 224 FXEIEL
749 728
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year FRAWEENBIIENTEFT 2 EMBNE (ZT—RF : &) -
(2016: Nil). None of the independent non-executive directors waived remuneration during the year FRARREF BEBIIERTEEHEMNS -

and the prior year.
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 7. EEME ()
(b) Executive directors (b) HITESE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
e 2 EARIRIERA R BiRe
in HK$ thousand we REY RS ZIEAL BREIRAERA B REEN emsE BT
2017 —E—+tF
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess - 1,847 - 159 18 2,024 B2/t
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund - 4,420 - 284 18 4,722 BESRE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul - 2,138 - 159 18 2,315 BRE SRS
- 8,405 - 602 54 9,061
2016 —E—-RXE
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess - 1,774 316 95 18 2,203 == CE e
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund - 4,239 753 260 18 5,270 BEERE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul - 2,008 358 81 18 2,465 [REF
- 8,021 1,427 436 54 9,938
There was no arrangement under which an executive director waived or agreed to waive any FARRESF  TERITEETHEXREREEMME 2 25 -

remuneration during the year and the prior year.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. hEBE¥ER
The five highest paid employees during the year included 3 (2016: 3) directors, details of whose FARERSHEERBE=2(ZZ—XRF : =ZR)&EF  HMEF
remuneration are set out in note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining 2 (2016: 2) highest BEEHIR EXWE7 - HBMEB (ZE—R"F  WB) AR 6 &E
paid employees who are not directors of the Company are as follows: FHEEEECHEFBLOT
2017 2016

in HK$ thousand —E—tHF —E—RF BB T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,037 4,945 e EBLNREYWRE
Performance related bonuses - 482 LRI 2 TEAL
Equity-settled share option expense 157 99 s BB
Pension scheme contributions 36 36 RIS FH B

5,230 5,562
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands MeNFTISEsEHFEEREREHRENT :
is as follows:

Number of employees

EEZAE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 - 712,000,001 728 #2,500,0007T
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 2 712,500,001 72 #3,000,0007T
2 2
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Financial information

GAIN ON SALE AND LEASEBACK ARRANGEMENT AND DEFERRED GAIN

In March 2016, the Group entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party, Deep Thought Investments Limited (the “Purchaser”), for the disposal of a self-occupied
property in Macau with a carrying value of HK$10,908,000, for a consideration of HK$350,000,000. The
transaction was completed on 23 May 2016 (the “Completion Date”).

Upon completion of the disposal, the Group and the Purchaser entered into a tenancy agreement, whereby
the Group leased the aforesaid self-occupied property from the Purchaser for its own use for 3 years
commencing on the Completion Date. The fair value of the self-occupied property near the Completion
Date was determined by RHL Appraisal Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer. The excess
of the consideration over the fair value has been deferred and amortised over the lease period, resulting
in the recognition of a “deferred gain” amounting to HK$44,221,000 (2016: HK$67,554,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017 and amortisation of the deferred gain
amounting to HK$23,333,000 (2016: HK$2,446,000) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the current year.

In the prior year, a gain on the disposal of a self-occupied property of HK$265,148,000 had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 %%
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREBLRA X
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable EENEHERFNRE BRI T ERTUR FIA E16.5% (=
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated T—INF :16.5%) REEME o fEEH AU R PTG EERTBUS A 2 T8 -

at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdiction in which the Group operates. TRBAEEEBRENERER, AR CBITHESE -

2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—tHF —E—RF BT T
Current — Hong Kong BIE — &%
Charge for the year 5,216 11,106 FARATH
Overprovision in prior years (122) (265) BAFEBEERE
Current — Elsewhere BNER — Efthitlm
Charge for the year 1,694 2,694 FAXH
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years (6) 24 BEFEBENR (BREEE)
Deferred (note 27) (1,904) (1,374) PEIE (M 5E27)
Total tax charge for the year 4,878 12,185 FARRIAX HERE
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/
jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at
the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective
tax rate, are as follows:

=k

ﬁl&\ R

10. FRE BB ()

BEAARBARERBOWBRRMEREK,RUERERE 2 AT X
AEBERRGRRATEN 2 HBERS IR ERR R E 2 HIBE
B ARERBE ANAERE) BERBE ZHENT -

2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—tF % —E—RF % BT T
Profit before tax 9,764 304,306 A5 BIE )
Tax at the statutory tax rate 666 6.8 27,245 9.0 HETFERRE 2 FiE
Adjustments in respect of current BLidE ERR B ERRR TEVE ) AR
tax of previous periods (128) (1.3) (241) 0.1)
Income not subject to tax (9,122) (93.4) (29,429) (9.7) BB Z WA
Expenses not deductible for tax 11,284 115.6 8,573 2.8 TAMVER AR 2 B 2
Unrecognised tax losses and temporary RERIAR B R TR E5E
differences 3,285 33.6 7,375 2.4
Tax losses utilised from previous periods (1,930) (19.8) (1,929) (0.6) BESEEEERIERIE
Others 823 8.5 591 0.2 Hth
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate 4,878 50.0 12,185 4.0 BRAEEERMETE 2 MBS M
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

11. DIVIDENDS 1. RE
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—tF —ZT—REF BETT
Special interim — HK1.22 cents (2016: HK1.22 cents) BRI el — AT @228 (ZZT—7N4F - 1.22781W)
per ordinary share 19,980 19,962
Proposed final — HK1.22 cents per ordinary share BORARE — SREE 228 (ZT—XF : &\)
(2016: Nil) 19,980 -
Proposed special final — HK0.61 cent (2016: HK1.22 cents) BUREFRIRE — Sl EEAR0.6 181 (ZZ—RF : 1.22811)
per ordinary share 9,990 19,966
49,950 39,928

12.

The proposed final dividend of HK$19,980,000 (2016: Nil) and the proposed special final dividend of
HK$9,990,000 (2016: HK$19,966,000) for the year are calculated based on 1,637,735,394 (2016:
1,636,535,394) shares of the Company in issue and are subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of HK$4,886,000 (2016: HK$292,121,000), and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,636,870,736 (2016: 1,634,430,257) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$4,886,000 (2016: HK$292,121,000). The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue of 1,636,870,736 (2016:
1,634,430,257) during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 2,740,446 (2016: 6,854,611) assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

12.

IR R EAA% B % 19,980,0007T (= F — /<4 ¢ &) RERE R
R HEARZ B8 19,990,0000T (= Z — 75 4F : /B#19,966,0007T) THiR &
AR B BT 1,637,735,3940% (== — /<4 : 1,636,535,394%)
HE WARRERERRAFAS FEARARREIE -

AR ERERRAEABRGERER

BRERARBFDIBEAAREBREFEABREFRZ BB
4,886,0007T (Z & — /N4 : 7B 1292,121,0007T) RERN D HITE R
A% hn4E S 19 11,636,870,7360% (—F — /N4 : 1,634,430,257A%) =t

s
= o
Ea

BREBERFDBRBEAAR L BB E ARG F N RFBE
4,886,0007T (= — /<4 : /51292,121,00070) 5T & - st & A 2
LB E AARFTESRERRT 2 FREHITERR
1,636,870,736/% (== — 74 : 1,634,430,257%) * RIBRBARIEDR
HIOTENERE A BN TR AL BRMERTSRERT Y
AR N T 19 £02,740,4460% (ZF —RF © 6,854,6110%) °
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

N
=N
=

13. % BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
Fizh-y BER FHHER
in HK$ thousand MG e WAERE RE “E BT
2017 —E—+tF
At 30 June 2016 and RZE—RERA=+TBK
at 1 July 2016: —E-RFtA—H:
Cost 317,509 7 202,606 2,404 522,526 RAE
Accumulated depreciation R ERRIE
and impairment (264,895) (7) (179,315) (2,191) (446,408)
Net carrying amount 52,614 - 23,291 213 76,118 BREFE
At 1 July 2016, net of accumulated NR_E—RF+H—H -
depreciation and impairment 52,614 - 23,291 213 76,118 MR RAFHTE RRE
Additions 8,921 - 8,216 - 17,137 NE
Disposals/write-off (70) - (24) - (94) HE s
Impairment - - (224) - (224) A
Depreciation provided during the year (29,404) - (12,297) (139) (41,840) FATERE
Exchange realignment 858 - 72 (1) 929 HIRREE
At 30 June 2017, net of accumulated RZE—+FA=1+H "
depreciation and impairment 32,919 - 19,034 73 52,026 Mk 2 TE RRE
S
‘g At 30 June 2017: R-Z—+t&XA=1H:
S Cost 310,622 7 209,724 2,402 522,755 FXANE
E Accumulated depreciation REHTE KORE
= and impairment (277,703) (7) (190,690) (2,329) (470,729)
2
2 Net carrying amount 32,919 - 19,034 73 52,026 FREDFE
[N,
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERR M

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

13. % - BEKRHRE (&)

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
hE BER BREER
in HK$ thousand T i g F ES S ez N A aE BT T
2016 —EB-RE¥
At 1 July 2015: R-ZZE—hFtHA—R8:
Cost 20,500 302,105 7 198,606 2,412 523,630 B AE
Accumulated depreciation REERRAE
and impairment (9,095) (235,045) (7) (172,472) (1,940) (418,559)
Net carrying amount 11,405 67,060 - 26,134 472 105,071 BRMEFE
At 1 July 2015, net of accumulated R-ZZE—hFLH—RH"
depreciation and impairment 11,405 67,060 - 26,134 472 105,071 Ik 25HTE MoRE
Additions - 45,009 - 11,137 - 56,146 NS
Disposals/write-off (10,908) (372) - (13) - (11,293) HE ey
Impairment - (17,250) - 9) - (17,259) NERIEL
Depreciation provided during the year (497) (41,181) - (13,673) (254) (55,605) FRITERE
Exchange realignment - (652) - (285) (5) (942) AR R
At 30 June 2016, net of accumulated RZE—RESA=1+H "
depreciation and impairment - 52,614 - 23,291 213 76,118 Mk 2EHTE MRVE
At 30 June 2016: R-ZZT—RFRA=1H:
Cost - 317,509 7 202,606 2,404 522,526 BAE
Accumulated depreciation ZFHTE RRE
and impairment - (264,895) (7) (179,315) (2,191) (446,408)
Net carrying amount - 52,614 - 23,291 213 76,118 BRHEFE
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) ,ﬁ ~ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
..

= BAMBREME

30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
For the years ended 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016, the directors considered that certain items of
property, plant and equipment of the Group were subject to impairment because of poor outlook of
the retail market and the non-performing cash-generating units of those items of property, plant and
equipment.

The directors estimated the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units as follows:

“bossini” products cash-generating units

The respective recoverable amounts of the “bossini” products cash-generating units have been determined
based on a value in use calculation which was approved by senior management using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering the remaining useful lives of the respective items of property, plant
and equipment. Key assumptions used for the value in use calculation as at 30 June 2017 and 30 June
2016 were as follows:

N
——

Z7

f:"./ﬂ“‘J';h\

13. % - BMEKRFRE (&)

BHE_Z—+FRA=+TRAR-ZE-—XR"FRA=THILFE &=F
RBREEMNYE  BELREBRBLBERE  THERTETS
AR THRARZENE  BEMREREZHESELBURRARE -

EEHAESEABU I RESENT

[bossini | i B & 2 £ B fir

[bossini | EIRSEL BN NECHEFERRCREBATEE
BREEBIEZFEREEET BeRESBUERRESDE -
BEEEEBEEAH TAFEAFH Y HEENE - RZE—LF A
A=+BRER-ZE—R"EXNAZTHEFEFABENRAZEIEZRR
T

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
Sales growth rate 0% 0% Sy E I8 R
Gross margin rate 48% — 58% 47% — 56% EFE
Discount rate 6% - 12% 6% —12% Bh3E =&

The directors determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin rate based on the expectation of
future market development.

An impairment provision of HK$224,000 (2016: HK$17,259,000) was recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 30 June 2017.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 %%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

i})
-

Q.
N

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. BEWE
2017 2016

in HK$ thousand —E—tF —ZT—REF BETT

Carrying amount at beginning of year 23,847 25,615 REFEREE

Depreciation provided during the year (1,768) (1,768) FRTERE

Carrying amount at end of year 22,079 23,847 RELAREE

The directors of the Company have determined that the investment property is industrial, based on the BEMEZME  FHERAR RNAREFCEEREMELRTE
nature, characteristics and risk of the property. The Group's investment property was valued as at the ME - REBREVMFERBUEXAERGEMESBERTEE
end of the reporting period by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer, at RN BIARE IR 2 (48 A% 168,600,0007T (ZZT — /R F : B
HK$168,600,000 (2016: HK$152,700,000). Each year, the Group’s management decide to appoint which 152,700,0007T)  ANEE 2 ERER S FREZSEINEGER - &
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuation of the Group's property. Selection criteria BEHALBEYEETINBGHE TR SEREMISNG B2 -5
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. TERERHEFEEKRE - ARECERESFERNFEVKREE
The Group’s management have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation TRERSREERER R G EERE G EMETNR - REMETIIR
result once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial reporting. The investment property BEEHEMRTE=  BRE—PHEERFERNGE VBTN
is leased to third party under operating lease, further summary details of which are included in note 32(a) FF32(a) °

to the consolidated financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group's investment property are included on page 192. BEAAREERENME ZE—FFEHNE128 -
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

|
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued) 14. REWH*E (E)
Fair value hierarchy AEERE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment property: TERNSEAEBE VITEYE Y N ES 20
2017 —E—tF
Fair value measurement using
RAZAVETE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BEX X
TEIR GIf -k TR
TISRE WARE BAHE et
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (%—F8) (B=fE) (=) BT
Recurring fair value measurement for: KEMEATERE
Industrial property - - 168,600 168,600 TEYE
2016 —E-RE
Fair value measurement using
HRz A THERE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BX BX
TR AR AR
c TI5RE B ABUR B ABUR Bt
.8 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
g in HK$ thousand (B—/E) (B=fE) (B=fE) BT
o) Recurring fair value measurement for: KEMEATERE
= Industrial property - - 152,700 152,700 TEME
©
§ During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no RER  F—EHEF_EB2ATEATERE 28 - JPEE AL
= transfers into or out of Level 3. EBHE=E BN -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As the investment property is measured initially at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for any
impairment in value, there is no movement of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy.

The fair value is estimated using a direct comparison approach. Under the direct comparison approach, fair
value is estimated by using the direct comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the property
interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment property, which include the location,
size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market
price. The fair value measurement is based on the above property’s highest and best use, which does not
differ from the actual use.

The key input is the unit market price. A significant increase/decrease in the market price will result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment property.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B ERR M

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

14. REW = (&)

NFEERE ()
MR REMERRAB R TERBEBEIREFTNRTE &
BRAVERBE-BRBAZ AV EFELEES -

RPETERERLBOEME - RBEERLEE A FEDUREE
LESE  BRVERGSAIRTHEL KRS EREN IS 2 A LLBRIEE
R 5 MmiEEE

HETHERSZEREMEZRFE - BREULE - Nk - =8 -
BE FERFOHLEREMREZ  UWEHEMCHSER 2 FEFESR
EREGMEERERAGEENGRERRERESSE -

TEHABRBREMMTSER - ETSERKELA/THE &
BEREWENTFERE LA T
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Cost at 1 July 2016 and at 30 June 2017,

Zf ) NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 7
= GanBREKE &
\ 30June 2017 —Z—+&XA=+H 1 '
i |
15. TRADEMARK 15. BHE
in HK$ thousand BT T
2017 —E—+F

RIE—RFLA-BER-ZE—tFA=1H

net of accumulated impairment 1,164 LR - kR REHRE
At 30 June 2017: R-ZE—tFRA=1TH:
Cost 1,164 A
Accumulated impairment - 2EHRE
Net carrying amount 1,164 BREVFE
2016 —E_xE
Cost at 1 July 2015 and at 30 June 2016, RZZE—AFEtA—HBHERZZE—R"EA=1H
net of accumulated impairment 1,164 ZRZR - kR REHRE
At 30 June 2016: R-FE—RFARA=1TH:
Cost 1,164 AR
Accumulated impairment - 2EHRE
Net carrying amount 1,164 BREVFE
Indefinite useful life BREAFHZ2EEZ
_5 The Group dlassified the acquired “bossini” trademark in Indonesia as an intangible asset with an indefinite REERBEBGEREISRAEEEE - BB 2 [bossini ] E1E
g life in Indonesia in accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the DR/ -IBHEZERIELERE - Ziwm IER[bossinil F1E 2
S “bossini” trademark has been a well-known and long-established fashion brand since 1987, its legal rights —NWN\EFRERANEBERBELEAZ RERE - BEIAEZBERN A
= are capable of being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration, and MR PABEXMNER KA TERES  AEZEKAFEH  MER
o based on future financial performance of the Group, they are expected to generate positive cash flows REBEZRARGBHRER  BHREUERAEERSRA - A5E
§ indefinitely. The Group re-evaluates the useful life of the “bossini” trademark each year to determine BFEE[bossini | FE2FIEMRFEH  UETEEFEEHIIBER
= whether events or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite useful life of the asset. BESHEEEERCAFH B -
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 16. IR ERE
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—tE —m ST T
Quoted investment fund, at fair value 233,177 232,568 BRI aES AT E

During the year, the fair value gain in respect of the Group's available-for-sale investment recognised in
other comprehensive income amounted to HK$609,000 (2016: fair value loss of HK$427,000).

RER EREMEZEAREERZAEEHEERE 2 AFER
I A7 #609,0007T (ZZF — N F : A FEEEE427,0007T) °

17. NOTE RECEIVABLE 17. E&
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—tF ZE—RF BT T
Note receivable, at amortised cost 38,775 - R IR IERAR

The Group held a fixed rate note receivable with a principal amount of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$38,775,000) which was issued by a creditworthy financial institution.

The fixed rate note receivable is unlisted, interest-bearing at 1.75% per annum and issued for a maturity
term of 2 years from 13 October 2016 to 12 October 2018.

The fixed rate note receivable was designated as a loan and receivable which was stated at amortised cost
because it is a non-derivative financial asset with fixed or determinable payments that is not quoted in an
active market. The Group does not intend to dispose it in the foreseeable future.

AEEFEREZERUMNS BIMEITTA S5 /A5,000,000% 7T (18
B A #38,775,0000T) 2 EBZE ©

ERRBWE L™  RFEMNE1.75%HERARB-FT—RFTA
TEZAREZZE-N\F+ATZAILL - BEMEF -

EEEBEERERLEEIR » WREBHAATIR - AR EE
REEERMSP Y EREMNREREXAINEEZITESRE
E-ARBEENALBRKEERBERER -

18. INVENTORIES 18. #E
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+tF —E—RF BT
Raw materials 1,045 1,332 R
Finished goods 237,542 258,471 RIAK n
238,587 259,803
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=k

ﬁl&\ R

.

Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to its
trade customers. Each trade customer has a maximum credit limit, except for new trade customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade customers relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade debtor balances. Trade debtors are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of debtors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

provisions, is as follows:

19. DEBTORS 19. FEUBR X
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+F —E—RE BT T
Debtors 59,322 53,322 JFEULER TR
Impairment (366) (1,642) A
58,956 51,680

BREMERAEHEN  AEEE-—RERTETEEITFPES
ANTREEH -BHESEF —RARNFKEI  BEZHEFPHR
BERSEERE - AEEBNERKE 2 B RETEREES -
BHRFASREEEERELERN - ENA LA ARKERZ
BURERDBERBEZIREP, HAEEYESEET ZEER
M o N5 B R B B WORR S R A (R AR m sk B b 5 MRt
B o RRIRFBRE -

AT RIRERBRNRBERARBURFRRERARZRESIT

2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+iF —T—RF BT T
Within 1 month 54,250 44,675 R—E AR
1 to 2 months 2,672 3,441 —ZmME A
2 to 3 months 741 845 2= =& A
Over 3 months 1,293 2,719 BiB=1EA
58,956 51,680
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i NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& ,:,, > BABBERK

&
™. 30 June 2017 —Z—+EXA=+H

19. DEBTORS (continued) 19. FEUW AR X ()
The movements in provision for impairment of debtors are as follows: FEW R 2 REREE g T
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+tF ZE—RF BT
At beginning of year 1,642 1,827 REY]
Impairment losses recognised/ ERRREEE
(write-back of impairment) (note 6) (251) 2 CRERE) (ff3Ee6)
Amount written off as uncollectible (981) (65) AATRE 2 SRIE
Exchange realignment (44) (122) H R EE
At end of year 366 1,642 NG
Included in the above provision for impairment of debtors is a provision for individually impaired debtors of A I 2t U B R 2 R (R 4 A o B PR R 2 M 1L (B #5366,000
HK$366,000 (2016: HK$1,642,000) with an aggregate carrying amount before provision of HK$366,000 T (ZF—71F - B¥1,642,0000T) 1ERHE - AR ERIEEAEBEARS
(2016: HK$1,642,000). The individually impaired debtors relate to customers with outstanding balances #366,0007T (—Z — /N4 : B #1,642,0007T) & Uk BE 72 8 B
which are not expected to be recovered. BEEFEEAWE C BFRERERGRH -
An aged analysis of the debtors that are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as I 4 {8 Bl sk R AR ARE 2 EUWER R Z BREE D Ta0 T ¢
follows:
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—tF ZE—RF BB
Neither past due nor impaired 55,638 46,119 R HA R AR E
Less than 1 month past due 1,274 1,676 wmEI DR —@EA
1 to 2 months past due 794 761 BB — = M E A
2 to 3 months past due 1,061 1,148 BEIRZE =& A
Over 3 months past due 189 1,976 B AR A = {E A
58,956 51,680
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30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

19. DEBTORS (continued) 19. BUL AR ()
Debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of diversified customers for KRB RBEZEBREFERZIRATP AR AT, &AL
whom there was no recent history of default. BEREL -
Debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a BB AR R E 2 R R R S B AEE A R B
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the BYEPAE AATREER 7% BERBTAS MEAMZLES
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a BRIEHAMRERE  REEEENEEREYRERBNERA
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. Al & EUkE] o
20. DEPOSITS PAID 20. R E
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+F —E—RF BT
Rental deposits 106,567 108,687 MEZE
Less: Non-current portion (78,035) (74,212) S SERNEAER S
Current portion 28,532 34,475 BIHEAER D
The rental deposits are paid for operating leases in respect of land and buildings, and are negotiated for AEERBE T M EBF o QEMOZNEERS  BECHHNTF
terms ranging from 1 to 15 years. —EZtTRHEANF -
21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. A RE R H A B W ARIR
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E2—tF ZE—REF BT
Prepayments 14,923 12,909 JER FRIA
Other receivables 22,466 19,525 E fth R AR IR
C
.0
o 37,389 32,434
£
“'g None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances it EEYEAHLEE - 2FEF L EREKEE Y &8R4
= relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default. MEAESNEENES -
2
©
=
L
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT 2. B4 RBLZEERRGEMBITER
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—tF —ZT—REF BETT
Cash and bank balances 185,763 450,713 Re RIRITHERS
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity of BERREDHH
less than three months when acquired 90,666 60,153 DR = A A 2 EE R IRITIF R
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity of SRR EZIHA B
more than three months when acquired 119,035 - A= H 2 mERRITER
395,464 510,866
Pledged bank deposit with original maturity of BSKREEIE A
more than three months when acquired 770 722 iE = A 2 BERRI TR
Total 396,234 511,588 et
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi RBERR FEBUARBEEZRe MRS FEHER BB
amounted to HK$57,623,000 (2016: HK$108,247,000). Renminbi is not freely convertible into other 57,623,0007C (=& —7<4F : 51#108,247,0007T) - AR EEER
currencies, however, under mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration HB|EMER  MEARER P B R EESNE E SIERD R ASE - S5 RS
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange EERRTE  ~AEEBEFBERELEINEEL ZRITHARE
Renminbi for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. HIRBINE -
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term bank RITERTARRITFARNEEE FDNEE - BERITFEHR
deposits are made for varying periods of between 1 week and 1 year depending on the immediate cash HENF—EBRZz—F DRFIAKEZAKBESFTEME - k&
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term bank deposit rates. 1R RAIRIT R RET R o
-
>
Pledged bank deposit of HK$770,000 (2016: HK$722,000) was pledged to a bank as security for bank RZE—+tFANAZ=Z+H  BEBEITHFEZHEEKT770,000T (ZF §
guarantee for an overseas subsidiary of the Group as at 30 June 2017. — N4 AHE722,0000T) BHEA T IRITIE RN R EG M E A F1E E o
FIRITIER 2R WS
S
SE S
Cash and bank balances, the non-pledged bank deposits and the pledged bank deposit are deposited with Re MIRITES - EBIRRITEAR LG RFRITFERE 7R E "_g
creditworthy financial institutions with no recent history of default. WHEA RS A EE 2 SREE - g'
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

23. TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. BN - EMENARIERETRE
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+tF ZE—REF BT
Trade creditors 54,680 58,248 JERTBRRK
Other payables 23,560 22,500 EAtb T 5RIA
Less: Non-current portion (2,372) (2,308) L FEBNEAERS
Current portion 21,188 20,192 BERER (9
Accruals 114,743 134,505 JEETERIA
190,611 212,945
An aged analysis of the trade creditors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is T RREZE BT ERABRRNREARZREST
as follows:
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+tF ZE—REF BT
Within 1 month 33,318 21,185 R—EAR
1 to 2 months 18,433 30,841 —ZEmWEA
2 to 3 months 1,325 1,663 WZE =1 A
Over 3 months 1,604 4,559 HBE=1EA
54,680 58,248
C
< The trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days. EREFAEER—MRR=TRERTRAZN -
©
S
5 The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of 1 month, except for other HENRERRE  BRRZE—tF A=A —EHER—FR
= payables of HK$2,372,000 (2016: HK$2,308,000) as at 30 June 2017, which were not payable within 1 838 7 H b e RIE B #62,372,0007T ( —F — N4 : 72,308,000
© year. LA HERZ PR R —ER -
g
©
£
L
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24,

DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The Group’s amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within 45 days
from the invoice date. Certain directors of the Group’s related companies, who have beneficial equity
interests therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Ms. TSIN
Man Kuen Bess, a director of the Company.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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24. ERRRE AR RIE
AEECZENBEQARREAENERRE B NAENREZEHHE
EJrﬁ?EWEi%oLK%IZE%L AR ETHAREEERIESD
ARRITBRRBRELERARFESESELL 2 HE -

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. fTHE SR T A
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
in HK$ thousand BE &8& BE afE BT
Forward currency contracts - 3,294 18 151 REEE AR
The carrying amounts of the forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values. The above iR

26.

transactions involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with creditworthy financial
institutions with credit ratings from A-1 to A-1+.

During the year, the Group entered into various forward currency contracts to manage its exchange rate
exposures. These forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. The net loss in the fair value of these non-hedging foreign currency
contracts amounting to HK$3,424,000 (2016: net gain of HK$2,555,000) (note 6) was charged/credited
to profit or loss during the year.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had total banking facilities of approximately HK$458,716,000 (2016:
HK$438,259,000), which were secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company. These facilities
were utilised to the extent of HK$29,327,000 (2016: HK$35,270,000) as at 30 June 2017.

EHENARcRAERREZATFERR - LS RITESRT
Z

RS DHEREENBRAAIZA I+ EEBRITERIEEEST

\

FAAEEFLZRENERSRNEEEERRR - 25 ED
ERERWIFREEFEE AR  YRATFERBRGERTE  FR
ZEFREHINEAR R FEFEBEEEE3,424,000T (ZF—K
F O F U B 2,555,0007T) (FH3E6) EEB= R, FHA ©

26. RITIEE
%:;ﬁ—iif\ﬂ —tH AEENRTEERBENABE

458,716,0007C (=& /‘*\E'\‘ #438,259,0007T) *© HANA A ER 4
A RIERIEAEM - —+FEXNA=+HEHAZEEEA
729,327 00075(77 /\E F 35, 270,0007T) ©
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

27. DEFERRED TAX

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities — 2017

Depreciation

Z7)

) It

8 gfé

.

27. BRI E

FRZEEHRBENREEZSHMT

EERBEEE-—T—tF

allowance
in excess of
related Revaluation
depreciation of property Total
FERBE
in HK$ thousand BIBAERITE MESH “E BT T
At 1 July 2016 517 1,857 2,374 RZE—RFELHA—H
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FRNEBZFTAZRLERIE (FF5E10)
during the year (note 10) (517) (454) (971)
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZZE—tFNA=ZTHERAEVERAE
consolidated statement of financial position R ZELEHIABEERE
at 30 June 2017 - 1,403 1,403
Deferred tax assets — 2017 BEREEE-——B—+4&
Depreciation
in excess of
related
depreciation
allowance Others Total
HEEBEE
in HK$ thousand MERHE Hit BE BT
At 1 July 2016 3,734 5,904 9,638 RZZE—RFLHA—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or loss FAEB=ET A (FBR) ZIELEH B (H3510)
during the year (note 10) 1,589 (656) 933
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the R-Z—tFRNA=tTBEREMBEHRRE
consolidated statement of financial position WA ZIELEEEERE
at 30 June 2017 5,323 5,248 10,571
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. EIERIE ()
Deferred tax liabilities - 2016 EEHBEEE-——Z—~F

Depreciation

allowance
in excess of
related Revaluation
depreciation of property Total
WERNE
in HK$ thousand RBERTE WS BiE BT T
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZE—RAFtA—AKRZZE—RFA=1H
consolidated statement of financial position TEEEMBRNERER LT IBBEER
at 1July 2015 and 30 June 2016 517 1,857 2,374
Deferred tax assets — 2016 EEREEE-—ZT—X<F

Depreciation

in excess of
related
depreciation
allowance Others Total
FrEEtRiBaE
in HK$ thousand FrERBis Hith HaE BETT
At 1 July 2015 2,090 6,174 8,264 RZE—hFLH—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profit or FERNEERZFFA (FB) ZELEFEIE (F:E10)
loss during the year (note 10) 1,644 (270) 1,374
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the RZE—RNEXNA=ZTHESEMBIRRE
consolidated statement of financial position R IEENIEEEERE
at 30 June 2016 3,734 5,904 9,638
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated tax losses of HK$51,317,000 (2016:
HK$29,459,000) arising in Hong Kong that were available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group had estimated tax losses arising in
mainland China of HK$168,037,000 (2016: HK$167,328,000) and in Taiwan of HK$130,988,000 (2016:
HK$147,609,000) that can be used to offset against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose for a maximum of 5 years and 10 years, respectively. The Group had estimated tax losses
arising in Singapore of HK$50,182,000 (2016: HK$49,473,000) and in Malaysia of HK$6,276,000 (2016:
HK$5,346,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also had deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$2,754,000 (2016: HK$3,455,000) and HK$7,281,000 (2016: HK$7,704,000) in Singapore and
Malaysia, respectively, at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as in the opinion of the directors, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable
profits will be generated against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008. As at 30 June 2017, no deferred tax has been recognised for withholding tax that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings that is subject to withholding tax of a subsidiary of the
Group established in mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that the subsidiary
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investment in the subsidiary in mainland China for which deferred tax liability has not been
recognised totalled HK$6,155,000 (2016: HK$9,050,000) at 30 June 2017.
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27. BRI IE (1)

R EER - NEBEREBEE Z(HETBIEEE REES1,317,000
TL(ZZ—RF : B¥%29,459,0007T) + Al &R HAF (B HE £ E 18
K AT BB ERBRN  AEBRABEKERSEBES G
IEEE D B £7E1168,037,0007T (ZZF— /X4 : B#167,328,0007T)
N 7#130,988,0007T ( —ZZ—714F 1 #1147,609,0007T) * FTE £
IR REREAR AR ERH N &RES R AF KT - K&
B RTINS R PR TR A 2 i ET B IR IS B 9 Bl = %650,182,000
T (ZZ—7X4F : B%49,473,0007T) 76 #6,276,0007C (ZZ— X
F : B155,346,0007T) - AI R AEREELBEATREZE
ARBRF o RIREEIR - NEERITINE RS RAE NG T HRE
B Z B2 B 4078 2,754,000 (=& — /X & : B #3,455,0007T)
N & #7,281,0007T (Z & — N4 : B #7,704,00070) c EERAE
MAKRERTEHRETEESEMERT R AR 8 BRIEE
B OREBIBEEWHNZFTEEEITHER

RIERESEMERE - R BERBERMINGIRE D ERINEIR
BEESRKREEBMIO%NENT - BERENR_TZENF—A—H
AR WEAR-ZZEE+F+-_A=1+—RENEHN - HEDEH
KRB INEIR A B ) AL E R AT SR LY - A e A RIK AT
M- AEEME > BAREAR10% - At NEBBRNFEH
AERYNZEMBRARR ST NF— A — BRBEIMNEF K
BEMEMIENE - RZE—+ENA=Z1+H AEEARBRNPEH
KEZHBARERRMAE LB EBMNTEMHEMNS - WAER
TR - EER A ZHBARBRAI RARKDIKEEEF
ZAREET AR - RZTE—+tFNA=Z+H  RRBEKENBRRR
BRI AR ERELETIEE &2 A x84 56,155,000
TL(ZZ—7XF : B#9,050,0007T) °
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. [ A
Shares B G
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —B—+tF ZE—RF BT
Authorised: SETERRA
2,000,000,000 (2016: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,0000% (== — 754 : 2,000,000,000/%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000 FEREESK 10Tz EBR
Issued and fully paid: BT R AR
1,637,735,394 (2016: 1,636,535,394) 1,637,735,394[% (—=F — /<4 : 1,636,535,394/%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 163,774 163,654 SREESK0 10T TRk
During the year, the movement in share capital was as follows: FRZEARESHEIIMAT
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
ERTROABE ERTRE BROEER oy
in HK$'000 in HK$'000 in HK$'000
BT T BT T BEF T
At 1 July 2015 1,629,595,394 162,960 22,770 185,730 R-ZE—RF+A—H
Exercise of share options (note a) 6,940,000 694 4,918 5,612 TT{EBER#E (BT sTa)
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 1,636,535,394 163,654 27,688 191,342 RZEBE—RFNA=ZTHRAEZFT—RFtH—H
Exercise of share options (note b) 1,200,000 120 535 655 TT{EERRE (B 3Eb)
At 30 June 2017 1,637,735,394 163,774 28,223 191,997 R-E—tFA=1H
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28.

29.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S R R M i

30June 2017 —F—tFNA=1H S

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@) The subscription rights attaching to 6,000,000 and 940,000 share options were exercised at the subscription prices
of HK$0.530 per share and HK$0.333 per share, respectively (note 29), resulting in the issue of 6,940,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$3,493,000, and the related share option
reserve of HK$2,119,000 was transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

(b) The subscription rights attaching to 1,200,000 share options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.370
per share (note 29), resulting in the issue of 1,200,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$444,000, and the related share option reserve of HK$211,000 was transferred to the share
premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options issued under the scheme are included
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating and providing
incentives to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations, and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include executive directors, non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), and other full-time or part-time employees of the Company, and
its subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 12 November 2013 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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(@) 6,000,0001% }%940,00017 B BEAEREMT 2 REBED AR RBETR AR

0.5307T R IRB0.333 L 171 (KT 7%29) + B #176,940,00008 &
R BB 10m 2 Bk tn - BIReR(EAHEES,493,0007T (REHFI)
R EEREEITER - AREEREREE2,119,000tE BB ER
hmFﬁW“

(b) 1,200,00017 i P& #EBE P 2 SR BB A 1R R BB (B B AR #50.370 L 1715 (BT
#$29) - B{FE171,200,0000 FREES 0102 BG  AIRESNR(E
AP H444,0007T (RETFIX) - R EBREEITER - BEBRER
EE211,000tE BEERMD EERA -

BB
AN R BB AE AT B AR IR AT 81 38
FHI5E29 ©

BITEEBE BRI A SR

BRETE

ARRR BB E ([ZaHE]) B EMELEREARERE
FHERZABR2EE  BHASEBEIBEERESR LR
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ZAtBZ A ER2BRALBEARRRARARME AR ZHATE
FOMTES (BRBIUFMTES) REMEBARBER - %
FER CE—=F+ A+ ZBAER BIELFTEIAR AT A8
HEFT - BRIBZ AR AUPRTF -



29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other future share option schemes of the Company (excluding share options
forfeited in accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other future share option schemes of the
Company) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 12 November 2013, the date of
the annual general meeting that the Company sought the approval of the shareholders of the Company
for the adoption of the Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Scheme was 162,077,939, which
represented 10% of the Company’s shares in issue at 12 November 2013. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting with such participant and
his associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Share options granted during
the term of the Scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period of the
Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within the exercise period
for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Scheme.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29. B S8 (&)

RARZET 8 AR AT i 2R 2 b R AT IS P IR 2 B I8
RRAEEITER A FRITZBROHNESHEE CFREREZTESEAR
A BT R E A R AR R AT EME TR W 2 BE R AE) - TERBBAR
AR ZZE—=F+— A+ =8 (AR ASKBE R ERNZTE
CHRRAFRGAE) 2O BTRMOERZ10% - RIFZT 8%
TZBMEE A162,077,939 - (EARRAN -ZE—=F+—A+=
HE BTN 2 10% o BAMER -+ 18 B HARI A - 4R 5 B AR 4 7] 160 3%
AER2BEALEIT 2RO RSEE - UWAREAERERE T
BHBEZ1%EBIR - E—FREBRZ R ZEIRE  BHFERRE
REREASHE  FABH  HEEBESEA LT REBEA LAY

MERE -

AARRBES SRTRAERTERRARERAZBEALR
hZ B ARELEBIIINTES (TEERK REREAR
AZBYIFRTESR) HLAE - 15 ER T @A BREARA R
ITERRIBUFRATETRRESAZBHBEALRH ZEMBER
B BB R B TR 0.1% S A E (RIX L A AR
RERMWTHERE) BBEB RS MARKRRNRRASE
FEHEE

Rz B R B BRRE — N HAEAR AN & B
ITRBARBEREEN - CREBREZITEHHESRHERT - I
B T 5 B R A RN BEER 1 AR TERER - RZ
BRI h R B AT &)+ F B R AT R TT 8 2 R R
BB %A EIE B - DATRBER LIRS L BRI TE AR
BB T DAFTIE
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. fB IR HEET &I (&)
The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the BREZITEREHESRES ETNFERATZRSE - (OVRE
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share PR BEAAR R BIIR G REE R Pz (B : (NEERE BHATR
options; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares for the 5 trading days B2 5 B AR T RNz FHRTE - RGi)ARQFRRGE
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. B
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. AR B THEABRRESRRERG LREZER -
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the year: FRZTETRRITR 2 EREDT
2017 2016
S i —T—xF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
IREFIGITREE BRERE IETHITRE it 2 g
HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
SREYT T4 BB T T
At beginning of year 0.600 94,612 0.593 102,200 REA]
Granted during the year 0.495 56,742 0.691 844 FRFH
Forfeited during the year 0.569 (20,730) 0.602 (1,492) FRRI
Exercised during the year 0.370 (1,200) 0.503 (6,940) FRNTE
At end of year 0.561 129,424 0.600 94,612 REFR
The share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was HK$0.470 (2016: FRCITERBBRERTERRZRELSBRAK0470L (ZF—X
HK$0.643) per share. F : B#0.6437T) ©
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

30June 2017 —E—tFA=1+H

29. B S8 (&)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%Aﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁi

RBERRHARITERBBEZTEERTERDT

2017 —E2—+tF
Number of options Exercise price * Exercise period
B E FEE* FEH
HKS
per share
SHOBEET
600,000 0.530 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 —EENFLAMNAE_ZE—+tF+LHA=H
900,000 0.530 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 —E-ZEFLtANMBE-_ZE—+FEA=H
3,500,000 0.530 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 T —FtAMBE-_ZT—+F+A=H
240,000 0.370 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 —EENE+—A +nag:%—tfﬁ+—ﬂ + )\ B8
360,000 0.370 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 —EENFt+—AThBEZZ=ZE—+F+—A+/\H
600,000 0.370 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 —E-FF+—At+hBE-_Z—+F+—F+\H
600,000 0.160 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 —EENF+HA=+-HBHE-Z-N\E+A=1+H
900,000 0.160 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 —E——F+/=+—HBE_Z—-N\Ft+A=1+H
1,500,000 0.160 31 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 :§—£¢+H:+—E§:§—)\¢+H:+E
480,000 0.456 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 —E——F_ANBE_ZE-_ZTF-_A=H
720,000 0.456 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 T E-——F-_ANBE-_E-_ZF-A=H
1,200,000 0.456 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 TE-=F_ANHE-_Z-_ZHF_-F=H
3,256,000 0.503 note (a(i)) b5 (adi))
5,152,000 0.780 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 —2——F+A+ZRE=_E=_FF+A+—H
648,000 0.780 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 —E——F+A+TZHEZE=ZF+A+—H
8,160,000 0.780 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 —E—=ZFft+A+=-H=2=-ZT-_ZF+HA+—H
11,800,000 0.780 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 —hAFt+A+=-—H=-_ZT-_ZTF+HA+—H
82,000 0.922 note (a(ii) B 5 Caii))
54,000 0.880 note (a(iii)) B 5 Cadiii))
240,000 0.490 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2022 —E—ZFtAZHE-ZE-_—F+A=H
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’ /}' \ 30June 2017 —Z—+&XA=+H
|
29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. R AEST & (&)
2017 —E—tF
Number of options Exercise price * Exercise period
BRERE T TEH
HKS
per share
SIEET
360,000 0.490 3 July 2014 to 2 July 2022 —::—Eit)ﬂ:az - _H#+H_-H
600,000 0.490 3 July 2015 to 2 July 2022 —HEFt+A=ZHE-_T-__FtA_H
90,000 0.490 note (a(v)) Bﬁ .&(a( ))
240,000 0.425 2 January 2014 to 1 January 2023 —EmF-—AZHRE-_ET-_=F—H—H
360,000 0.425 2 January 2015 to 1 January 2023 —E-hF—AZRE-_ZET-_=F—H—H
600,000 0.425 2 January 2016 to 1 January 2023 - RF-AZRE-_ZE-_=F—H—H
29,386,000 0.570 note (b(i)) B 5 (b))
248,000 0.570 note (b(ii)) B 5T (b(ii))
398,000 0.740 note (b(iv)) B2 (b(iv)
28,000 0.590 note (b(v)) B 2E (b(v))
22,000 0.496 note (b(vi)) B2 (b(vi)
55,480,000 0.495 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 — = *jliﬂLﬂ MEZE-_Z_-~F+A=H
620,000 0.460 28 November 2019 to 31 May 2027 —hWF +—A-+N\BZE-_Z-_+FHA=+—H
129,424,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30June 2017 —ZE—+&FXA=1H
| |
29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. AR AEST & (&)
2016 —E-RE
Number of options Exercise price * Exercise period
BRERE T EE TEH
HKS
per share
BT
600,000 0.530 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 TEEN\FLAMBE-_ZT—+F+HF=H
900,000 0.530 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 —EZ-ZTFLANMBE-_T—+F+HA=H
3,500,000 0.530 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 T —HFE+AMAE_ZE—+F+A=H
480,000 0.370 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 —EENF+—A +ﬂ5§:%ft$+*ﬁ RWAN=
720,000 0.370 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 —EENF+—A+hBEZZ—tF+—A+/\H
1,200,000 0.370 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 —E-ZEHE+—A+NBEE-E—+E+—A+N\H
600,000 0.160 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 —EENF+AZT—HE-_E—N\F+A=1+H
900,000 0.160 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 T E——4F%+A=+—HE-Z—-N\FE+A=+H
1,500,000 0.160 31 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 —E—=Ft+A=+— El%é_g NEFE+A=+H
480,000 0.456 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 —E——4F-_ANHE-_ZE-_ZFTF_-_A=H
720,000 0.456 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 TE-—HE-AWMAE-_E-_TF_-A=H
1,200,000 0.456 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 TE - -_ANHE=Z=-FTF-_HA=H
3,496,000 0.503 note (a(i)) B2 (ai))
5,152,000 0.780 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 —FT——%F+A+=-H=2=-ZT-_ZTF+HA+—H
648,000 0.780 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 —E-——F+A+-_HE-_ZT-ZTF+H+—H
8,160,000 0.780 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 —ET—=Ft+A+-HE2-ZT-_ZTF+HA+—H
11,800,000 0.780 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 —E-RAFEt+A+ZBE-_Z-_ZEF+A+—H
82,000 0.922 note (aii) B 5F Cadii))
54,000 0.880 note (a(iii)) B 5 (adiii))
32,000 0.590 note (a(iv)) B 2E (aliv) =
240,000 0.490 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2022 CE-=H+A=AE-_L -+ A-H . §
360,000 0.490 3 July 2014 to 2 July 2022 —E-NFtA=ZRAE_E-__F+H_-H ﬂi_f
600,000 0.490 3 July 2015 to 2 July 2022 —E-RF+A=AFE_E__F+A=H Ei’
90,000 0.490 note (a(v)) BT (a(v) * %
!
(@]
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|
29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. fB IR HEET 8 ()
2016 —E—RE
Number of options Exercise price * Exercise period
BREHA TEEE 1TEEH
HK$
per share
BRABE T
240,000 0.425 2 January 2014 to 1 January 2023 —FE—HZHE=ZFT=_=F—H—H
360,000 0.425 2 January 2015 to 1 January 2023 —hAF—A-HZ2-_Z-_=4—H—H
600,000 0.425 2 January 2016 to 1 January 2023 :g NF—AZHEZZ-_=F—HF—H
48,440,000 0.570 note (b(i)) M 5T (b(i))
492,000 0.570 note (b(ii)) B &£ (b))
122,000 0.714 note (b(iii)) B 5 (bii))
568,000 0.740 note (b(iv)) B (b(iv))
276,000 0.590 note (b(v)) B FE (b(v)
94,612,000
*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar * BREZITEERBHRSKEITAR SRR AR 2 A S
changes in the Company’s share capital. B T IARE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. fB I HEET 8 (&)
Notes: PsE
(@) Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the () BRENEBIENEARANKRARBZE T -—Z=ZFXA=THIL=
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2013, including but not FHRE - AEEEN=F5EE T (BFEETRNERERBZ UK
limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or REBERFAF) SHRERR - WREEXNEW=FSEEF - HHE
any portion thereof shall be forfeited if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved. S e ol B AE AT BB 7 & DR U -
The exercise periods of share options are as follows: MR TR AT
(i) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the () HAEAEEBZE_T—=—F A=-THILEFEZEERRA?
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020. BAMERENEEBRBITE E-Z_TF+AWA -
(i) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the iy AAEAEEEZ-_Z—=—F X NA=-tTHULEFEZLEZGEE
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021. BRAMEEENEEARKTE E2F-_—F—H=B-
(i)  From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the (i) = ﬁj%ﬂ&ﬁg@i:gfzfﬁﬁ =tH tif&*Z%&??&%é%
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021. BAmEREOERAMARGTE ZE-F-—FtA=R"-
(iv) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the (v B F'JZEEﬁ%@?:F%_E%*H STREFEZEEREEGR
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2022. BAMERENERARGTE E-F-__F—AZH-
(v)  From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the v) EE?'J%ZK%Q:%:;E*E%/TH =TRIEFEZEERRA?
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 July 2022. BAmEREENERAMBTE ZE-F-—F+tA-A-
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. B R HERT 8 ()

Notes: (continued) st - (8)

(b) Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the b) BRENEBIENERANRARBZE _T-—R"EXA=ZTHIE=
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2016, including but not FHE - AEEREN=F5EEF (BEETRNERERBERZ UK
limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or REERBFAF) SHRERR - WREEXNEW=FSEEF - HHE
any portion thereof shall be forfeited if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved. 8 e ot ELAE ] BB 7 & HOR U -

The exercise periods of share options are as follows: MR T AT

(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023. () AT RFt+—A—HEEZZT-_=F+=-A—H-
(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 January 2024. iy AZZE—A"Ft+—A—BRE_Z-_mMF—HA—H-
(i)  From 1 November 2016 to 2 March 2024. (i) AZZE—R"F+—A—BRBRE-FT-_WF=A=H-
(iv) From 1 November 2016 to 1 July 2025. vy HZZ—R"F+—A—BREZZ=_FAFtA—HB-
(v)  From 1 November 2016 to 3 January 2026. v BHZZE—REt+—A—HARBE_ZE_R"F—-—HA=H-
(vi) From 1 November 2016 to 2 October 2026. Vii AZZE—R"F+—A—BRBE-FT-_"F+HA=H-

On 3 October 2016, 4 October 2016 and 1 June 2017, the Company granted share options of 22,000, RZEBE-—RETHA=A 22— R"ETAOBE=Z—+tFA—

56,100,000 and 620,000, respectively, to its employees. The fair value of the share options granted B AAFAEEES S RIFEH22,0001 - 56,100,000 %620,00015

during the year was HK$8,323,000 (HK$0.15 each), of which the Group recognised a share option BE - FAERTEEREZ A FEABS,323,0000T (BB

expense of HK$2,007,000 in the current year. The Group recognised an aggregate share option expense 0.157T) * EHRAEENAFE B wRERER 12,007,000

of HK$1,873,000 in the current year for the 129,424,000 share options outstanding as at the end of the AEE BB R R & BR R M AR 1T {58.,2.129,424,00017 B AR HE I AR 6 5 1

reporting period. R IR S A H & 1,873,0007T °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. fB I HEET 8 (&)
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was estimated as at the date of FANARE 2 B EEERE 2 A FETRFE B 8GR  HA
grant, using a trinomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were —IEAHEEERN  CEREMAELBRE 2GR GEE AT
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used: " TREFIMRAEXZFTAEE -
2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF
Weighted average dividend yield (%) 5.71 5.40 INHE 735 % B (%)
Weighted average expected volatility (%) 47.18 38.46 hn#E ¥ 78 B E(%)
Weighted average historical volatility (%) 47.18 38.46 INHE 39 E 2% B(%)
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (%) 1.01 1.79 I ST 35 o [ B ) 22(%)
Expected life of share options (year) 10 10 BARETERT M (5)
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 0.485 0.691 T RE (FRABET)
The expected life of the share options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is BIRE BT FHNRBRE +F 2 RELBIRETE - ROBERMA]
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the BEH IR 2 BRI TR I o TREIR E) TYARIR I SR B A HE B R 2K 8
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the B IRV TERMR o

actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value. RET B QAR BT KPR ARE 2 A AL -

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 129,424,000 share options outstanding under the REREHIR - ANQFIEZATEI T H129,424,00017 15 AR 1711 2 BE IR
Scheme, which represented approximately 7.90% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The - HERZBARTIEEITIRM497.90% © LA A TR B R4
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, BREATER M ARITEE 2 BIRRE - KB BUR A RE17129,424,000/% 58
result in the issue of 129,424,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital HNEIBARAR 10 - T AR AN B iR 19 75 (B 1§ 9 Rl 4 i 4978 ¥512,942,4007T
of approximately HK$12,942,400 and share premium of approximately HK$88,816,000 (before issue N #971£88,816,0000T (RN EITHZ) °

expenses).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The 1,200,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the issue of 1,200,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, as further detailed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 27 August 2017, 76,000, 442,000 and 780,000 share
options granted to an employee on 5 July 2010, 2 December 2013 and 4 October 2016, respectively,
were forfeited with exercise prices of HK$0.503 per share, HK$0.570 per share and HK$0.495 per share,
respectively, and exercise periods were from the next business day of publication of the announcement
of the audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020, from 1
November 2016 to 1 December 2023 and from 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026, respectively. The price
of the Company’s shares at the date of forfeiture was HK$0.435 per share, which was the Stock Exchange
closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of forfeiture of the options.

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Company had 128,126,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately 7.82% of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 %%
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29. B R AR 8 ()

F A+ 1,200,00017 i [ HEFE 1T BUEF 25 171,200,00008 AN 2 7 3 8
MEEE (D © FEIBER ARG BT 3R R T 7528 o

RBERRE  R_ZE—tFNA=-t+tB IR _ZT—ZF+t
AEH 2 =F+-"A-AF-_— X E+ANARTHE
8 276,00017 BERZ 4 - 442,00017 i A% # &2 780,00017 & AX 1 B 408
U 7B B AERE0.5037T - BB IE0.570T R BB
04957 ITEHMN A AT EASEEEZE T —=FA=+HIt
FEZKEZRAEBEAGREENEEAMGE 22224 ¢
AMB - —Z—XRF+— B2 ZE_=F+-_AF—HEK_-Z
—hWE+ANARE-ZS-AF+A=A - AR EIRH ALY B H
ZERAERBE0435 T ABREERERIW BB S AEE
RFTZ WTfE -

REZERAMERERIERR » AR EEZEIT6128,126,00019
BARITE 2 BIRE  HERARFRZBE ZEBITRIDHT.82% °



30. RESERVES

31.

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements. The amounts
of goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 in 2001, remaining in the consolidated capital reserve and consolidated retained
profits amounted to HK$3,292,000 and HK$20,982,000, respectively, as at 30 June 2017.

The share option reserve of the Group comprises the fair value of share options granted which are yet to
be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in note
2.4 to the consolidated financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the related
share options expire or be forfeited.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

Certain additions of property, plant and equipment of HK$1,159,000 (2016: HK$1,564,000) were not paid
at the end of the reporting period and were recorded as accruals.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.

31.

mE B ERR M

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

(G
REENBEFEREERBBRETEE 2 BH27 N M B MR Z
FARREPHRAAN - R _ZE-FRAGHEBERFE305%E
WEMBARMEEMR —_E—tFNA=THNFERESER
FEEkEARBENAZHBEED R AEE3,292,0000T B
20,982,0007T °

AEEEREFEBELECRHERNRITEBREL ATE 18
HNGEAVBRRMI2ABBUABRN XN RIEZR 5 2 G5t HE
W BRERESNERERERTERERERMEER - W8
28 B SR o S O WS B B R A

BEBEERERHEE

FEXRERB

AEE®1,159,0007T (ZZF—714F : B%1,564,0007T) 2 & T3
R R R BB R s BRI R 4 W B HIEERT RS -
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30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

) ,ﬁ ~ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
..

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment property and sub-leases certain of its retail properties under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 3 to 4 years. The terms of the
leases also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

At 30 June 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

%
N
——

"1‘/:/5:“‘1'&1\
|
REHE R

(a) FERHBEA
AEBAEKLEHEZZHT  HEERENERSBEEETE
EME  BREIHHMR=ZENFAE - ZFBNZIEHITRE
BEBHNRERS -

RZFB—EFXRA=1TH ARBEERBLPHRT 2 TAIHEZ
REMET  ARFEHERWRFAER2IMALLT -

2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—tF —E—RF BT
Within one year 8,345 8,187 R—FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 4,957 7,542 RE_FZFRF  BEERME
13,302 15,729

(b) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its offices, retail stores and warehouse properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 15 years.

At 30 June 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

(b) ERFEAA
AREEEERERAT BRETHAE  TEESRE
BV REMERTIEME—ETEFRE -

RZFB—EFANA=ZTH AEEETAIREKLZEET -
BREEBAENKEERIBMANT

2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+tF —E—RF BT
Within one year 326,738 332,037 R—FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 286,166 330,963 RE_FZFHF  BIEEREME
After five years - 33,224 hEiE
612,904 696,224
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30June 2017 ZE—tHFA=1+H
[
|
32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 32. REME 2L H (&)
(b) As lessee (continued) (b) fEHR A A ()
The operating lease rentals of certain retail stores are based solely on the sales of those stores or on the ETEEEM2EEHEHC RS EMHERTEaiR
higher of a fixed rental and contingent rent based on the sales of those stores. In the opinion of the BEHESRIRZ SR AEEEMBET 2 RANEMERI RS
directors, as the future sales of those retail stores could not be accurately estimated, the relevant rental EEE - EBRE  AREBIIERGIZETEEHAKHE
commitments have not been included above. The total future minimum lease payments included the EE . ALY EAEEBHESFRIE BESEHEENZERE
management fee of a shop. PRE-—HEEHZEEER -
33. COMMITMENTS 33. &I
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 32(b) above, the Group had the following M XM sE32(b) sttt v & ST EAIESN  KREBRFERARZE
capital commitments at the end of the reporting period: RAEFENT :
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—tF —E—RF BT T
Contracted, but not provided for: EHENEE ST
Leasehold improvements 815 177 HEMEEE
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 613 1,651 B HRERRAERE
1,428 1,828
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. LREE
2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —EB—+tF ZE—RF BT
Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility REKENEAYEZS 2
and property rental deposits 3,289 4,439 RITIEIR

.y
>
[}
>
sm 0.
I)‘.m
o
H‘)‘Q":
I
pog e
%3
Q
=,
o
S

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEIFREEABR DA 1 75



c
19
+—
©
S
fu
O
“
S
©
1%}
C
@
=S
L

176

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRM T

30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H S

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Material transactions with related parties

A ‘Q
=

5. BEAELRS
(a) EREEBEALTZEARS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group BRiFE M BHMEMFL IR S - AEBRFENHMEEEATE
had the following material transactions with related parties during the year: TZERZSWT :
Note 2017 2016
in HK$ thousand B —E—+tF —E—RF BT
Purchases of garments (i) 16,677 101,122 FREERR X
Note: MsE -

(i)  During the year, garments totalling HK$16,677,000 (2016: HK$101,122,000) were purchased from certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Laws International Group Limited (“Laws International”). The purchases were
determined by reference to the prevailing market prices. Laws International is wholly owned by a trustee of
a discretionary trust set up by a relative of Mr. Law Ka Sing (“Mr. Law") of which such relative and his family
members are eligible discretionary objects of the trust. Mr. Law is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and the spouse of Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, a director of the Company. The balance owing to these suppliers
as at 30 June 2017 was HK$2,311,000 (2016: HK$7,865,000).

The related party transactions above also constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group's balances with related companies as at the end of the reporting period are
included in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(b)

@i

Lt

HEEEALT 2 REBERELSER
RIBEHR - AEBHEEERA

FR - ARAFMETEREREEARAR ([BXER]) 2EHWEB
NEELE A 5 116,677,0007T (ZZ — 754 ¢ 7#1101,122,0007T)
2K -REBN2RER 2 MEE ZERBEBEIHERELE
([BEEDZHBARUZEREACITIAZERE  MEABH
BRERGKKEYAERZEEARIBA  BRERKRRRZEE
BRREEARNREEHEB/L LT IRMEB - RZE—LFAA=THEK
S ER 2 FARE A 152,311,0000T (ZZ— N5 - ##7,865,000
JT) °©

ZRBBALTZHIER LR E1AAE A E 2 ERM
Z °

ZREBFRHNGRE M BEREK
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& NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& e BRRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. BEALR S ()
(c) Compensation of key management personnel () TEEBAEZHE
2017 2016

in HK$ thousand —E—tF ZE—REF BT
Short term employee benefits 20,340 21,425 REEEEF
Performance related bonuses - 2,700 BRI 2 TE4L
Equity-settled share option expense 810 814 R E B
Pension scheme contributions 223 235 RIS FHEIHK
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 21,373 25,174 INFEEEEAS ZHERSE
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 7 to the consolidated financial ExMe o SHBCBARGEMBHRRMET -
statements.
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30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. RITEDHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting RRERR FESRTAKREBENT

period are as follows:

Financial assets — 2017 SREE-—Z—tF
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables asset Total
BRR AR HE
in HK$ thousand FEWLERTK SREE st BT T
Deposits paid 106,567 - 106,567 BfES
Debtors 58,956 - 58,956 e BR X
Bills receivable 31,031 - 31,031 e E
Financial assets included in prepayments B ET ATEAT 3R IE I E b FE UL BR 18
and other receivables (note 21) 22,466 - 22,466 2 &g E (FsE21)
Available-for-sale investment - 233,177 233,177 AHERE
Note receivable 38,775 - 38,775 e
Pledged bank deposit 770 - 770 BHEMBITIEH
Cash and cash equivalents 395,464 - 395,464 RekReFEIAER
654,029 233,177 887,206
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 36. e T A2 E (&)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting RWERR SEeMTAREEENT : (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

Financial liabilities — 2017 cRAaE-—ZT—tF
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RATEREBRER R RARFE
in HK$ thousand IRz MEE Zemas BEt BETIT
Financial liabilities included in trade ERT AR - HAEAIER
creditors, other payables and accruals - 168,514 168,514 JEFTERIBEz R A&
Bills payable - 25,878 25,878 JER SRR
Due to related companies - 2,311 2,311 FEfS B R RIFRIE
Derivative financial instruments 3,294 - 3,294 TESBITA
3,294 196,703 199,997
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ok :ﬁ ~ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS §%
TR o
\ 30 June 2017 —E—+FxA=+H '

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 36. €R T B9 (48)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting RWERR SFReMITAREAENT : (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

Financial assets — 2016 SREE-—ZT—XRF
Financial Available-
assets at fair for-sale
value through Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables asset Total
BAFER
B=EERIERZ =879 At E
in HK$ thousand CREE FEUAR K EREE “Et BT
Deposits paid - 108,687 - 108,687 BEftiee
Debtors - 51,680 - 51,680 FEMARR
Bills receivable - 12,351 - 12,351 FEU =
Financial assets included in prepayments B ET A TR SR8 & E b e U BR 1R
and other receivables (note 21) - 19,525 - 19,525 2o s E (M5E21)
Available-for-sale investment - - 232,568 232,568 Al ERE
Derivative financial instruments 18 - - 18 TESRITA
Pledged bank deposit - 722 - 722 EHEMRITER
Cash and cash equivalents - 510,866 - 510,866 RekReFEIER
18 703,831 232,568 936,417
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30 June 2017 —ZE—+tFNA=+H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 6. ERMITESHE(E)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting R|ERR SFeMITAREENT : (&)
period are as follows: (continued)
Financial liabilities — 2016 SRAE-—ZT—X<F
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RAFERNERER R AR SIME
in HK$ thousand Rz 2 mAE ey =y =N “eEt BETIT
Financial liabilities included in trade ERT AR - HAEAIER
creditors, other payables and accruals - 183,280 183,280 EEHRBECeRBE
Bills payable - 30,755 30,755 BT ZEiE
Due to related companies - 7,865 7,865 FEfS B R RIFRIE
Derivative financial instruments 151 - 151 TSR T A
151 221,900 222,051
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30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The derivative financial instruments and available-for-sale investment were carried at fair values at 30 June

37. EMITAZAFERAFERE
RIB—tFR-F-RERNAZTHZITESRTARATHEBE
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2017 and 2016. Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposit, debtors, bills receivable, deposits paid, financial assets included in prepayments and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in trade creditors, other payables and accruals, bills payable and
amounts due to related companies approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group's finance team headed by the Director of Finance is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the finance
team analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by senior management.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of non-current deposits paid, non-current note receivable and the non-current portion of
other payables have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for other payables as at 30 June 2017 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments (i.e., forward currency contracts) with creditworthy
financial institutions with credit ratings from A-1 to A-1+. Derivative financial instruments, including
forward currency contracts, are measured using valuation technigues similar to forward pricing, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate various market observable inputs including the credit
quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying
amounts of forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

The fair value of the investment fund is based on quoted market price.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30June 2017 ZE—tHFA=1+H

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. eI AZAFERAFEEE (B)
Fair value hierarchy NEEREE
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: TRUALEESR T A2 AT EFEREE
Assets measured at fair value B FEGTEC BE
2017 —E—+tF
Fair value measurement using
HRAZATETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BAAEE EBERFTAEHE
SERT IS HE BWARE BWARE st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (85—/8) (=@ (25=8@) T T
Available-for-sale investment 233,177 - - 233,177 AHNERE
2016 —E-RE
Fair value measurement using
HRz A THERZ
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BRAEBR BATAEHER
RIS R(E AR BARE 5
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (B—/E) (B=[E) (B=E) BT T
Available-for-sale investment 232,568 - - 232,568 aAHHERE
Derivative financial instruments - 18 - 18 PTEEmMITA
232,568 18 - 232,586

.y
>
[}
>
sm 0.
I)‘.m
o
H‘)‘Q":
I
B g
%3
Q
=,
o
S

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEIFREEABR DA 1 83



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS §%
A ISR M ”"a

30June 2017 ZE—tHF < A=1+H

|

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. eI EZAFERAFELRE (E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEEE(E)
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: TRIPLREESRI A A FEAERE : (B)

(continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value BN EEAFE BIE
2017 —E—tF
Fair value measurement using
HRAZATETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BAABE BEARFTAHE
SERTISHRE BWARE BWARE et
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (5—F8) (5=FE) (5=18) BT
Derivative financial instruments - 3,294 - 3,294 TEEmMIEA
2016 —E-XRE
Fair value measurement using
KAz AFEH B
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BRAER BATAER
ERMISWRE A SR A SR FOE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (B—/E) (BZFE) (B=FE) BT T
Derivative financial instruments - 151 - 151 PTEEmMITA
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than its derivative financial instruments, available-for-
sale investment and note receivable, comprise cash and bank balances, time deposits, bills receivable
and bills payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as debtors, deposits paid and
trade creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the foreign currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The senior management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note
2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from the sales and purchases in
foreign operations in currencies other than United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. Approximately
31% (2016: 30%) of the Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other than United States dollar
and Hong Kong dollar. It is the Group’s policy to enter into forward currency contracts to mitigate foreign
currency risk arising from material transactions denominated in currencies other than United States dollar
and Hong Kong dollar.

At 30 June 2017, the Group had forward currency contracts with an aggregate nominal amount of HK$72
million (2016: HK$84 million) to manage its foreign currency risk in Singapore dollar and Taiwan dollar.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in Renminbi, Singapore dollar and Taiwan dollar exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit after tax and equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities, forward currency contracts).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

5
——

Z7

f:"./.’?f“‘J'iLh\

38. IR bR EE B R RBUR (&)

Foreign currency risk (continued) HNE L B (48)
HK$ Increase/(decrease) in HK$ Increase/(decrease) in
weakens profit after tax strengthens profit after tax
against and equity against and equity
BT B BRBE BRI R BT B BB BRI R
BEEE LM GRD) g¥AE LM R
% 2017 2016 % 2017 2016

in HK$ thousand —E—+F —E—RF —E—tF ZE—RF BT T
Renminbi 5 (2,416) (684) 5 2,416 684 AR
Singapore dollar 5 3,541 3,489 5 (3,541) (3,489) T
Taiwan dollar 5 4,497 (1,167) 5 (4,497) 1,167 Lk
Credit risk FERE

The Group trades primarily in cash and credit cards, and it is the Group’s policy to trade on credit terms
with recognised and creditworthy third parties only. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group places cash and cash equivalents with reputable banks to minimise the credit risk thereof.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty and by geographical region. There are no significant concentrations

of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from debtors are disclosed
in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., debtors) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility by keeping
adequate credit facilities from banks. The Group had credit facilities from banks of HK$458,716,000 and
approximately HK$29,327,000 was utilised as at 30 June 2017.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
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38. I AMEE B ERBUER (&)
RBESER
AEEMNAEEERDRIATAERECERRER ZTABES
RTAREREE (WMEKER) WEIHAREENSEELNRE

32
VI

AEEZBEEAESEEZHENEEREITRERVEESRE 2SR
EMERESFEE R-ZE—tFNAZ+H AEEREZRITE
B A 458,716,0000T @ & H #)751629,327,000t& BB A -

RBERR  AEBARBIWERBRNRzERAEDHER
o

N

2017 —E-+tF
On demand
or less than
12 months 1to 5 years Total
RERR
in HK$ thousand D128 A —ERF “Et BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade ERF AR - AR IR
creditors, other payables and accruals 166,142 2,372 168,514 MEFTRRIAZ AR
Bills payable 25,878 - 25,878 A2/
Due to related companies 2,311 - 2,311 FEEE R RIFRIE
Derivative financial instruments 3,294 - 3,294 PTESBIA
197,625 2,372 199,997
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS g’%
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 38. i EREEEERBEK (E)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEEEMR (E)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the RBERAR - NEBERDITNVERMBNR ZSRABEIHER
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: (continued) T (BE)
2016 ZE-RF
On demand
or less than
12 months 1 to 5 years Total
RERS
in HK$ thousand LIA12{8 A —ZhF “aEt BT
Financial liabilities included in trade EEF AR - bR FRIE
creditors, other payables and accruals 180,972 2,308 183,280 RIEFTERBZ &maE
Bills payable 30,755 - 30,755 NS
Due to related companies 7,865 - 7,865 RSB R RFRIA
Derivative financial instruments 151 - 151 PTHESRMIA
219,743 2,308 222,051
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio calculated on the basis of interest-bearing bank
borrowings over total equity. The Group targets to maintain a gearing ratio of 70% or below.

The gearing ratio is regularly reviewed by senior management. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods are as follows:
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38. I AMEE B ERBUER (&)

EXEHE
AEEEAEENEZER  AEAAKBEABKARRNESD
BAERSBRENEARLE  UFHEEBERF - FMEANBRREE -

AEBRBAEEROEDLIABEAENRREY - SREAAL
IR 0 o ARBRBRALGE  AEETEEBEARIR
BrRE  MBRREDERRRTHR - RE-T—£EAAS+
ARZE—AFAASHALFE YEFHREREANEE K
RS o

AEERAABRITERG ARSI R EERBL REEER
N AEEZBRREREEABILER/IONIIMAT °

ERERETHENEEAGBLE - NBREHRNEEABL RN
T

2017 2016
in HK$ thousand —E—+F BN ST T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings - - FTEERITER
Total equity 955,368 991,738 B
Gearing ratio N/ATIE A * N/AZN g A * BEAGLEE
*  Asat 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016, the Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowings. R ZE—EFERNAZTHERZE-AFRA=TH AEEREE
RITEM ©
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 39. AR B Z BT AR R 3k
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting period RMEBKR  FARRAPTBRARZERDNT -
is as follows:

2017 2016

in HK$ thousand —E—+F —E—RF BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries 143,162 143,162 MEB A RIIEE
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries 261,355 248,993 A ENGIE @]
Prepayments 122 166 TER IR
Cash and cash equivalents 1,220 863 RekReFHEEH
Total current assets 262,697 250,022 mEEEMAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBEE
Other payables and accruals 1,187 1,158 H b fE B R ERT BRI
Tax payable 262 7 FEBBLIA
Total current liabilities 1,449 1,165 TEEEAA
NET CURRENT ASSETS 261,248 248,857 TEEEEE
Net assets 404,410 392,019 BEFE

C g e

& EQUITY =

e Issued capital 163,774 163,654 EEBITIRA

S Reserves (note) 240,636 228,365 fr 85 (P 7E)

kS

-‘_g Total equity 404,410 392,019 HEmiaE

s

=
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRM T

30June 2017 ZE—tHFA=1+H

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued) 39. A AR Z MM RFE (E)
Note: BT
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARIEBZEENT
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
in HK$ thousand MR ER BARE  BREGE 1R T HE BT
At 1 July 2015 22,770 157,616 24,048 71,376 275,810 R-ZE—RAFLA—H
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 40,216 40,216 FREAEW AT
Exercise of share options 4,918 - (2,119) - 2,799 TT{E R RRE
Equity-settled share option arrangements - - 1,166 - 1,166 EmE B RERER
Final 2015 dividend declared - - - (71,664) (71,664) EER-ZZ—AFREARE
Special interim 2016 dividend - - - (19,962) (19,962) ZERER R IR S
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 27,688 157,616 23,095 19,966 228,365 RZE—R"FAA=Z+ARZE—XR"FtA—AH
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 50,020 50,020 FREAEW LT
Exercise of share options 535 - (211) - 324 1T R AR 4
Equity-settled share option arrangements - - 1,873 - 1,873 it B RERER
Special final 2016 dividend declared - - - (19,966) (19,966) EER-ZZ—AFRHRIKRRE
Special interim 2017 dividend - - - (19,980) (19,980) ZE—LFERIFERE
At 30 June 2017 28,223 157,616 24,757 30,040 240,636 RZE—+FRA=TH
40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. Bk 2 LA
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 EERENRZE—CtFNAZTEIEREERH AT BERE -

September 2017.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY §%
i 4{%

30 June 2017 —ZE—+FNA=+H

INVESTMENT PROPERTY REWH*
Attributable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
it B Az FH AEEELER
Units 1 and 2 on 8th Floor, Unit 1 on 9th Floor Industrial Medium 100%
Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor term
Cheung Fung Industrial Building lease

No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

REE B HFHE23-395 I% hHIEE
RETERESEIR2E -

IR1ER 1IBL125FAE
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Global distribution network
IR PR

Mainland China # B A [
Directly managed E# &2 163 (147)
Franchised 5 aF4c & 5(39)
Hong Kong and Macau

B RRPT 40 (
Singapore ¥ ¥ 18 (
Taiwan &8 63 (
Bangladesh = hn#z 1
Brunei 3 1
Cambodia 52 0

Dominican Republic O @
-

ZBAR TR 4(4)
India ENfE 180 (152) =
Indonesia ENfE 14 (12) @ = Q @@
Kenya 52 5(4) @ g@ @ @@
Malaysia & % #625 18 @
Middle East* 13 * 316 (312) '@ (&)
Mozambique &£ 5% 0(1) @ E @
Myanmar 4i &) 17 (17) @

Nepal 88 2(2)
Reunion Island & B & 1(1)

Romania % % E 22 7 (8)
Thailand =& 87 (88)
Uganda §F = 1(1)
Venezuela Z A¥mhz 6 (5)
Vietnam #E 8 (8)

* The Middle East includes Armenia, Bahrain, Jordan, Kuwait,
Lebanon, Oman, Palestine, Qatar, Saudi Arabia and UAE

168 (156

directly managed and franchised
stores in mainland China

121 (133)

directly managed stores in

Hong Kong and Macau, Taiwan and Singapore

6 5 1 (628)

export franchised stores
O RHE RIS

940 .7)

stores in about 30 countries and regions

PREEDEED - B HB - REE
REE - [E - BHEHE - FEE - DRATARAAREERE

AR EARE R E R B R AT RINEE AP - BRI = = z () Figures at 30 June 2016 are shown in brackets
weie . WEETEES ISR AI30HER R AR REB—AEAA=+AZBFLESRT

Regional retail performance indicators @ =& & KRIFIRIEZ

Same-store sales growth (%)*
FEHEREER (%)

Retail floor area (sq. ft.)
SEREER (FAR)

Sales per sq. ft. (in HK$)
FEHRHER (BY)

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2017 30 June 2017 30 June 2017

BE=T—tF BE=T—tF —ZE—tF

RAZTHLEE RARAZTHLEFE NA=t+A
Hong Kong and Macau &7 K52 F9 -9% -9% 6,500 7,200 Vv10% 153,000 157,200 ¥3%
Mainland China = A 5% 5% 1,100 1,200 V8% 254,000 226,300 M12%
Taiwan A& -7% -6% 2,100 2,100 0% 70,600 80,000 V12%
Singapore 703 -11% 6% 5,600 6,000 V7% 25,700 27,900 V8%
Total &4t -8% -6% 3,200 3,600 V1% 503,300 491,400 2%

* Same-store sales growth is the comparison of sales of the same stores having full month operations in comparable periods
[E/E SRR R AEREHN LB B 5 2 SHE R 8
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